
Board of  Directors
Meeting Information Packet

MISSION STATEMENT
Provide recreation programs and facilities for the benefit of the 

North of the River Community



NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REGULAR MEETING 

3825 RIVERLAKES DRIVE, BAKERSFIELD, CA 93312 
MONDAY, December 16, 2024, 5:30 P.M. 

Join Meeting Via Zoom 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86716678752?pwd=2wVTYbg357QQ3XC0TawO8ygVgaaS8c.1 

Meeting ID: 867 1667 8752 Password: 358515 
Or Dial by your location +1 669 900 6833 US 

Meeting ID: 867 1667 8752 Password: 358515 

DISCLAIMER: This agenda includes proposed actions and activities with respect to each agenda 
item, as of the date of posting. As such, it does not preclude the Board from taking other 
actions on any item on the agenda that is different or in addition to what may have been 
recommended. 

AGENDA 
Posted Prior to 5:00 p.m.  

Friday, December 13, 2024 

1. CALL TO ORDER ___P.M 

2. ROLL CALL

Governing Board Member Present Absent  
Crystal Madden, Chairperson ______  ______  
Janett Miller, Clerk ______  ______  
Jenifer VanAlstein ______  ______ 
Bob Smith ______  ______  
Ryan Skidmore ______  ______ 
Matt Howard ______  ______  
Staff Members
Bret Haney, General Manager ______  ______  
Wayne McArthur, Director of Finance ______  ______  
Esther Grijalva, Director of Human Resources  ______ ______   
Steph Thisius, Director of Planning and Construction ______  ______  
Jasmin LoBasso, Director of Community Relations  ______  ______  
Lauren Cronk, Director of Recreation  ______  ______  
Mike Evans, Director of Operations and Maintenance ______  ______  
Legal Counsel 
Jacob Thomasy ______  ______  

3. NOTICE OF MEETING BEING TAPED, FILMED, STREAMED OR BROADCASTED
Please be aware that a recording and broadcasting of tonight’s meeting is being
made and may capture images and/or sounds of those attending tonight’s meeting.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86716678752?pwd=2wVTYbg357QQ3XC0TawO8ygVgaaS8c.1


4. FLAG SALUTE
The Flag salute will be led by North of the River Recreation and Park District Board of
Directors.

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Items requiring attention after the agenda is posted may be added to the agenda with
2/3 majority approval of the Board. Items to be added will be made available to the
public at the meeting.
Motion ______ Second _______ Ayes ______ Noes ______ Abstain _______

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
The North of the River Recreation and Park District Board of Directors may take official
action only on items included in the posted agenda. Items addressed during the Public
Comment section are generally matters not included on the agenda and, therefore,
the Board will not take action at this scheduled meeting. Such items, however, may
be added to a future meeting’s agenda. Members of the public may address the Board
on items included on the agenda in the order that the items appear. Speakers are
limited to two minutes. Please state your name before making your presentation.
Thank you.

7. CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are deemed routine in nature.
Information concerning these items has been forwarded to each Board Member prior
to this meeting for their study. The Consent Agenda is acted upon in one motion
unless members of the Board, staff, or public request discussion and/or removal of an
item.
A. Posting of Agenda

Approval of Secretary Declaration of Posting of Agenda 72 Hours in Advance of
Meeting.

B. Minutes
Approval of Minutes from the Board of Directors’ Regular Meeting Held November
18, 2024.

C. Financial
Approval of Receipt of Bills and Invoices.

D. Bills Exceeding Policy Limit
Approval of bills exceeding policy limit.

E. Agreement for Afterschool Jr. Theatre Programming for Norris School District
During the 2024-2025 School Year, Resolution #37-24
Staff requests Board approval of an agreement with Norris School District to
provide Afterschool Jr. Theatre services during Norris’ ELOP program in Spring
2025.

F. Approval of Lease Agreement with Kern High School District for the Use of
Greenacres Pool for Swim Team Practices, Resolution #38-24
Staff requests Board approval of an agreement with Kern High School District to
provide the Greenacre pool facility for the Spring 2025 swim program.

G. Approval of 2025 Board Meeting Schedule

2



Approval of proposed Board dates will be the 3rd Monday of each month with 
the following exceptions: January 27th, February 24th, March 24th and June 23rd. 

H. Approval of Resolution #39-24 for Approval of Board Attendance Policy
Approval of Resolution #39-24 for the approved Board Attendance Policy.

I. Approval of Resolution #40-24 for Approval of Updated Employee Benefits
Holiday Policy
Approval of Resolution #40-24 for the approved updated Employee Benefits
Holiday Policy.

J. Approval of Retroactive Agreement for Funds Under Title III C Congregate and
Home Delivered Nutrition Services between North of the River Recreation and
Park District and the County of Kern, Resolution #44-24
Staff requests Board approval for funds under Title III C between North or the
River Recreation and Park District and the County of Kern.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Consent Agenda

Motion____ Second____ Ayes____ Noes______ Abstain______

8. BOARD BUSINESS

A. Election of Chairperson and Vice Chairperson for 2025

Motion____ Second____ Ayes____ Noes______ Abstain______

B. Award of Bid for Polo Community Bark Park and Landscape Improvements,

Resolution #41-24

Staff request Board approval of awarding the bid for the Polo Community Park

Bark Park and Landscape Improvement project.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution #41-24 for awarding the bid for Polo

Community Bark Park and Landscape Improvements.

Motion____ Second____ Ayes____ Noes______ Abstain______

C. Purchase of Irrigation Controller for Polo Community Park, Resolution #42-24

Staff requests Board approval for the purchasing of an irrigation controller as

part of the Polo Community Bark Park and Landscape Improvements project.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve resolution #42-24 for the purchase of an

irrigation controller for Polo Community Bark Park and Landscape

improvements.

Motion____ Second____ Ayes____ Noes______ Abstain______

D. Purchase of Site Amenities and Bark Park Equipment, Polo Community Park,
Resolution # 43-24
Staff requests Bard approval for the purchasing of the site features and
amenities as part of the Polo Community Bark Park and Landscape
Improvements project. 3



RECOMMENDATION: Approve resolution #43-24 for the purchase of site 
features and amenities for Polo Community Bark Park. 

Motion____ Second____ Ayes____ Noes______ Abstain______ 

E. Discussion and Direction of Austin Creek Donation
This item is for discussion and direction of Austin Creek Donation.

9. STAFF REPORTS
A. General Manager
B. Capital Improvement Projects
C. Financial
D. Personnel
E. Parks Division
F. Recreation
G. Community Services
H. Training

Reports Received and Filed.

10. CORRESPONDENCE
A letter from Vice-President Mike Miller, Lennar Homes of California, LLC was
received on December 13, 2024, via email and courier requesting to be distributed
to Board Members.

11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
Opportunity for the Board to comment on items not listed on the agenda.

BOB SMITH 
CRYSTAL MADDEN 
JENIFER VANALSTEIN 
MATT HOWARD 
RYAN SKIDMORE 

12. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at _____p.m. to the next meeting of the Board of Directors
of North of the River Recreation and Park District scheduled on January 27, 2025, 5:30
p.m. at the RiverLakes Ranch Community Center and District Administrative Complex.

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations including auxiliary aids, 
modifications and/or services in order to participate in the Board meeting, or any materials 
required by law to be made available for inspection to the public prior to the meeting of the 
Board of Directors of North of the River Recreation and Park District should contact the 
Administrative Office at 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 or by calling (661) 392-4



2000 during regular business hours Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m. 

5



 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF AGENDA 
 
I, the duly appointed and acting Clerk of the North of the River Recreation and Park 
District Board of Directors hereby certify that a copy of the December 16, 2024, Regular 
Board Meeting agenda was posted at the following public places within the District on 
Friday, December 13, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. approximately:   
 

RiverLakes Administrative Center, 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, California 93312 
North of the River Recreation and Park District website at NORfun.org 

 
The agenda and related documents were also provided to the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District Board of Directors on the 13th day of December 2024. 
 
 
Dated this 13th day of December 2024 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Janett Miller 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 

AGENDA ITEM 7.A. 

6



1 
 

 
 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

DISTRICT OFFICE 
 
MEETING DATE November 18, 2024 
 
1.  Call to Order Time/By:  CRYSTAL MADDEN @ 5:30 P.M. 

2.  Roll Call: 

 
 Governing Board Member        Present Absent  
Crystal Madden, Chairperson        ___x___ ______  
Janett Miller, Clerk         ___x___ ______  
Jenifer VanAlstein         ___x___ ______  
Bob Smith          ___x___ ______  
Ryan Skidmore         _______  ____x_  
Matt Howard           ___x___ ______  
 
Staff Members  
Bret Haney, General Manager       ___x__  ______  
Wayne McArthur, Director of Finance      ___x__  ______  
Esther Grijalva, Director Human Resources      ___x__  ______  
Steph Thisius, Director Planning and Construction                 ___x__  ______  
Jasmin LoBasso, Director of Community Relations     ___x__  ______ 
Lauren Cronk, Director of Recreation      ___x__  ______ 
Mike Evans, Director of Operations and Maintenance    ___x__  ______  
 
Legal Counsel  
Jacob Thomasy         ___x__  ______  

 
 
3. NOTICE OF MEETING BEING TAPED, FILMED, STREAMED OR BROADCASTED 

Please be aware that a recording and broadcasting of tonight’s  
meeting is being made and may capture images and/or sounds of those attending tonight’s meeting. 
 

4. Flag Salute by: CRYSTAL MADDEN  
The Flag salute will be led by North of the River Recreation and Park District Board of Directors 
 

5. Approval of Agenda 
Items requiring attention after the agenda is posted may be added to the agenda with 2/3 majority 
approval of the Board. Items to be added will be made available to the public at the meeting. 
 

7



2 
 

Motion: Smith Second: VanAlstein Ayes: Smith; Madden; VanAlstein; Howard Noes: None Abstain: None 
Absent: Skidmore 
 

  
 
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The North of the River Recreation and Park District Board of Directors may take official action only on 
items included in the posted agenda. Items addressed during the Public Comment section are generally 
matters not included on the agenda and, therefore, the Board will not take action at this scheduled 
meeting. Such items, however, may be added to a future meeting’s agenda. Members of the public may 
address the Board on items included on the agenda in the order that the items appear. Speakers are 
limited to two minutes. Please state your name before making your presentation. Thank you. 
People Present (see sign-in) 
 _____ Y     x    N 

No comments 

 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are deemed routine in nature. Information concerning these 
items has been forwarded to each Board Member prior to this meeting for their study. The Consent 
Agenda is acted upon in one motion unless members of the Board, staff, or public request discussion 
and/or removal of an item. 

A. Posting of Agenda 
Approval of Secretary Declaration of Posting of Agenda 72 Hours in Advance of Meeting  

B. Minutes 
Approval of Minutes from the Board of Directors’ Regular Meeting Held October 21, 2024  

C. Financial 
Approval of Receipt of Bills and Invoices 

D. Bills Exceeding Policy Limit 
Approval of Bills Exceeding Policy Limit 

E. Agreement for CHP to Provide Service at the 2024 Annual Christmas Parade, Resolution #35-24 
Staff requests Board approval of an agreement with CHP to provide one-time law enforcement services 
at the Annual NOR Christmas Parade on December 14, 2024. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve Consent Agenda  
 

Motion: Smith Second: VanAlstein Ayes: Smith; Madden; VanAlstein; Howard Noes: None Abstain: None 
Absent: Skidmore 

 
 
8. BOARD BUSINESS 

A. Review and Approval of Updating Employee Benefits-Holiday Full Time Policy and 2025 District 
Holiday Schedule 
General Manager Bret Haney requests Board approval to update the Employee Benefits- Holiday Policy 
for full-time employees and 2025 District holiday schedule. Mr. Haney explained that the current policy 
only allows a full-time employee to use hours from a worked holiday schedule in 90 days. The new 
update will give the employee flexibility to use 64 hours maximum accrue time during the calendar 

8



3 
 

year and added 3 floating holidays will be available for full-time staff to use during a calendar year.  
The board will review and approve a resolution for this schedule change at the next board meeting.  
AFTER DISCUSSION, BOARD APROVED UPDATING EMPLOYEE BENEFITS-HOLIDAY FULL TIME POLICY 
AND THE 2025 DISTRICT HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 
 

Motion: Howard Second: VanAlstein Ayes: Smith; Madden; VanAlstein; Howard Noes: None Abstain: 
None Absent: Skidmore 

 
 

B. MOU with City of Bakersfield to Install Communication Tower at Polo Park, Resolution #36-24 
General Manager Bret Haney requests Board approval of installing a communication tower at Polo Park 
with the City of Bakersfield to improve communications around the city. Mr. Haney commented that 
because of the importance of the rangers communicating with law enforcement, NOR will allow the 
City of Bakersfield to install an 80-foot poll to improve signal at Polo Park rent free. However, the City 
of Bakersfield will reimburse NOR for electricity cost. Mr. Haney will get back with Board member 
Robert Smith regarding public notification. 
AFTER DISCUSSION, BOARD APPROVED RESOLUTION #36-24 TO ALLOW MOU WITH THE CITY OF 
BAKERSFIELD TO INSTALL COMMUNICAITON TOWER AT POLO PARK 
 

Motion: VanAlstein Second: Howard Ayes: Madden; VanAlstein; Howard Noes: None Abstain: Smith 
Absent: Skidmore 

 
 

9. STAFF REPORTS 
A. General Manager 

General Manager Bret Haney updated the Board that he will schedule individual meetings to discuss 
department projects in January including the Austin Creek project. NOR is waiting on the Batey family 
for final proposal. Mr. Haney also commented that at next month’s meeting the Board will vote for a 
new chairperson and vice chairperson.  

 
B. Capital Improvement Projects (Steph) 

Director of Planning and Construction Steph Thisius referred the Board to the Board Meeting Packet 
for updates and highlighted Polo Community Park for the Bark Park, once checks and balances are 
done this item will be brought to the board. Ms. Thisius commented that NOR signed the contract for 
Standard Community Park and is now waiting for the state to sign it and send it back; Stockdale River 
Ranch is moving quickly; the sports courts are about 90 percent completed.  

C. Financial 
Director of Finance Wayne McArthur commented that the business office is in the middle of an audit.  

D. Personnel  
Director of Human Resources Esther Grijalva updated the Board on all open positions and mentioned 
that NOR will have this year’s Staff Christmas Party on December 20, 2024, and the Board is more than 
welcome to attend. Ms. Grijalva commented that on October 24, 2024, some staff members attended 
the 2024 Hire Celebration Awards luncheon with the Mayor in attendance. This celebration is for 
employers that hire people with disabilities; NOR partners with Pathways and one of the interns that 
completed his one-year internship with NOR was nominated and won. Mr. Grijalva added that the 
Pathways intern, Salvador Murillo, was hired for a regular part time position as a Facility Attendant; 
NOR was also nominated for a Mayor Harvey Hall Humanitarian Award and won.  

9



4 
 

 
E. Parks 

Director of Operations and Maintenance Mike Evans reported to the Board that the maintenance staff 
completed the roof repair and paint project at North Rosedale. Mr. Evans commented that there has 
been a rise in vandalism at Riverview Park restrooms; both Greenacres and Riverlakes gyms are 
scheduled for resurfacing during the Christmas and New Year’s holidays. Mr. Evans added that the staff 
is currently working on proposals to repair and refinish Riverview Gym as well as replacements at 
North Highland Playground and shelter.  

F. Recreation 
Director of Recreation Lauren Cronk reported to the Board that Adult Basketball and Volleyball ended 
their season, the success of the production of The Wizard of Oz, and currently the Explorer program is 
serving over 870 students at Standard School District. Ms. Cronk updated the Board on the upcoming 
events including the Santa Letter, which she added that this year the community will be able to write 
letters to Santa as well as the Grinch. The NOR Jr. Theater will be performing Alice in Wonderland with 
46 performances. Ms. Cronk added that the Christmas parade theme will be Christmas around the 
world and highlighted the Stricker family, they will be the Grand Marshal for the Christmas Parade.  

G. Community Services 
Director of Community Relations Jasmin LaBasso highlighted two additional sponsors for the Christmas 
Parade, Hall Ambulance and Raising Canes; NOR also had one donation from Cali Farms which will be 
part of our category prizes. Ms. LaBasso commented that one of her personal goals is to build up NOR’s 
radio stations’ relationships further with that in mind Ms. LaBasso had a meeting with SheMogul. Ms. 
LaBasso reported on the success of the Plant a Flag and Love your Park events.  
 

H. Training 
Reports Received and Filed.  

 
10. Correspondence 

No correspondence was received in November. 

11. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

Board Member: Bob Smith- no comment 

Board Member: Jenifer VanAlstein- No comment 

Board Member: Matt Howard appreciates all the hard work Ms. Thisius puts in her reports. 

Board Member:  Ryan Skidmore – Absent 

Board Member: Crystal Madden- No Comment 

 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT Time: 6:21 p.m. 

 
Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of North of the River Recreation and Park 
District scheduled on December 16,2024, 5:30 p.m. at the RiverLakes Ranch Community Center and 
District Administrative Complex. 
 
 

10



5 
 

An individual who requires disability-related accommodations including auxiliary aids, modifications 
and/or services in order to participate in the Board meeting, or any materials required by law to be 
made available for inspection to the public prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors of North of the 
River Recreation and Park District should contact the Administrative Office at 3825 Riverlakes Drive, 
Bakersfield, CA 93312 or by calling (661) 392-2000 during regular business hours Monday through Friday, 
8:00 a.m. through 5:00 p.m. 

11



MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
 

   

TO:  Board of Directors  
  
FROM:  Wayne McArthur, Finance Director  
  
DATE:  December 16, 2024 
 

SUBJECT: AGENDA ITEM 7.C. 
  Voucher List of Bills Presented to Board of Directors 
 
The voucher list of bills presented to the Board each month is a system-generated report that 
compiles all vendor invoices and statements that have been approved by budget supervisors and  
vouched for payment in the prior month.   For each payment, this report provides a detailed 
allocation of the budgetary codes to which the expenditure is charged.   Because this is a vendor 
report, credit card payments are listed twice, once for the credit card vendor and once for the 
vendor where the credit card purchase occurred.        
 
The attached monthly voucher list of bills is being provided for your review and comment.  Should  
you have questions regarding specific vendor payments, additional detailed information is available  
and can be obtained by contacting me at the District Administrative Center at 392-2000. 
 

12



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

North of the River 
Recreation & Park District 

Board of Directors 

Tammy Sturtevant 

Accounts Payable Clerk 

December 16, 2024 

AGENDA ITEM 7.D. 

Ratification of Bills Exceeding Policy Limit 

The following invoices exceed the policy limit for the month of December: 

CAPRI 

Liability and property corverage-2nd half 

FY 24/25 

285,611.00 

CAPRI 
Workers' compensation third quarter

FY 24/25

152,634.75

MEMORANDUM 

13



14



15



16



17



 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors                                 SUBJECT:  Afterschool Jr Theatre Programming 

            for Norris School District 
 

                     
FROM: General Manager                                                                   DATE:  December 6, 2024  

Director of Recreation 
Director of Community Relations 

 
AGENDA ITEM 7.E                      BOARD OF DIRECTORS                        DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
TITLE: Agreement for Afterschool Jr Theatre Programming for Norris School District During the 
2024-2025 School Year 
 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board of Directors approves Resolution #37-24 authorizing the 
agreement with Norris School District to provide afterschool theatre programming to students 
during the 2024 to 2025 school year. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Payment in the amount of $105 per participant.  
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION: There has been no previous board action.  
 

BACKGROUND: North of the River Recreation and Park District (NOR) has partnered with school 
districts for over fifty years to provide support for afterschool on-site programming, primarily in 
sports. NOR has also partnered to support existing afterschool programs, including the Afterschool 
Explore Program with Standard School District since 2019 and the Norris ELOP Program with Norris 
School District in the 2023-2024 school year.  

Since 2023, staff have discussed opportunities to expand programming through NOR with partner 
school districts, resulting in 2024 with the development of the Afterschool Jr. Theatre program and 
first-time implementation at Rosedale Union School District. This program is grounded in NOR’s 
community Jr. Theatre program which has been operating since 1968 and introduces youth to 
theatrical concepts including auditioning, acting, dancing, rehearsing, and performing. Throughout 
Fall 2024, staff have met with Norris School District staff to develop the program at Norris sites as 
well. The Afterschool Jr. Theatre program at Norris will reach grades TK-6 and operate in 7-week at 2 
school sites. Students interested in exploring more theatre will be invited to join NOR’s larger 
community productions.  

This agreement with Norris School District defines services, responsibilities, expectations, and 
program payment for NOR’s Afterschool Jr. Theatre Programming on-site at Norris School District.  
 

18



 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF: 
 
AFTERSCHOOL JR. THEATRE PROGRAMMING 
FOR NORRIS SCHOOL DISTRICT 
___________________________________________ 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director______________ and seconded by 
Director ______________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors at an 
official meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to wit: 
 
     AYES:  
 
     NOES:  
 
     ABSENT:  
 
     ABSTAIN:  
                                                                                  _____________________________ 
                                                            Clerk of the Board of Directors of  
      the North of the River Recreation  

and Park District 
 
 

RESOLUTION #37-24 
 

WHEREAS, North of the River Recreation and Park District (NOR) operates 
recreational programs for youth, including a community Jr. Theatre program; and 

 
WHEREAS, NOR has historically provided afterschool sports programming to 

school districts within NOR boundaries; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Norris School District seeks to expand afterschool programming 
during the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELOP); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Norris School District has agreed to reimburse NOR at a rate of 

$139 per student participant for Afterschool Jr. Theatre programming; and 

19



 
WHEREAS, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors approves the 

attached agreement with the Norris School District to provide Afterschool Jr. Theatre 
Programming and authorizes the General Manager or designee to sign said agreement. 
 

 
 

20



1 AFAF 

AFTERSCHOOL JR. THEATRE PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

 This Afterschool Jr. Theatre Program Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into on 
January 1, 2025 by and between NORRIS SCHOOL DISTRICT, a public school district (“SCHOOL DISTRICT”) 
and NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT, a California Special District (“NOR”).  
(SCHOOL DISTRICT and NOR are collectively referred to as the “Parties”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 
WHEREAS, SCHOOL DISTRICT seeks to provide an afterschool theatre program for students 

enrolled in SCHOOL DISTRICT who are in TK through sixth (collectively, the “Participants”) during the 
course of the 2024-2025 school year; 
 

WHEREAS NOR is specially trained, experienced, and competent to provide an afterschool theatre 
program for the benefit of the Participants; and 
 

WHEREAS, SCHOOL DISTRICT believes it is in its best interest to have NOR provide staff to support 
an afterschool theatre program and NOR is willing to provide staff to support an afterschool theatre 
program pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the parties expressly agree and contract as 
follows: 

1. SERVICES; SITES.  SCHOOL DISTRICT shall organize, publicize, and oversee an afterschool theatre 
program that offers registered Participants an opportunity to engage and participate in the 
components of a live theatre production which components include auditioning, acting, dancing, 
rehearsing, and performing which will culminate with a live showcase or demonstration featuring 
the skills the Participants have learned (collectively, the “Services”). NOR shall provide NOR staff 
to provide the Services which will be offered at two (2) school sites (singularly, a “Site”, 
collectively, the “Sites”) which SCHOOL DISTRICT shall select.   

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement will commence on January 1, 2025 and will continue until 
the expiration of the 2024-2025 school year unless the Agreement is terminated sooner in 
accordance with this Agreement. 

3. SCHEDULING OF SERVICES. NOR will conduct a seven-week course (the “Course”) at each Site 
based upon a schedule determined by SCHOOL DISTRICT which is set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto. The Course shall be offered from 3:00 p.m. through 5:00 p.m. Fridays except for school 
holidays or teacher in-service days, which dates will be provided to NOR by SCHOOL DISTRICT. 

4. COURSE DESCRIPTION.  The first Course will begin on January 31, 2025.  The number of 

21



2 AFAF 

Participants shall be determined by SCHOOL DISTRICT based upon SCHOOL DISTRICT and/or State 
of California guidelines.  During each day’s session, SCHOOL DISTRICT will divide the Participants 
into groups, each of which will rotate through NOR small group sessions which focus on different 
aspects of the Services. SCHOOL DISTRICT shall provide necessary staff to supervise those 
Participants who are not participating in the NOR rotation throughout each day’s session.  

 
5. SCHOOL DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES.   SCHOOL DISTRICT will be responsible for the following: 

 
i. Identifying the Participants at each Site with first preference given to those Participants enrolled 

in the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (“ELOP”); 
 

ii. Ensuring that only registered Participants are allowed to participate in each Course; 
 

iii. Providing a room at each Site with space to accommodate the Participants and the SCHOOL 
DISTRICT and NOR staff with sufficient room for NOR to provide the Services; 
 

iv. Providing and compensating a lead staff person and additional staff members as required to 
meet SCHOOL DISTRICT and/or State of California guidelines at each Site to provide activities 
and supervision for Participants when they are not involved in a rotation with NOR staff and to 
assist NOR staff as needed.  SCHOOL DISTRICT staff shall be present at all times, regardless of 
ratio sufficiency, to support NOR staff while the Course is being offered; 
 

v. Dividing Participants into groups which will rotate through the NOR small group session 
focusing on different aspects of the Services; and 
 

vi. Providing NOR and Supervisors at the Sites with SCHOOL DISTRICT policies regarding parent 
complaints, injury protocol, and Site rules and regulations. 

 
6. NOR RESPONSIBILITIES.  NOR will be responsible for the following: 

 

i. Ensuring compliance with all applicable fingerprinting and criminal background investigation 
requirements described in Education Code Section 45125.1. NOR’s responsibility shall extend 
to all NOR staff, regardless of whether such individuals are paid or unpaid and whether they are 
concurrently employed by SCHOOL DISTRICT.  NOR shall not permit any employee to have any 
contact with Participants until NOR has verified that such employee has not been convicted of 
a felony, as defined in Education Code Section 45125.1. Verification of compliance with this 
Section shall be provided in writing to SCHOOL DISTRICT prior to each individual’s 
commencement of employment or the provision of Services and prior to permitting contact 
with Participants. NOR shall be responsible for all costs associated with the requirements set 
forth in this Section 6(a); 

  

22



3 AFAF 

ii. Providing the curriculum and resources required to perform the Services; and 
 

iii. Providing a minimum of two NOR staff persons to provide the Services based upon the number 
of Participants in each Course offering at the Sites. NOR shall add additional NOR staff persons 
which NOR deems are necessary to provide the Services. 
 

7. PAYMENT TERMS.  SCHOOL DISTRICT will provide a roster of Participants registered for each 
Course within three (3) days of the commencement of each Course and pay NOR One Hundred 
and Five Dollars ($105.00) for each Participant (the “Course Fee”).  If additional Participants are 
registered in the Course after the first day, SCHOOL DISTRICT will provide the names of the 
registered Participants and pay an additional Course Fee for each Participant regardless of when 
they register.  NOR will deliver to SCHOOL DISTRICT an invoice for the number of Participants for 
each Course offering upon completion and SCHOOL DISTRICT shall provide payment to NOR within 
thirty (30) days of SCHOOL DISTRICT’s receipt of each Course invoice. 
 

8. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. Either party may, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice, with or 
without reason, terminate this Agreement with or without cause. Upon termination, neither Party 
shall have any further obligation under the terms of this Agreement except that SCHOOL DISTRICT 
shall be responsible for paying to NOR the Course Fee for Participants enrolled in a Course offered 
at the time of the termination. 
 

9. NOTICES. Whenever under the terms of this Agreement the time for performance of any act fall 
upon a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday, such time for performance shall be extended to the next 
business day. All notices, demands, requests or other communications required or permitted 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be (a) personally delivered to the party to whom it is sent, 
effective on the date of such delivery; (b) sent via email transmission sent on business days during 
business hours (between 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. pacific time), effective on the date of such 
delivery otherwise the effective date shall be the next business day, provided that a copy of such 
notice along with a copy of the confirmation of such delivery is also mailed by first class mail 
concurrently with such email transmission; or (c) sent via overnight delivery through a nationally 
recognized courier service to service to the party to whom it is sent, effective on the date of the 
delivery of such notice to said courier for such delivery, all sent to the respective parties at the 
notice addresses provided below: 
 
NOR: SCHOOL DISTRICT: 
North of the River Recreation  Norris School District  
& Park District  6940 Calloway Road  
3825 Riverlakes Drive  Bakersfield, CA  93312  
Bakersfield, CA 93312 Attn:   ___________________    
Attn: Bret Haney  Email: __________________ 
Email: bhaney@norrecreation.org 

  

23

mailto:bhaney@norrecreation.org


4 AFAF 

    
 

10. WAIVER. The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition herein 
contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, or any 
subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant or condition herein contained. 
 

11. SEVERABILITY. If any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will 
nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired, or invalidated 
in any way. 
 

12. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California. The Parties agree that this Agreement is entered into and is to be 
performed in Bakersfield, California and accordingly, the only appropriate venue for any dispute is 
the Kern County Superior Court, Metropolitan Division. 
 

13. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS. In the event of any arbitration, litigation or other dispute between 
the parties in connection with the interpretation, performance or enforcement of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party in such arbitration, litigation or other dispute shall be entitled, in addition to 
equitable relief or damages or both or other relief, to be reimbursed by the nonprevailing party 
for all costs and expenses of the arbitration, litigation, or other dispute including, without 
limitation, arbitration fees, court costs, expert witness fees, investigation costs and attorneys’ 
fees and disbursements, incurred therein by such prevailing party or parties and, if such prevailing 
party or parties shall recover judgment in any such action or proceedings, such costs, expenses and 
attorneys’ fees and disbursements may be included in and as a part of such judgment. The 
prevailing party or parties shall be the party who is entitled to recover his costs of suit, whether 
or not the suit proceeds to final judgment. If no costs of suit are awarded, the arbitrator(s) or 
court, as applicable, shall determine the prevailing party. 
 

14. COUNTERPARTS; FACSIMILE/ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement may be executed in 
separate counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which, when taken 
together, shall constitute one and the same agreement. The Parties agree that the use of facsimile 
or electronically transmitted signatures for the execution of this Agreement shall be legal and 
binding and shall have the same full force and effect as if originally signed. 
 

15. SIGNATURE AUTHORITY. Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform 
this Agreement and the person signing on behalf of each party has been properly authorized and 
empowered to enter into this Agreement. 
 

16. FURTHER AGREEMENTS. The Parties shall execute or cause their applicable affiliates to execute 
such additional agreements between the Parties and/or their respective affiliates as may be 
reasonably necessary to effectuate the intent of this Agreement. 
 

17. AMENDMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Agreement may be amended, modified or supplemented 
only by a written agreement signed by all of the Parties hereto. 
 

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT OF PARTIES. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all other oral or written representations. This Agreement may be amended 

24



5 AFAF 

or modified only by a written instrument executed by both parties. 
 

19. BINDING EFFECT. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Parties 
hereto and their respective legal representatives and successors, and nothing in this Agreement, 
express or implied, is intended to confer upon any other Person any rights or remedies of any 
nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first above written. 

 
 

NOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND NORRIS SCHOOL DISTRICT, a  
PARK DISTRICT, a California Special District public school district 

 

By:   By:     
BRET HANEY Name:     

Its:  General Manager Its:     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25



6 AFAF 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Rotation 1 – January 31 through March 7 (7 weeks) 
Rotation 2 – March 28 through May 16 (7 weeks) 

26



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors                                                           SUBJECT:   Kern High School Agreement 
 
FROM:  Director of Recreation                                                                     DATE:  December 12, 2024 

   
AGENDA ITEM 7.F                               BOARD OF DIRECTORS                           DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
TITLE:  Approval of Lease Agreement with Kern High School District for the Use of Greenacres 
Pool for Swim Team Practices 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board of Directors approves Resolution #38-24 authorizing the 
agreement with Kern High School District for the use of Greenacres Pool during the period of 
January 6, 2025 through May 9, 2025.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Revenue in the amount up to $20,700 from Kern High School District at the 
rate of $115/hour of scheduled use of the pool. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:  The Board approved a joint use agreement with Kern High School 
District for joint use of facilities on January 31, 1995.  The Board approved an annual agreement 
with Kern High School District specifically for the use of pools on January 21, 2020, February 22, 
2021, December 20, 2021, January 23, 2023, and November 20, 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND:  Since 1995, Kern High School District has reserved the District’s swimming 
pools for competitive swim teams.  Annually, an agreement was developed and in 2020, legal 
counsel developed a written agreement. This agreement was to be approved annually by the 
Board and signed by the General Manager.  At that time, the attached agreement was reviewed 
and approved by legal counsel of both agencies.  It defines responsibilities and expectations of 
both agencies for the use of the District’s pool facilities for competitive swim team practices.   
 
In 2023, the Board requested a review of the rental rates in association with the agreement 
with Kern High School District for the use of the pool facility. At that time, it was determined 
that the 2024 contract would include a rate increase reflective of comparable rental of the pool 
by members of the public and to account for inflationary pressures. For 2024, the rate has been 
increased from $90 to $115, a 27% increase. This is also the same rate available to general 
members of the public who may rent the pool during the Aquatics season in the Summer.  
 

27



Revenues from this contract support and offset a portion of the costs in maintaining the facility 
in its off-season as well as support aquatics activities including swim lessons, recreational swim, 
and lifeguard staffing support during the Summer.  

28



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE  
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF: 
 
KERN HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT  
GREENACRE POOL FACILITY AGREEMENT 
______________________________________________ 
 
 I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of North of the River Recreation 
and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify that the 
following resolution proposed by Director ___________ and seconded by Director 
____________was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors at an official 
meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to wit: 
 
 AYES:    
 
 NOES:   
 
 ABSENT:  
 
 ABSTAIN:  
 

_____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board of Directors of 
North of the River Recreation and 

                                                                                             Park District 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RESOLUTION #38-24 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved a joint use agreement with Kern High 
School District for joint use of facilities on January 31, 1995; and 

 
WHEREAS, a new annual agreement was written and approved by legal counsel 

of both Districts and adopted by the Board of Directors on January 21, 2020; and 
 
 

29



WHEREAS, the Kern High School District wishes to continue use of the 
Greenacres pool for swim team practice for the 2025 season; 
 
 WHEREAS, the North of the River Recreation and Park District rate associated 
with this contract is $115/hour for the 2025 season; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors approves the 

attached agreement with the Kern High School District; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the Board authorizes the General Manager to sign 

said agreement and other related documents. 
  

30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors                                              SUBJECT:  2025 Board Meeting Schedule  
  
FROM: General Manager                                                                  DATE:  December 11, 2024 
             
AGENDA ITEM 7.G.                          BOARD OF DIRECTORS                    DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
TITLE:  2025 Board Meeting Schedule 
 
BACKGROUND: Each year, staff prepares the annual North of the River Recreation and Park 
District Board Meeting schedule.  The meetings are generally scheduled for the third Monday of 
each month, unless the third Monday falls on a holiday and for special circumstances.  Due to 
holidays, the January and February 2025 meetings will be moved to the fourth Monday. During 
the California Park & Recreation Society Conference (CPRS), the March 2025 meeting will be 
moved to the fourth Monday. To allow an additional week for budget development and 
presentation preparation the June 2025 meeting will be moved to the fourth Monday.  
 
The attached calendar provides the proposed dates for the 2025 Board Meeting schedule.   
 
 

39



 2025 BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 1 1 1 2 3 4 5

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 1 2

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31

30

Proposed Dates:

12/15/25 - Monday03/24/25 – Monday 

04/21/25 - Monday
05/19/25 - Monday
06/23/25 - Monday

07/21/25 - Monday
08/18/25 - Monday
09/15/25 - Monday

02/24/25 –Monday 11/17/25 - Monday

September 2025 October 2025 November 2025 December 2025

01/27/25 – Monday 10/20/25 - Monday

January 2025 February 2025 March 2025 April 2025

May 2025 June 2025 July 2025 August 2025

40



 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 
IN THE MATTER OF: 
 
APPROVAL OF BOARD ATTENDANCE POLICY 
_____________________________________ 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director ______ and seconded by 
Director__________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors at an 
official meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to wit: 
 
     AYES:  
 
     NOES:  
 
     ABSENT:  
 
     ABSTAIN:   
                                                                                  _____________________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors of the 
North of the River Recreation and 
Park District 

 
 

RESOLUTION #39-24 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted a District Policy Manual in July 2009; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held in compliance with 

the Ralph M. Brown Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District recognizes adoption of a Board Attendance policy 

provides accountability and efficiency for District business; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the North of the River Recreation and Park 

District Board of Directors approve the Board Attendance Policy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the policy effective upon approval of the North of 

the River Recreation and Park District Board of Directors and upon distribution of the 
policy to NOR sites, District supervisors and posting of the policy on the District’s server. 

41



 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 
IN THE MATTER OF: 
 
APPROVAL OF UPDATED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS HOLIDAY POLICY 
_____________________________________ 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director _______ and seconded by Director 
_________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors at an official 
meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to wit: 
 
     AYES:  
 
     NOES:  
 
     ABSENT:  
 
     ABSTAIN:   
                                                                                  _____________________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors of the 
North of the River Recreation and 
Park District 

 
 

RESOLUTION #40-24 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted a District Policy Manual in July 2009; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held in compliance with 

the Ralph M. Brown Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District recognizes adoption of an updated Employee Benefits 

Holiday Policy provides flexibility and efficiency for conducting District business; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the North of the River Recreation and Park 

District Board of Directors approve the updated Employee Benefits Holiday Policy; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the policy effective upon approval of the North of 

the River Recreation and Park District Board of Directors and upon distribution of the 
policy to NOR sites, District supervisors and posting of the policy on the District’s server. 

42



 
 
TO:  Board of Directors   SUBJECT:  Title III C Congregate and Home    

       Delivered Nutrition Services Agreement 
 
FROM: General Manager                                                          DATE:  December 11, 2024         

Director of Finance     

AGENDA ITEM: 7.J.                           BOARD OF DIRECTORS                                        DECEMBER 16, 2024  
 
TITLE:  Approval of Retroactive Agreement for Funds Under Title III C Congregate and Home Delivered 
Nutrition Services between North of the River Recreation and Park District and the County of Kern     

RECOMMENDATION: That the Board of Directors adopts Resolution #44-24 approving retroactive 
agreement with the County of Kern to provide nutrition services for elderly persons. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The District will receive $449,707 in total grant funding for the full term of the 
agreement which ends June 30, 2025, to operate the Nutrition Services Program. 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:  The Board has approved agreements with the County of Kern Aging and 
Adult Services since 1984 to operate the Nutrition Services Program. 

BACKGROUND:  North of the River Recreation and Park District provides programs and services for 
senior citizens including but not limited to transportation, special interest classes, home delivered 
meals, dances, and sit-down nutritional meals. Since 1978, the District has received funds through the 
Kern County Aging and Adult Services for the Senior Nutrition Program. 

43



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 

IN THE MATTER OF:  
 
APPROVAL OF RETROACTIVE AGREEMENT FOR FUNDS UNDER TITLE III-C  
CONGREGATE AND HOME DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES  
BETWEEN NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK  
DISTRICT AND THE COUNTY OF KERN 
_______________________________ 
 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director ____________ and seconded by 
Director ______________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors at an 
official meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to wit: 
 
      AYES:  
 
     NOES:  
 
     ABSENT:  
 
     ABSTAIN:  
 
                                                                                             ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors of the 
North of the River Recreation and 
Park District 

 
 

RESOLUTION #44-24 
 

WHEREAS, the Congress of the United States has made certain funds available 
under Title III-C of the Older Americans Act, as amended, for the purpose of providing 
nutrition services to elderly persons; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the California Department of Aging has designated the Kern County 
Office on Aging and Adult Services for Planning Services Area No. 33 which has 
responsibility for preparing a plan for providing nutrition services to the elderly; and  

44



 
 WHEREAS, the Kern County Office on Aging and Adult Services has prepared a 
plan for services for the elderly which includes provisions for nutrition service programs 
in Bakersfield; and 
 
 WHEREAS, California Public Resources Code Section 5780 et seq. governing the 
powers and operation of the North of the River Recreation and Park District authorized 
said District to enter into agreements with public and private agencies in support of 
carrying out a comprehensive program of services. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of North of the 
River Recreation and Park District as follows: 
 

1. Approval and authorization is hereby granted for the District to enter into 
retroactive agreement for funding and operation of nutrition services for the 
elderly under Title III of the Older Americans Act; and 

 
2. Certification is extended to the effect that the District understands and will  

comply with all applicable regulatory and contractual provisions of governing 
federal, state, and local authorities; and  
 

3. Assurance that the District has or will have available adequate matching  
funds from a non-federal source to comply with funding regulations is hereby 
provided; and 

 
4. Certification is granted that the District recognizes the needs of the  

community and the Kern County Office of Aging and Adult Services and will 
make every good faith effort to satisfy these needs; and 

 
5. The General Manager is hereby appointed as Agent of North of the River  

Recreation and Park District for purposes of signing and executing all 
documents including, but not necessarily limited to, applications, budgets, 
agreements, amendments, and related forms as may be necessary for the 
execution of the proposed community service program.   

45



1 
 

AGREEMENT  
FOR 

TITLE III C SENIOR NUTRITION SERVICES 
Independent Contractor 

(County –North of the River Recreation and Park District) 
 
This Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into on __________________, by and between the 
County of Kern, a political subdivision of the State of California, (hereinafter “County”) and, North 
of the River Recreation and Park District (hereinafter “Contractor”), with its principal place of 
business located at 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield CA 93314. 
CONTRACTOR’S UEI NUMBER: LT82KML4R5K5 
 

RECITALS 
 

a. The Congress of the United States has made certain funds available under Title III 
and Title VII of the Older Americans Act of 1965, as amended, (herein “Act”) for the 
purpose of funding services to older individuals. 

 
b. The State of California (herein “State”) has designated the California Department of 

Aging (herein “CDA”) as the single State agency responsible for the administration 
of all programs funded pursuant to the Act. 
 

c. CDA has designated the Kern County Aging and Adult Services Department (herein 
“AASD”) as the Area Agency on Aging (herein “AAA”) for this area (Planning and 
Services Area #33) and has approved the County’s Area Plan for providing services 
to the elderly. 
 

d. County and the State of California, through CDA, have entered into an agreement 
which provides that the State will provide County with funding from federal and State 
sources to enable County to implement its Area Plan. 
 

e. Contractor represents that it is qualified and willing to provide certain services to the 
elderly in a cost effective manner pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
County and Contractor mutually agree as follows: 
 
1. DEFINITIONS 
 

a. “Title III C-1 (Congregate Nutrition Services)” means nutrition services for older 
individuals in a congregate setting. Services include meals, nutrition education, 
nutrition risk screening, and opportunities for socialization. Each meal shall provide 
one-third (1/3) of the Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI) and comply with the most 
current Dietary Guidelines for Americans (DGA) and comply with the Older 
Californians Nutrition Program Menu Guidance. To be an eligible Title III C-1 
congregate site, the site must meet all of the following criteria: [22CCR 7638.1, 
7638.5, 7638.7(a), 7638.11] 
1. Be open to the public [45 CFR 1321.53(b)(3)] 
2. Not means test [OAA § 315(b)(3)] 
3. Provide participants the opportunity to make voluntary contributions and not 

deny service for not contributing to the cost of the service. [OAA § 
315(b)(4)] [22CCR 7638.9] 

4. Not receive funds from another source for the cost of the same meal, 
equipment, or services. [2 CFR 200.403(f), 45 CFR 75.403(f)] 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

46



2 
 

b. “To-Go-Meals” means meals that are picked up by individuals 69 years of age or 
older (or their agent) or delivered to individuals 60 years of age or older who are not 
comfortable dining in congregate meal settings.  
1. C-1: To-Go meals are categorized as C-1 meals if they are consumed onsite 

and include in-person interaction (e.g., dining at congregate site such as a 
restaurant, food truck, etc. or one-on-one with program volunteer) or 
consumed offsite and include virtual interaction (e.g., group interaction via 
Zoom, FaceTime, etc. or one-on-one with program volunteer via telephone) 
during the meal.  

2. C-2: To-Go meals are categorized as C-2 meals if they are consumed offsite 
without in-person or virtual interaction.  

 
c. “Title III C-2 (Home Delivered Nutrition Services)” means nutrition services provided 

to frail, homebound, or isolated older individuals including meals, nutrition 
education, and nutrition risk screening.  Each meal shall provide one-third (1/3) of 
the Dietary Reference Intakes (DRI), comply with the most current Dietary 
Guidelines for Americans (DGA), and comply with the Older Californians Nutrition 
Program Menu Guidance. [22 CCR 7135, 22 CCR, 7638.7(c),] 

 
d. The term “Agreement” shall mean this Agreement, all attachments, exhibits, 

specifically referenced materials, amendments hereto, and Contractor’s proposal 
and budget. 

 
e. AAA” means the Area Agency on Aging (County of Kern, Aging and Adult Services 

Department.) 
 

f. “Cal. Civ. Code” means California Civil Code 
 
g. “CCR” means California Code of Regulations. 

 
h. “State” and “Department” means the State of California and the California 

Department of Aging (CDA) interchangeably. 
 
i. “Cal. Gov. Code” means California Government Code. 
 
j. “HSC” means California Health and Safety Code. 
 
k. “"PC” means California Probate Code. 
 
l. "Cal. Pub. Con. Code” means California Public Contract Code. 
 

m. "CRFC” means the California Retail Food Code, which is a uniform statewide health 
and sanitation standard for food facilities, found in Section 113700 et seq., 
California Health and Safety Code.  

 
n. “CFR” means Code of Federal Regulations. 

 
o. “Contractor” means the Contractor awarded funds under this Agreement and 

accountable to the AAA for use of these funds, and responsible for executing the 
provisions for services of this Agreement. As used in the Agreement, ‘Contractor’ is 
considered to be a ‘sub-recipient’ of funds for purposes of state and federal laws 
concerning expenditure of grant funds.      
      

p. “UEI” means the Unique Entity ID – a 12-character alphanumeric ID assigned to an 
entity by SAM.gov on April 4, 2022. As part of this transition, the DUNS number has 
been removed from SAM.gov and entity registration, searching, and data entry in 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

47



3 
 

SAM.gov now require use of the new Unique Entity ID. 
 

q. “OMB” means the federal Office of Management and Budget. 
 
r. “GC” means Government Code.  
 
s. “In-kind Contribution” means the value of non-cash contributions donated to support 

the project or program (e.g., property, service, etc.). 
 
t. “Matching Contribution” means local cash and/or in-kind contributions by the 

Contractor, subcontractor, or other local resources that qualify as match for the 
contract funding.  Minimum matching requirements are calculated on net costs, 
which are total costs less program income, non-matching contributions, and State 
funds. 

 
u. “Non-Matching Contribution” means local funding that does not qualify as matching 

contributions and/or is not being budgeted as matching contributions.  (e.g., federal 
funds, overmatch, etc.) 

 
v. Nutrition Education means an intervention targeting OAA participants and 

caregivers that uses information dissemination, instruction, or training with the intent 
to support food, nutrition, and physical activity choices and behaviors (related to 
nutritional status) in order to maintain or improve health and address nutrition-
related conditions. Content is consistent with the Dietary Guidelines for Americans; 
is accurate, culturally sensitive, regionally appropriate, and considers personal 
preferences; and is overseen by a registered dietitian or individual of comparable 
expertise as defined in the OAA.  

 
w. Nutrition Services Incentive Program (NSIP) means the program whose purpose is 

to provide incentives to encourage and reward effective performance by AAAs in 
the efficient delivery of nutritious meals to older individuals.  The program consists 
of a cash allotment based on the ratio of the number of meals served by each 
Planning and Service Area (PSA) compared to the total number of meals served in 
the State in the prior-prior federal fiscal year. 

 
x. “OSHA” means the Occupational Safety and Health Administration 
 
y. “OAA” means Older Americans Act 
 
z. “Program” means a State funded program contained in Chapter 1097 of the 

Statutes of 1996. 
 

aa. “Program income” shall mean revenue generated by the Contractor or 
subcontractor from contract-supported activities. 

 
bb. “Program Requirements” means Title III program requirements found in the OAA 

[42 USC 3001-3058]; the Code of Federal Regulations [45 CFR 1321]; the 
California Code of Regulations [22 CCR 7000 et seq.]; and CDA Program 
Memoranda, and California Retail Food Code (CRFC). 

 
cc. “Reimbursable item” also means “allowable cost” and “compensable item”. 
 

dd. “Subcontractor” shall mean a legal entity that receives funds from the Contractor to 
carry out any part of a federal award identified in this Agreement. 

 
ee. “USC” means United States Code. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

48



4 
 

 
ff. “HHS” means United States Department of Health and Human Services. 
 

gg.  “Vendor” means an entity selling goods or services to the Contractor or 
Subcontractor during the Contractor or Subcontractor’s performance of the 
Agreement. 
 

hh.  “Elderly persons” or “Older Individual” shall mean a person aged sixty (60) or older. 
 

ii. “Eligible service population” for Title III C means individuals sixty (60) years of age 
or older, with emphasis on those in greatest economic and social need with 
particular attention to low income minority older individuals, older individuals with 
Limited English Proficiency, and older individuals residing in rural areas. [OAA, 
Section 305 (a)(2)(E)] [Title 22, CCR, Sections 7125, 7127, 7130, and 7135].  
 
1. Individuals eligible to receive a meal at a congregate nutrition site are:   

i. Any older individual  
ii. The spouse of any older individual 
iii. A person with a disability, under age sixty (60) who resides in housing 

facilities occupied primarily by older individuals at which congregate 
nutrition services are provided 

iv. A disabled individual who resides at home with and accompanies an 
older individual who participates in the program. 

v. A volunteer under age sixty (60), if doing so will not deprive an older 
individual sixty (60) or older of a meal. [CCR 7636.9(b)(3); CCR 
7638.7(b)(1) and OAA 339(H)] 

 
2. Individuals eligible to receive a home-delivered meal are individuals who 

are: 
i. Frail as defined by 22 CCR 7119, homebound by reason of illness or 

disability, or otherwise isolated. (These individuals shall be given 
priority in the delivery of services.) [45 CFR 1321.69(a)]. 

ii. A spouse of a person defined in 22 CCR 7638.7(c)(2), regardless of 
age or condition, if an assessment concludes that it is in the best 
interest of the homebound older individual. 

iii. An individual with a disability who resides at home with older 
individuals if an assessment concludes that it is in the best interest of 
the homebound older individual who participates in the program. 

 
jj. The term "Focal Point" means a facility that encourages the maximum collocation 

and coordination of services for older individuals. Community Focal Points so 
designated in the Area Plan are shown in Exhibit D, COMMUNITY FOCAL POINTS 
LIST, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
kk. Except to the extent modified or supplemented by this Agreement or any agreement 

between CDA and County, any term defined in Title III and VII of the Older 
Americans Act of 1965, as amended, (42 U.S.C. Section 3001, et seq.), its 
implementing regulations (45 CFR Section 1321, et seq.) and CDA’s Title III/VII 
Program Manual shall have the same meaning when used herein. 

 
ll. In the event of conflict between the provisions set forth in the Contract Terms and 

Conditions of this Agreement and the Scope of Work, Proposal, or Area Plan, the 
provisions listed in the Contract Terms and Conditions shall prevail. 

 
mm. The terms and conditions of federal awards and other requirements have the 

following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they require: 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

49



5 
 

1. The Grant Terms and Conditions. 
2. The Older Americans Act and other applicable federal statutes and their 

implementing regulations. 
3. If applicable, the Older Californians Act and other California State codes and 

regulations. 
4. The Agreement and this Program Guide. 
5. Program Memos and other guidance issued by CDA. 
6. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if applicable, 

the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of the HHS Grant Policy 
Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement is available under the HHS Policy 
Requirements Topic at     
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html.  

 
2. TERM 
 

The term of this Agreement shall be July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025.  Contractor has 
been previously awarded the right to contract for Title III C Nutrition Services for County 
fiscal years 2024/2025 through 2027/2028. It is required that a new Agreement be 
completed each fiscal year to reflect the revised funding levels and the revised scope of 
work. AASD may negotiate modifications or revisions to assure that all necessary 
service/program requirements are covered. In the event a provider does not perform 
satisfactorily (as determined by AASD) throughout the fiscal year, AASD may choose not 
to extend the contract term, and AASD may terminate the contract in accordance with the 
termination provisions of the contract. In such an event, AASD may initiate an RFP process 
to locate a new provider for the geographical region. Funding is contingent upon the 
availability of State, federal, and County funds. 

 
3. SERVICES AND STAFFING TO BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR 
 

a. Contractor shall operate a project in accordance with 22 CCR § 7638, which will 
provide the services, program activities and related units of service as described in 
the Scope of Work (Exhibit A), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

 
b. Contractor shall provide adequate staff to meet Contractor’s obligations under this 

Agreement and shall list by program category, all full and part-time employees, in-
kind and volunteer positions in the Budget documents (Exhibits B and C), which are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
c. Contractor shall provide services only to the defined eligible service population. 

 
d. The Contractor shall annually assess each Title III C-1 and C-2 client’s nutrition risk 

using the Determine Your Nutritional Risk checklist published by the Nutrition 
Screening Initiative.  [OAA §339(2)(J)] [OAA §207(a)(3)]  

 
1. Title IIIC intake forms must include the DETERMINE Your Nutritional Risk 

Health checklist questions and scoring as indicated in the Title IIIC – Intake 
and Assessment Forms Guide.  

 
e. To ensure all data is collected for the unmet need as requested by the U.S. 

Legislature, Contractor, either as a direct service provider or through a 
subcontractor must develop and implement a Wait List policy and procedure. The 
policy and procedure must include provisions for: prescreening individuals to 
determine eligibility; managing applicants’ placement on and removal from the Wait 
List; periodically reviewing the eligibility and identified needs of applicants on the 
Wait List; and assigning priority for enrollment based on Wait List. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

50

https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-regulations/index.html


6 
 

 
4. PROJECT DIRECTION, MONITORING AND REVIEW 

 
a. AAA, or CDA may monitor, assess or audit Contractor’s facilities, project, records, 

reports and/or procedures at any reasonable time during regular business hours. 
 
b. Contractor’s personnel shall attend meetings as are reasonably required for 

purposes of information sharing or training. AAA shall make every effort to schedule 
said meetings so that they shall not interfere with Contractor’s normal day-to-day 
operations. 

 
c. Contractor shall provide AAA, in a timely manner, the statistical and other 

information, which AAA requires in order to meet the planning, coordination, 
evaluation and reporting requirements of the CDA. 

 
d. Contractor shall insure that no information about, or obtained from, any member of 

the eligible service population, receiving services hereunder, is voluntarily or 
otherwise disclosed in any form that identifies a member of the eligible service 
population without first obtaining the written consent of such persons. 

 
5. FISCAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

a. In consideration of Contractor’s satisfactory performance of duties under this 
Agreement, County shall pay, and Contractor shall accept as payment in full, an 
amount not to exceed $449,707 in accordance with EXHIBIT F “FUNDING 
DESCRIPTION”, which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, for the twelve 
(12) month term beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. 

   
b. All funds shall be spent in accordance with Contractor’s approved budget 

documents (Exhibits B, and C).  The AAA reserves the right to refuse payment to 
Contractor or later disallow costs for any expenditure which is found to be not in 
compliance with, be unrelated to, or inappropriate for, program activities, which has 
inadequate supporting documentation, or where prior approval was required, but 
was either not requested or not granted.  
 

c. This Agreement shall be effective only in the event CDA approves funding to 
implement County's Aging and Adult Services Department Area Plan for fiscal year 
2024-2025. 

 
d. This Agreement is valid and enforceable only if sufficient funds are made available 

by the State Budget Act of the appropriate fiscal year for the purposes of this 
program.  In addition, this Agreement is subject to any additional restrictions, 
limitations or conditions which may affect the provisions, terms, or funding of this 
Agreement in any manner. 

 
e. If the State Legislature or Congress does not appropriate sufficient funds for this 

program, this Agreement shall be amended to reflect any reduction in funds. 
 

f. In the event that insufficient funds are appropriated, this Agreement may be 
canceled at any time, by either party, by giving at least ninety (90) days prior written 
notice to the other party in accordance with the NOTICE provisions, herein. 

 
g. Program Income means revenue generated by the Contractor or the Subcontractor 

from contract-supported activities and may include:  
 

1. Voluntary contributions received from a participant or other party for 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

51



7 
 

services received.  
2. Income from usage or rental fees of real or personal property acquired 

with grant funds or funds provided under this Agreement.  
3. Royalties received on patents and copyrights from contract-supported 

activities.  
4. Proceeds from the sale of goods created under CDA grant funds.  

 
h. Interest earned on advances of federal and non-federal funds shall be identified as 

non-match cash. [2 CFR 200.305(b)(8)] [45 CFR 75.305(b)(8)] 
 
i. If, as a result of advanced non-federal funds, the funds earn interest, that interest 

shall be identified as income to the program and used for program expenditures.  
Contractor may keep interest amounts earned on advances of federal funds up to 
$500 per year for Local Government Agencies and non-profit organizations for 
administrative expenses.  Interest earned above the stated limit shall be remitted at 
least quarterly to AASD Accounting.  [2 CFR 200.305(b)(9)] and [45 CFR Part 
75.305(b)(9)] 

 
j. The contractor must maintain advance payments of federal awards in interest 

bearing accounts, unless the following apply: 
 

1. The contractor receives less than $120,000 in federal awards per year.   
2. The best reasonably available interest bearing account would not be expected 

to earn interest in excess of $500 per year on federal cash balances. 
3. The depository would require an average or minimum balance so high that it 

would not be feasible within the expected federal and non-federal cash 
resources. 

4. A foreign government or banking system prohibits or precludes interest bearing 
accounts. 

 
k. Upon termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or dissolution of 

Contractor, Contractor shall return to AAA immediately upon written demand, any 
funds provided under this Agreement which are not payable for goods or services 
delivered prior to the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this Agreement, or 
the dissolution of Contractor. 

 
l. Contractor’s Budget must set forth in detail the reimbursable items, unit rates and 

extended total amounts for each line item.  It shall include, at a minimum, the 
following items: 

 
1. Direct and overhead costs. 
 
2. Monthly, weekly, or hourly rates, as appropriate, and all personnel 

classifications, together with the percentage of personnel time to be charged 
to this Agreement, as well as fringe benefits. 
 

3. Rental reimbursement items should specify the unit rate, such as the rate 
per square foot. 
 

4. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be 
purchased should be specified. Equipment/Property with a per unit cost over 
$5,000 or any computing devices, regardless of cost requires justification 
from the Contractor and approval from CDA and must be included in 
Contractor’s approved Budget. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

52



8 
 

m. Budget and budget revisions shall adhere to any other provisions contained in the 
CDA Program Manual(s). 
 

n. Payments by AAA shall be made to Contractor in accordance with the CDA 
Program Manual(s) and County procedures.  In the event of conflict, the provisions 
of the CDA Program Manual(s) shall prevail. Copies of such procedures are 
available through the AAA. 

 
o. During the contract period, the County may advance funds based on an analysis of 

current cash needs. The County may advance the Contractor a total not to exceed 
1/12 of the total contract amount. The AAA will recapture all monies advanced by 
reducing each monthly claim by an equal amount, such that all advances will be 
recaptured by the end of the fiscal year (June 30). 

 
p. Contractor shall not use any funds under this Contract to pay the salary or expenses 

of any individual who is engaged in activities designed to influence legislation or 
appropriations pending before the Congress or the State Legislature.  In addition, 
no funds paid to Contractor through this Agreement shall be utilized to compensate 
employees of the Contractor for overtime or compensatory time off, except to the 
extent that the Contractor is required to pay for overtime or compensatory time off, 
pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 USCS section 201, et seq. or 
applicable State law. 
 

q. The maximum reimbursement amount allowable for indirect costs is ten percent 
(10%) of the Contractors Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC), per funding category 
excluding in-kind contributions and nonexpendable equipment. Modified Total 
Direct Cost (MTDC) means all direct salaries and wages, applicable fringe benefits, 
materials and supplies, services, travel, and up to the first $25,000 of each 
subaward (regardless of the period of performance of the subawards under the 
award). MTDC excludes in-kind contributions, equipment, capital expenditures, 
charges for patient care, rental costs, tuition remission, scholarships and 
fellowships, participant support costs and the portion of each subaward in excess 
of $25,000. Other items may only be excluded when necessary to avoid a serious 
inequity in the distribution of indirect costs, and with the approval of the cognizant 
agency for indirect costs [45 CFR 75.2]. Contractors requesting reimbursement for 
indirect costs exceeding the maximum ten percent (10%) shall retain on file an 
approved negotiated indirect cost rate or cost allocation plan. 

 
r. The Contractor and its Subcontractor/Vendors shall comply with Governor’s 

Executive Order 2-18-2011, which bans expenditures on promotional and 
marketing items colloquially known as “S.W.A.G.” or “Stuff We All Get”. 
 

s. Any reimbursement for authorized travel and per diem shall be at rates not to 
exceed those amounts paid by the State in accordance with the California 
Department of Human Resources (CalHR) rules and regulations. 

 
 In State: 

• Mileage/Per Diem (meals and incidentals)/Lodging 
http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx   

 Out of State: http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/home/manualitem/1/2201 
 

This is not to be construed as limiting the Contractor from paying any differences in 
costs, from funds other than those provided by CDA, between the CalHR rates and 
any rates the Contractor is obligated to pay under agreements. No travel outside 
the State of California shall be reimbursed unless prior written authorization is 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

53

http://www.calhr.ca.gov/employees/pages/travel-reimbursements.aspx
http://hrmanual.calhr.ca.gov/home/manualitem/1/2201


9 
 

obtained from the State. [SCM 3.17.2.A(4)] Contractor agrees to include these 
requirements in all contracts it enters into with subcontractors to provide services 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
t. A reasonably proportionate share of the costs of audits required by and performed 

in accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as implemented by 
requirements of this part, are allowable. However, the following audit costs are 
unallowable:  
 
1. Any costs when audits required by the Single Audit Act and 2 CFR and 45 CFR 

75, Subparts F- Audit Requirements have not been conducted or have been 
conducted but not in accordance therewith; and  

2. Any costs of auditing a non-federal entity that is exempted from having an audit 
conducted under the Single Audit Act, 2 CFR 200 and 45 CFR 75, Subparts F- 
Audit Requirements because its expenditures under federal awards are less 
than $750,000 during the non-federal entity’s fiscal year.  

 
6. SERVICE CONTRIBUTIONS 
 

Contractor assures that voluntary contributions shall be allowed and may be solicited in 
accordance with the following requirements [OAA § 315(b)] 
 
a. The Contractor for any Title III or Title VII-A services shall not use means tests.  
 
b. Any Title III or Title VII-A client that does not contribute toward the cost of the services 

received shall not be denied services.  
 
c. Methods used to solicit voluntary contributions for Title III and Title VII-A services shall 

be non-coercive.  
 
d. Each service provider will: 

 
1. Provide each recipient with an opportunity to voluntarily contribute to the cost of 

the service.  
 

2. Clearly inform each recipient that there is no obligation to contribute, and that the 
contribution is purely voluntary. 
 

3. Protect the privacy and confidentiality of each recipient with respect to the 
recipient’s contribution or lack of contribution. 
 

4. Establish appropriate procedures to safeguard and account for all contributions.  
 

5. Use all collected contributions to expand the services for which the contributions 
were given to supplement (not supplant) funds received under this Act. 
 

6. Comply with provisions for voluntary contributions in Section 4.4; [OAA §325(b)] 
and 
 

7. The nutrition services provider must develop a suggested amount.  When 
developing this contribution amount, the income ranges of the older individuals in 
the community and the provider's other sources of income shall be considered.  
[CCR 7638.9.(b)]  

 
i. Title III C-1: Post signage indicating the suggested contribution for eligible 

individuals, and the guest fee for non-eligible individuals, near the contribution 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

54



10 
 

container at each congregate meal site. The guest fee shall cover all meal costs. 
[CCR 7638.9.(c)] 

ii. Title III C-2: Notify C-2 clients of the suggested contribution amount and 
methods for making voluntary contributions. 

 
7. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
 

a. The Contractor agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant to the 
requirements of this Agreement shall conform to accepted professional standards. 
 

b. Contractor shall promptly establish and maintain services in accordance with the 
Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and shall remain ready, willing and able to provide such 
services to all members of the eligible service population within its service area 
throughout the term of this Agreement. 
 

c. In the event that the service units delivered by Contractor are less than 85% of the 
number of service units required by the AAA, the AAA may reduce the payment of 
grant funds in the ensuing quarter in proportion to the reduction in the level of 
services delivered by Contractor. If Contractor’s under performance occurs during 
the final quarter of the current fiscal year (April 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025), the 
amount of the payment reduction as calculated in accordance with this subdivision 
shall constitute a liability of Contractor which is payable to AAA. Should Contractor’s 
operations cease for a period of three (3) consecutive months in any given budget 
year, this Agreement shall be automatically terminated. Budgeted units of service 
may not be adjusted during a contract period without prior written approval from 
AASD. 

 
d. Contractor shall specify the manner in which Contractor intends to satisfy the 

service needs of members of the eligible service population with greatest social and 
economic need; older individuals providing care and support to persons with mental 
retardation and related developmental disabilities (as defined in Section 102 of the 
Developmental Disabilities Assistance and Bill of Rights Act (42 U.S.C. 6001), 
consistent with the requirements of Section 305(a)(2)(E) of the OAA, which assure 
that preference also will be given to low-income minority individuals and older 
individuals residing in rural areas. [OAA Section 373 (c)(2)] 

 
e. Contractor shall, with the consent of the older individual, or his/her representative, 

bring to the attention of appropriate officials for follow-up, conditions or 
circumstances, which place the older individual, or the household of the older 
individual, in imminent danger. 

 
f. Contractor shall create and maintain an emergency preparedness plan and 

Contractor shall, when feasible and appropriate, make arrangements for the 
availability of services to members of the eligible service population in weather or 
disaster related emergencies. 

 
g. Contractor shall promote and maintain high standards of food safety and sanitation 

as required by the California Retail Food Code (CRFC). 
 
h. Contractor shall create and utilize, as needed, a participant grievance policy which 

follows the procedures detailed in Title 22, Division 1.8, Chapter 3, Article 5, § 7400-
7406 of the California Code of Regulations. 

 
i. Contractor shall assist participants in taking advantage of benefits under other 

programs. 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

55



11 
 

j. Contractor shall assure that all services funded under this Agreement are 
coordinated with other appropriate services in the community, to ensure that these 
services do not constitute an unnecessary duplication of services provided by other 
sources. 
 

k. Contractor shall perform monthly surveys of eligible client population to ensure 
client satisfaction with menus and services performed under this Agreement 

 
8. CAPITAL ASSET EQUIPMENT 

 
a. At termination or completion of this Agreement, Contractor shall dispose of all "non-

expendable equipment" which was purchased wholly or in part with federal or State 
funds, in accordance with federal, State and County procedures.  If said equipment 
is to continue to be used to further the purpose of the Act by Contractor, said 
equipment shall remain with and continue to be used by Contractor subject to AAA's 
written consent. 

 
b. Unless otherwise provided for in this Section, property refers to all assets used in 

operation of this Agreement. Property includes land, buildings, improvements, 
machinery, vehicles, furniture, tools, intangibles, etc. Property does not include 
consumable office supplies such as paper, pencils, toner, file folders, etc. 

 
c. Property acquired under this agreement, which meets any of the following criteria is 

subject to the reporting requirements:  

1. Has a normal useful life of at least one (1) year and has a unit acquisition 
cost of at least $5,000 (a desktop or laptop setup, is considered a unit, if 
purchased as a unit). 

2. All computing devices, regardless of cost (including but not limited to, 
workstations, servers, laptops, personal digital assistants, notebook 
computers, tablets, smartphones and cellphones). 

3. All Portable electronic storage media, regardless of cost (including but not 
limited to, thumb/flash drives and portable hard drives). 
 

d. Intangibles are property which lack physical substance but give valuable rights to 
the-owner. Examples of intangible property include patents, copyrights, leases, and 
computer software. By contrast, hardware consists of tangible equipment (e.g., 
computer printer, terminal, etc.).  Costs include all amounts incurred to acquire and 
to ready the intangible asset for its intended use. Typical intangible property costs 
include the purchase price, legal fees, and other costs incurred to obtain title to the 
asset.  

e. The Contractor shall keep track of property purchased with funds from this 
Agreement, and submit to the AAA annually with the Closeout, in electronic form a 
cumulative inventory of all property furnished or purchased by the Contractor with 
funds awarded under the terms of this Agreement or any predecessor Agreement 
for the same purpose. The Contractor shall use the electronic version of the Report 
of Property Furnished/Purchased with Agreement Funds (CDA 32) to report 
property, unless otherwise directed by the AAA.  

The Contractor shall record the following information when property is acquired:  

1. Date acquired  

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

56



12 
 

2. Item description (include model number)  
 

3. CDA-issued tag number or other tag identifying it as State of California 
property  

4. Serial number (if applicable). 

5. Purchase cost or other basis of valuation.  

6. Fund source. 
  

f. Prior to disposal of any property purchased by the Contractor with funds from this 
Agreement or any predecessor Agreement, the Contractor must obtain approval 
from the AAA for all reportable property as defined in item c of this Section.  
Disposition, which includes sale, trade-in, discarding, or transfer to another agency 
may not occur until the AAA obtains approval from the CDA. Contractor will be liable 
for repayment of purchase price of equipment if Contractor disposes of equipment 
without prior approval from CDA. 

 
g. Contractor must remove all confidential, sensitive or personal information from CDA 

property prior to disposal, including removal or destruction of data on computing 
devices with digital memory and storage capacity. This includes, but is not limited to 
magnetic tapes, flash drives, personal computers, personal digital assistants 
(PDAs), cell or smart phones, multi-function printers, and laptops.  

 
h. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated and fully documented. 

The Contractor shall promptly notify the AAA and shall provide copies of 
investigative documentation and police reports as required by the AAA/CDA. 

 
i. The State reserves title to all State-purchased or financed property not fully 

consumed in the performance of this Agreement, unless otherwise required by 
federal law or regulations or as otherwise agreed by the parties.  

 
j. The Contractor shall exercise due care in the use, maintenance, protection, and 

preservation of such property during the period of the project and shall assume 
responsibility for replacement or repair of such property during the period of the 
project, or until the Contractor has complied with all written instructions from the AAA 
regarding the final disposition of the property.  

 
k. In the event of the Contractor's dissolution or upon termination of this Agreement, 

the Contractor shall provide a final property inventory to the AAA.  The AAA reserves 
the right to require the Contractor to transfer such property to another entity, or to 
the State.  

 
l. To exercise the above right, no later than 120 days after termination of the 

Agreement or notification of the Contractor's dissolution the AAA will issue specific 
written disposition instructions to the Contractor. 

 
m. The Contractor shall use the property for the purpose for which it was intended under 

the Agreement. When no longer needed for that use, the Contractor shall use it, if 
needed, and with written approval of the State for other purposes in this order:  

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

57



13 
 

1. Another State program providing the same or similar service 

2. Another State-funded program  

n. The Contractor may share use of the property and equipment or allow use by other 
programs, upon written approval of the AAA. As a condition of the approval, the AAA 
may require reimbursement under this Agreement for its use.  

o. The Contractor shall not use equipment or supplies acquired under this Agreement 
with federal and/or State monies for personal gain or to usurp the competitive 
advantage of a privately-owned business entity.  

p. If purchase of equipment is a reimbursable item, the equipment to be purchased will 
be specified in the Budget Summary. 

 
9. FACILITY CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIR 

 
a. When applicable for purposes of construction or repair of facilities, the Contractor 

shall comply with the provisions contained in the following acts and/or shall include 
such provisions in any applicable agreements with subcontractors: 

 
1. Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act [18 USC 874, 40 USC 3145] [29 CFR 3]. 

 
2. Davis-Bacon Act [40 USC 3141 et seq.] [29 CFR 5]. 

 
3. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act [40 USC 3701 et seq.] [29 

CFR 5, 6, 7, 8]. 
 

4. Executive Order 11246 of September 14, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment 
Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, 
as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations [41 CFR  60]. 

 
b. Contractor shall not use payments for construction, renovation, alteration, 

improvement, or repair of privately owned property which would enhance the 
owner’s value of such property to the benefit of the owner except where permitted 
by law. 

 
c. When funding is provided for construction and non-construction activities, 

Contractor must obtain prior written approval from the AAA before making any fund 
or budget transfers between construction and non-construction. 

 
10. LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 
a. AAA and Contractor shall comply with the provisions of the Act, any amendments 

thereto, federal and State regulations now or hereafter enacted pursuant to the Act, 
applicable provisions of CDA's Title III / VII Program Manual and of the Sub-Grant 
Award conditions between CDA and County, and any other statute, regulation or 
guideline applicable to this program.  AAA, and Contractor agree to administer this 
program in accordance with this Agreement and with all applicable local, State, and 
federal laws including, but not limited to, wages, hours of employment, and 
occupational safety, as well as all applicable fire, safety, health, and sanitation 
regulations, directives, guidelines, and/or manuals related to this Agreement. 
Contractor shall abide by all emergency orders by any federal, state, or local entity. 
The Contractor shall use the California Statewide Guidelines in the provision of OAA 
legal services. AAA, and Contractor further agree to resolve all issues using good 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

58



14 
 

administrative practices and sound judgment.  Contractor shall keep in effect all 
licenses, permits, notices, and certificates that are required by law. 

 
b. Contractor shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and contributions, 

including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment Insurance, Old Age Survivors 
Disability Insurance, and federal and State income taxes withheld, to the 
appropriate governmental agencies. 

 
c. If all funding provided herein exceeds $100,000, the Contractor shall comply with 

all applicable orders or requirements issued under the following laws: 
 

1. Clean Air Act as amended [42 USC 7401] 
 
2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended [33 USC 1251 et seq.] 

 
3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations [40 CFR 29] [Executive 

Order 11738]. 
 

4. State Contract Act [Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 10295 et seq.] 
 

5. Unruh Civil Rights Act [Cal Pub. Con Code § 2010] 
 

d. Contractor shall assure the CDA that it will abide by the Drug-Free Workplace Act 
of 1990, by signing the Drug-Free Workplace Certification, STD.21. 

 
11. LOBBYING CERTIFICATION 
 

Contractor, by signing this Agreement, hereby certifies to the best of his or her knowledge 
and belief, that: 
 
a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 

Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the 
awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any 
federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, 
loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 

to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, 
loan or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its 
instructions. 

 
c. The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 

award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers (including sub-grants, and 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements which exceed 
$100,000) and that sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

 
d. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when this Agreement was made or entered into. This certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this Agreement imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

59



15 
 

Code.  Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a 
civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 

 
12. PROHIBITIONS 

 
a. No person performing any service or providing any goods designated under this 

Contract shall participate in any political or religious activity on County time or in 
any manner involving the use of county property or expenditure of public funds nor 
conveying the implication of County endorsement or support for a candidate for 
local, state, or federal office.  
 

b. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Contract shall be construed to 
unlawfully limit an individual’s Constitutional rights. Accordingly, the limitations 
contained in this section are for the sole purpose of preventing proselytizing and 
politicking while engaged in the performance of services under this Contract. 

 
c. Kern County Administrative Bulletin No. 19 Free Speech Policy is attached as 

Exhibit G.  
 
13. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, and OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 
 

a. Contractor certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its 
subcontractors [45 CFR 92.35]: 

 
1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for disbarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal 
department or agency; and 

2. Have not within a three  (3) year period preceding this Agreement been 
convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission 
of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to 
obtain, or performing a public (federal, State, or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of federal or State antitrust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; and 

3. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and 

4. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement had one 
(1) or more public transactions (federal, State, or local) terminated for cause 
or default. 

5. Contractor shall report immediately to the County in writing any incidents of 
alleged fraud and/or abuse by either Contractor or Contractor’s 
subcontractor.  Contractor shall maintain any records, documents, or other 
evidence of fraud and abuse until otherwise notified by County. 

 
b. The Contractor agrees to timely execute any and all amendments to this Agreement 

or other required documentation relating to their subcontractor’s 
debarment/suspension status. 

 
14. NONDISCRIMINATION IN PROVIDING SERVICES AND EMPLOYMENT 

 
a. Contractor shall provide services to any person determined to be eligible to receive 

program services pursuant to the provisions of the Act unless such person is 
considered to be a source of disruption to other persons receiving services or is not 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

60



16 
 

capable of benefiting from such services. 
 

b. In providing services to the elderly, Contractor shall not discriminate against or deny 
service to any person on the basis of religion, color, ethnic group identification, sex, 
age, physical or mental disability, and shall not discriminate unlawfully against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, national 
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, mental disability, medical condition, marital 
status, age or sex.  Contractor shall also ensure that the evaluation and treatment 
of employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. 

 
c. Contractor shall comply with all federal statutes relating to nondiscrimination.  

These include but are not limited to: (a) Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 
USC 2000e, et seq.), as amended by the Equal Opportunity Act of March 24, 1972, 
as amended (20 U.S.C. Section 1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
as amended (29 U.S.C. Section794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. Sections 
6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse 
and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment, and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-
616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoholism; (g) Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 
U.S.C. Sections 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3) as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 
(42 U.S.C. Section 43601, et seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the 
sale, rental or financing of housing; (i) any other nondiscrimination provisions in the 
specific statute(s) under which application for federal assistance is being made; 
and, (j) the requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply. 
 

d. Equal Access to Federally Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities (Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964). Contractor shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d: 45 C.F.R. Part 80), which 
prohibits recipients of federal financial assistance from discrimination against 
persons based on race color, religion or national origin. 
 

e. Equal Access to State Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities. Contractor shall, 
unless exempted, ensure compliance with the requirements of Government Code 
§ 11135, et seq. and 2 CCR § 11140 et seq., which prohibit recipients of state 
financial assistance from discriminating against persons based on race, national 
origin, ethnic group identification, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, color, or 
disability. (22 CCR § 98323) 
 

f. Contractor assures the County and the State that it complies with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant to the 
ADA. (42 U.S.C. Section 12101, et seq.) 
 

g. The signatures affixed hereon shall constitute a certification, under the penalty of 
perjury under the laws of the State of California, that Contractor has, unless 
exempted, complied with the nondiscrimination program requirements of 
Government Code, Section 12990 (a-f) and Title 2, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 8103. 

 
h. Proof of age or citizen ship shall not be required as a condition of receiving services. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

61



17 
 

15. IMMIGRATION REFORM AND CONTROL ACT 
 
Contractor acknowledges that Contractor and all subcontractors hired by Contractor to 
perform services under this Agreement are aware of and understand the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act (“IRCA”).  Contractor is and shall remain in compliance with IRCA 
and shall ensure that any subcontractors hired by Contractor to perform services under this 
Agreement are in compliance with IRCA.  In addition, Contractor agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the County, its agents, officers and employees, from any liability, 
damages or causes of action arising out of or relating to any claims that Contractor’s 
employees, or the employees of any subcontractor hired by Contractor, are not authorized 
to work in the United States for Contractor or its subcontractor and/or any other claims 
based upon alleged IRCA violations committed by Contractor or Contractor’s 
subcontractor(s). 
 

16. NEGATION OF PARTNERSHIP 
 

In the performance of the services under this Agreement, Contractor shall be and 
acknowledges that Contractor is in fact and law, an independent contractor and not an 
agent or employee of County or CDA.  Contractor has and retains the right to exercise full 
supervision and control over the manner and methods of providing services to County 
under this Agreement. Contractor retains full supervision and control over the employment, 
direction, compensation and discharge of all persons assisting Contractor in the provision 
of services under this Agreement.  With respect to Contractor’s employees, if any, 
Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, benefits and other 
compensation, compliance with all occupational safety, welfare and civil rights laws, tax 
withholding and payment of employment taxes whether federal, State or local, and 
compliance with any and all other laws regulating employment. 

 
17. TERMINATION 

 
a. County may terminate performance of work under this Agreement, in whole or in part, 

without cause, if County determines that a termination is in the County’s best interest. 
County may terminate the Agreement upon ninety (90) days written notice to the 
Contractor. The Notice of Termination shall specify the extent of the termination and 
shall be effective ninety (90) days from the delivery of the Notice. The parties agree 
that if termination of the Contract is due to a reduction or deletion of funding by the 
Department of Finance (DOF), Legislature or Congress, the Notice of Termination 
shall be effective thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice. Contractor shall 
submit to County/AASD a Transition Plan as specified in Section 25 of this Agreement. 
The parties agree that for the terminated portion of the Agreement, the remainder of 
the Agreement shall be deemed to remain in effect and is not void.  

 
b. County may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work under 

this Agreement. County may terminate the Agreement upon thirty (30) days written 
notice to the Contractor. The Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) days 
from the delivery of the Notice of Termination unless the grounds for termination are 
due to threat to life, health or safety of the public and in that case, the termination shall 
take effect immediately. Contractor shall submit to County/AASD a Transition Plan as 
specified in Section 25 of this Agreement. The grounds for termination for cause shall 
include, but are not limited to, the following:  

 
1. In case of threat of life, health or safety of the public, termination of the 

Agreement shall be effective immediately.  
2. A violation of the law or failure to comply with any condition of this Agreement.  
3. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to endanger 

performance of this Agreement.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

62



18 
 

4. Failure to comply with reporting requirements.  
5. Evidence that the Contractor is in an unsatisfactory financial condition as 

determined by an audit of the Contractor or evidence of a financial condition 
that endangers performance of this Agreement and/or the loss of other funding 
sources.  

6. Delinquency of payment of taxes or payment of costs for performance of this 
Agreement in the ordinary course of business.  

7. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a substantial part of 
the Contractor’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, reorganization or the 
arrangement of liquidation, proceedings by or against the Contractor.  

8. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or commencement of 
garnishment proceedings against the Contractor’s assets or income.  

9. The commission of an act of bankruptcy.  
10. Finding of debarment or suspension. [Section 13] 
11. The Contractor’s organizational structure has materially changed. 
12. County determines that the Contractor may be considered a “high risk” agency 

as described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205. If such a determination is 
made, the Contractor may be subject to special conditions or restrictions.  

 
c. After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by County, the 

Contractor shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as applicable, 
regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any funds due under this clause.  

 
The Contractor shall:  
1. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination.  
2. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as necessary, 

to complete the continued portion of the Contract.  
3. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to the work terminated.  
4. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement proposals arising 

from the termination of subcontracts, (the approval or ratification of which will 
be final for purposes of this clause).  

 
d. Termination of this Agreement shall take effect immediately in the case of an 

emergency such as threat to life, health, or safety of the public. The effective date for 
Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty (30) days and Termination 
without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent to written notice to the Contractor. The 
notice shall describe the action being taken by County, the reason for such action and, 
any conditions of the termination, including the date of termination.  

 
e. In the event the Contractor no longer intends to provide services under this Agreement, 

the Contractor shall give County Notice of Intent to Terminate. Such notice shall be 
given in writing to County at least ninety (90) days prior to the proposed termination 
date. The Notice of Intent to Terminate shall include the reason for such action and 
the anticipated last day of work. The contractor shall submit a Transition Plan in 
accordance with Section 25 of this Agreement. 

 
18. Information Confidentiality and Security 

 
This Information Confidentiality and Security Requirements section sets forth the 
information privacy and security requirements the Contractor is obligated to follow with 
respect to all personal, confidential, and sensitive information (as defined herein) disclosed 
to the Contractor, or collected, created, maintained, stored, transmitted, or used by the 
Contractor for or on behalf of the AAA pursuant to Contractor's Agreement with AAA and 
the CDA Program Guide (located at: 
 https://aging.ca.gov/Providers_and_Partners/Area_Agencies_on_Aging/).  
(Such personal, confidential, and sensitive information is referred to here as AAA/CDA 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

63

https://aging.ca.gov/Providers_and_Partners/Area_Agencies_on_Aging/


19 
 

PSCI.) CDA, AAA and the Contractor desire to protect their privacy and provide for the 
security of AAA/CDA PSCI pursuant to this section of the Program Guide and in compliance 
with state and federal laws applicable to AAA/CDA PSCI. 

 
The terms of this section shall apply to all contracts, subcontracts, and subawards made 
by the Contractor in furtherance of the Agreement and services provided in accordance 
with the CDA Program Guide. The Contractor shall require its agents, subcontractors, or 
independent consultants (collectively, agents) to conform to this section regarding 
AAA/CDA PSCI. 

 
a. Definitions 

1. Breach: 
i. the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of AAA/CDA 

PSCI in a manner in which comprises the security, confidentiality, or 
integrity of the information; or 

ii. the same definition of "breach of the security system" set forth in 
California Civil Code section 1798.29, subdivision (f); or 

iii. the same as the definition of "breach" set forth in the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act Privacy Rule, 45 Code of Federal 
Regulations 164.402. 

2. Confidential Information: Information that is exempt from disclosure under 
the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Government Code 
section 7920.000 Et seq.). 

3. Disclosure: the release, transfer, provision of, access to, or divulging in any 
manner of information outside the entity holding the information. 

4. PSCI: "personal information", "sensitive information", and "confidential 
information" (as these terms are defined herein).  

5. Personal Information: Information that identifies or describes an 
individual, including, but not limited to, their name, social security number, 
physical description, home address, home telephone number, education, 
financial matters, and medical or employment history. It is CDA's policy to 
consider all information about individuals private unless such information is 
determined to be a public record. Personal Information also includes the 
following: 
i. Notice-Triggering Personal Information: Specific items of personal 

information (name plus Social Security number, driver license/California 
identification card number, or financial account number) that may 
trigger a requirement to notify individuals if it is acquired by an 
unauthorized person. For purposes of this provision, identity shall 
include, but not be limited to name, identifying number, symbol, or other 
identifying information assigned to the individual, such as finger or voice 
print or a photograph. See Civil Code section 1798.29. 

ii. Protected Health Information (PHI): The term "PHI" refers to and 
includes both "PHI" as defined at 45 CFR section 160.103 and 
Personal Information (PI) as defined in the Information Practices Act 
at California Civil Code section 1798.3(a). PHI includes information 
in any form, including paper, oral, and electronic. 

6. Public Information: Information that is not exempt from disclosure under 
the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Government Code 
sections 7920.000 Et seq.). 

7. Security Incident: 
i. A breach or attempted breach; or 
ii. The attempted or successful unauthorized access, disclosure, 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

64



20 
 

modification, or destruction of AAA/CDA PSCI, in violation of any state 
or federal law or in a manner not permitted under the CDA Program 
Guide; or 

iii. the attempted or successful modification or destruction of, or 
interference with, the Contractor's system operations in an information 
technology system, that negatively impacts the confidentiality, 
availability, or integrity of AAA/CDA PSCI; or 

iv. any event that is reasonably believed to have compromised the 
confidentiality, integrity, or availability of an information asset, system, 
process, data storage, or transmission. Furthermore, an information 
security incident may also include an event that constitutes a violation 
or imminent threat of violation of information security policies or 
procedures, including acceptable use policies. 

8. Sensitive Information: Information that requires special precautions to 
protect from unauthorized use, access, disclosure, modification, loss, or 
deletion. Sensitive Information may be either Public Information or 
Confidential Information. It is information that requires a higher-than-normal 
assurance of accuracy and completeness. Thus, the key factor for Sensitive 
Information is that of integrity. Typically, Sensitive Information includes 
records of agency financial transactions and regulatory actions. 

 
b. Disclosure Restrictions 

The Contractor shall protect AAA/CDA PSCI from unauthorized disclosure. The 
Contractor shall not disclose, except as otherwise specifically permitted by the 
Agreement and the CDA Program Guide, any AAA/CDA PSCI to anyone other 
than CDA personnel or programs without prior written authorization from the CDA. 
 
1. The Contractor and CDA mutually agree that the creation, receipt, 

maintenance, transmittal, and disclosure of data from CDA containing PHI 
shall be subject to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 
1996 and its implementing privacy and security regulations at 45 CFR Parts 
160 and 164 (collectively and as used in this Agreement, HIPAA.). The 
Contractor agrees to provide the same, or greater, level of protection to CDA 
data that would be required if the Contractor were a Business Associate 
under HIPAA, regardless of whether the Contractor is or is not a Business 
Associate. 

2. To the extent that other state and/or federal laws provide additional, stricter, 
and/or more protective (collectively, more protective) privacy and/or security 
protections to AAA/CDA PSCI covered under the CDA Program Guide 
beyond those provided through HIPAA, Contractor agrees: 

i. To comply with the more protective of the privacy and security 
standards set forth in applicable state or federal laws to the extent 
such standards provide a greater degree of protection and security 
than HIPAA or are otherwise more favorable to the individuals whose 
information is concerned; and 

ii. To treat any violation of such additional and/or more protective 
standards as a breach or security incident, as appropriate. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

65



21 
 

iii. Examples of laws that provide additional and/or stricter privacy 
protections to certain types of AAA/CDA PSCI, as defined in Section 
3.11.1 of the CDA Program Guide, include, but are not limited to the 
Information Practices Act, California Civil Code sections 1798-
1798.78, Confidentiality of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 
42 CFR Part 2, Welfare and Institutions Code section 5328, and 
California Health and Safety Code section 11845.5. 

iv. If the Contractor is a Qualified Service Organization (QSO) as defined 
in 42 CFR section 2.11, the Contractor agrees to be bound by and 
comply with subdivisions (2)(i) and (2)(ii) of that section. 

c. Use Restrictions 
The Contractor shall not use any AAA/CDA PSCI for any purpose other than performing 
the Contractor's obligations under the Agreement and the CDA Program Guide. 

d. Safeguards and Security 
The Contractor shall implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of 
AAA/CDA PSCI including electronic AAA/CDA PSCI that it creates, receives, maintains, 
uses, or transmits on behalf of CDA. The Contractor shall develop and maintain a written 
information privacy and security program that includes administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards appropriate to the size and complexity of the Contractor's operations 
and the nature and scope of its activities. The Contractor's administrative, technical, and 
physical safeguards shall include, at a minimum: 

1. Technical Security Controls: 
The Contractor shall, at a minimum, utilize a National Institute of Standards and 
Technology Special Publication (NIST SP) 800-53 compliant security framework 
when selecting and implementing its security controls and shall maintain 
continuous compliance with NIST SP 800-53 as it may be updated from time to 
time. The current version of NIST SP 800-53, Revision 5, is available online at 
https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/detail/sp/800-53/rev-5/final; updates will be 
available online at https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/sp800. 

2. Removable Media Devices: 
All electronic files that contain AAA/CDA PSCI data must be encrypted when 
stored on any removable media or portable device (i.e., USB thumb drives, 
floppies, CD/DVD, smart devices, tapes, etc.). PSCI must be encrypted, at a 
minimum, using a FIPS 140-2 certified algorithm or successor standards, such 
as Advanced Encryption Standard (AES), with a 128bit key or higher. 

3. Patch Management: 
The Contractor shall apply security patches and upgrades and keep virus 
software up to date on all systems which PHI and other confidential information 
may be used. 

4. Confidentiality Statement: 
All people that will be working with AAA/CDA PSCI must sign a confidentiality 
statement that includes, at a minimum, General Use, Security and Privacy 
Safeguards, Unacceptable Use, and Enforcement Policies. The statement must 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

66

https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/detail/sp/800-53/rev-5/final;
https://csrc.nist.gov/publications/sp800.


 

22 
 

be signed by all people prior to accessing AAA/CDA PSCI. The statement must 
be renewed annually. The Contractor shall retain each person's written 
confidentiality statement for CDA inspection for a period of six (6) years following 
contract termination. 

5. Transmission and Storage of PSCI: 
All persons that will be working with AAA/CDA PSCI shall employ with FIPS 140-
3 compliant encryption of PHI, at rest and in motion, unless it has been 
determined that such encryption is unreasonable and inappropriate based upon 
a risk assessment and equivalent alternative measures are in place and 
documented as such. 

6. Minimum Necessary: 
Only the minimum necessary amount of AAA/CDA PSCI required to perform 
necessary business functions applicable to the terms of the CDA Program Guide 
may be used, disclosed, copied, downloaded, or exported. 

7. Antivirus Software: 
All workstations, laptops and other systems that process and/or store AAA/CDA 
PSCI must install and actively use a comprehensive anti-virus software solution 
with automatic updates scheduled at least daily. 

8. Data Security: 
AAA/CDA PSCI will be stored separately from other customers' data. Data will 
be stored and processed within the continental United States, and remote 
access to data from outside the continental United States will be prohibited. Data 
will be encrypted such that unauthorized parties are unable to read the data 
within the database/data repositories or any backups.  

e. Employee Training 
All persons who assist in the performance of functions or activities on behalf of CDA, or 
access or disclose AAA/CDA PSCI, must complete information privacy and security 
training, at least annually, at the Contractor's expense. Each person who receives 
information privacy and security training must sign a certification, indicating the member's 
name and the date on which the training was completed. These certifications must be 
retained for a period of six (6) years following contract termination. 

f. Employee Discipline 
Appropriate sanctions must be applied against persons who fail to comply with privacy 
policies and procedures or any provisions of these requirements, including termination 
of employment where appropriate. 

g. Background Check 
Before a person may access AAA/CDA PSCI, a thorough background check of that 
person must be conducted, with evaluation of the results to assure that there is no 
indication that the person may present a risk to the security or integrity of confidential 
data or a risk for theft or misuse of confidential data. The Contractor shall retain each 
person's background check documentation for a period of three (3) years following 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

67



 

23 
 

contract termination. 

1. Mailing: 
Mailings of AAA/CDA PSCI shall be sealed and secured from damage or 
inappropriate viewing of PSCI to the extent possible. Mailings which include 
500 or more individually identifiable records of AAA/CDA PSCI in a single 
package shall be sent using a tracked mailing method which includes 
verification of delivery and receipt, unless the prior written permission of CDA 
to use another method is obtained. 

2. Security Officer: 
The Contractor shall designate a Security Officer to oversee its data security 
program who will be responsible for carrying out its privacy and security programs 
and for communicating on security matters with CDA. Mitigation of Harmful 
Effects: The Contractor shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect 
that is known to the Contractor of a use or disclosure of PSCI and other 
confidential information in violation of the requirements of the CDA Program 
Guide. 

3. Access to, and Accounting For, Disclosure of PSCI: 
The Contractor shall document and make available to CDA or (at the direction 
of CDA) to an Individual such disclosures of AAA/CDA PSCI and information 
related to such disclosures necessary to respond to a proper request by the 
subject Individual for an accounting of disclosures of personal information as 
required by 45 CFR section 164.524 or any applicable state or federal law. 

h. Access to Practices, Books, and Records 
The Contractor shall make its internal practices, books, and records relating to the 
use and disclosure of PSCI on behalf of CDA available to CDA upon reasonable 
request. 

i. Special Provision for SSA Data 
If the Contractor receives data from or on behalf of CDA that was verified by or 
provided by the Social Security Administration (SSA Data) and is subject to an 
agreement between CDA and SSA, the Contractor shall provide, upon request by 
CDA, a list of all employees and agents who have access to such data, including 
employees and agents of its agents, to CDA. 

j. Breaches and Security Incidents  
The Contractor shall implement reasonable systems for the discovery and prompt 
reporting of any breach or security incident, and take the following steps: 

1. Notice to CDA: 
The Contractor shall notify CDA immediately by email or telephone of the 
discovery of: 

i. Unsecured AAA/CDA PSCI if the AAA/CDA PSCI is reasonably believed 
to have been accessed or acquired by an unauthorized person. 

ii. Any suspected security incident which risks unauthorized access to 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

68



 

24 
 

AAA/CDA PSCI and/or other confidential information. 

iii. Any intrusion or unauthorized access, use, or disclosure of AAA/CDA 
PSCI in violation of this Agreement; or 

iv. Potential loss of confidential data affecting this agreement. 

v. Notice via email shall be made using the current CDA 1025 "Information 
Security Incident Report" forms and shall include all information known 
at the time the incident is reported. The forms are available online at: 
https://aging.ca.gov/Information security/  

vi. Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident, intrusion, or 
unauthorized access, use or disclosure of AAA/CDA PSCI, the 
Contractor shall take: 

(a) Prompt corrective action to mitigate any risks or damages involved 
with the security incident or breach; and 

(b) Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure is required by 
applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. 

2. Investigation of Security Incident or Breach 
The Contractor shall immediately investigate such security incident, breach, or 
unauthorized use or disclosure of AAA/CDA PSCI. 

3. Complete Report 
The Contractor shall provide a complete report of the investigation to CDA within 
(10) working days of the discovery of the breach or unauthorized use or disclosure. 
The complete report must include an assessment of all known factors relevant to 
a determination of whether a breach occurred under applicable federal and state 
laws. The report shall include a full, detailed corrective action plan including 
information on measures that were taken to halt and/or contain improper use or 
disclosure. If CDA requests information in addition to this report, the Contractor 
shall make reasonable efforts to provide CDA with such information. CDA will 
review and approve or disapprove the Contractor's determination of whether a 
breach occurred, whether the security incident or breach is reportable to the 
appropriate entities, if individual notifications are required, and the Contractor's 
corrective action plan. 

i. If the Contractor does not submit a complete report within the ten (10) 
working day timeframe, the Contractor shall request approval from CDA 
within the ten (10) working day timeframe of a new submission timeframe 
for the complete report. 

4. Notification of Individuals 
If the cause of a breach is attributable to the Contractor or its agents, the 
Contractor shall notify individuals accordingly and shall pay all costs of such 
notifications as well as any costs associated with the breach. The notifications 
shall comply with applicable federal and state law. CDA shall approve the time, 
manner, and content of any such notifications and their review and approval 
must be obtained before the notifications are made. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

69

https://aging.ca.gov/Information


 

25 
 

 
5. Responsibility for Reporting Breaches to Entities other than CDA 

If the cause of a breach of AAA/CDA PSCI is attributable to the Contractor or 
its subcontractors, the Contractor is responsible for all required reporting of the 
breach as required by applicable federal and state law. 
 

6. Submission of Sample Notification to Attorney General: 
If notification to more than 500 individuals is required pursuant to California Civil 
Code section 1798.29, regardless of whether the Contractor is considered only 
a custodian and/or non-owner of the AAA/CDA PSCI, the Contractor shall, at its 
sole expense and at the sole election of CDA, either: 
 
i. Electronically submit a single sample copy of the security breach 

notification, excluding any personally identifiable information, to the Attorney 
General pursuant to the format, content, and timeliness provisions of 
Section 1798.29, subdivision (e). The Contractor shall inform the CDA 
Privacy Officer of the time, manner, and content of any such submissions 
prior to the transmission of such submissions to the Attorney General; or 

ii. Cooperate with and assist CDA in its submission of a sample copy of the 
notification to the Attorney General. 

 
k. Contact Information  

To direct communications to the above referenced CDA staff, the Contractor shall 
initiate contact as indicated herein. AAA reserves the right to make changes to the 
contact information below by giving written notice to the AAA who will notify Contractor. 
 

AAA Director AAA Contract Monitoring Information 
Security Officer 

Kern County Aging and Adult Services Kern County Aging and Adult Services 
5357 Truxtun Avenue 5357 Truxtun Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93309 Bakersfield, CA 93309 
661-868-1000 661-868-1000 

   
l. Responsibility of AAA 

CDA agrees to not request the Contractor use or disclose PSCI in any manner that 
would not be permissible under HIPAA and/or other applicable federal and/or state law. 

 
m. Audits, Inspections, and Enforcement 

1. CDA Right to Inspect: 
From time to time, CDA may inspect the facilities, systems, books, and records 
of the Contractor to monitor compliance with the safeguards required in the 
Information Confidentiality and Security Requirements (ICSR) section. The 
Contractor shall promptly remedy any violation of any provision of this ICSR 
section. The fact that CDA inspects, or fails to inspect, or has the right to inspect, 
the Contractor's facilities, systems, and procedures does not relieve the 
Contractor of its responsibility to comply with this ICSR section. 
 

2. Notification to CDA in Event the Contractor is Subject to Other Audit: 
If the Contractor is the subject of an audit, compliance review, investigation, or 
any proceeding that is related to the performance of its obligations pursuant to 
the Agreement and/or the CDA Program Guide or is the subject of any judicial 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

70



 

26 
 

or administrative proceeding alleging a violation of HIPAA, the Contractor shall 
promptly notify CDA unless it is legally prohibited from doing so. 

 
n. Miscellaneous Provisions 

1. Disclaimer: 
CDA makes no warranty or representation that compliance by the Contractor 
with the CDA Program Guide will satisfy the Contractor's business needs or 
compliance obligations. The Contractor is solely responsible for all decisions 
made by the Contractor regarding the safeguarding of AAA/CDA PSCI and 
other confidential information. 
 

2. Amendment: 
1. Any provision of the Agreement or the CDA Program Guide which conflicts 

with current or future applicable federal or state laws is hereby amended 
to conform to the provisions of those laws. Such amendment of the 
Agreement and/or the CDA Program Guide shall be effective on the 
effective date of the laws necessitating it and shall be binding on the 
parties even though such amendment may not have been reduced to 
writing and formally agreed upon and executed by the parties 

2. Failure by the Contractor to take necessary actions required by 
amendments to the Agreement and/or the CDA Program Guide shall 
constitute a material violation. 

 
3. Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings 

The Contractor shall make itself, its employees, and agents available to CDA at 
no cost to CDA to testify as witnesses in the event of litigation or administrative 
proceedings being commenced against CDA, its director, officers, or employees 
based upon claimed violation of laws relating to security and privacy, and which 
involves inactions or actions by the Contractor (except where the Contractor or 
its subcontractor, workforce employee, or agent is a named adverse party). 

 
4. No Third-Party Beneficiaries 

Nothing in the CDA Program Guide is intended to or shall confer upon any third 
person, any rights, or remedies whatsoever. 

 
5. Interpretation 

The terms and conditions in the CDA Program Guide shall be interpreted as 
broadly as necessary to implement and comply with regulations and applicable 
laws. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the terms and conditions of the 
CDA Program Guide shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and 
is consistent with federal and state laws and regulations. 
 

6. No Waiver of Obligations 
No change, waiver, or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any 
one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any 
continuing or other obligation or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation on 
any other occasion. 

 
7. Return or Destruction of AAA/CDA PSCI on Expiration or Termination 

At expiration or termination of the Agreement, if feasible, the Contractor shall 
return or destroy all AAA/CDA PSCI that the Contractor still maintains in any 
form and retain no copies of such information. If return or destruction is not 
feasible, CDA and the Contractor shall determine the terms and conditions 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

71



 

27 
 

under which the Contractor may retain the PSCI. 
 

8. Data Sanitization 
All AAA/CDA PSCI must be sanitized using NIST Special Publication 800-88 
standard methods for data sanitization when the AAA/CDA PSCI is no longer 
needed. 
 

9. Survival 
If return or destruction of AAA/CDA PSCI is not feasible upon the completion or 
termination of the Agreement, the respective rights, and obligations of the 
Contractor under this Section shall survive the completion or termination of the 
Agreement between the Contractor and CDA. The Contractor shall also limit 
further uses and disclosures of AAA/CDA PSCI to those purposes that make 
the return or destruction of the information infeasible. 

 
19. COPYRIGHTS AND RIGHTS IN DATA 

 
a. If any material funded by this Agreement is subject to copyright, the State reserves the 

right to copyright such material and the Contractor agrees not to copyright such 
material, except as set forth in Section e of this Article.  

 
b. The Contractor may request permission to copyright material by writing to the Director 

of County, who may then submit a request to the Director of CDA. The Director of CDA 
shall grant permission or give reason for denying permission to the Contractor in writing 
within sixty (60) days of receipt of the request.  

 
c. If the material is copyrighted with the consent of CDA, the State reserves a royalty-free, 

non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, prepare derivative works, publish, 
distribute and use such materials, in whole or in part, and to authorize others to do so, 
provided written credit is given to the author. 

 
d. The Contractor certifies that it has appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure 

that State funds will not be used in the performance of this contract for the acquisition, 
operation, or maintenance of computer software in violation of copyright laws.   

 
e. The Contractor shall not publish or transfer any materials, as defined in paragraph f 

below, produced or resulting from activities supported by this Agreement without the 
express written consent of the Director of CDA. That consent shall be given, or the 
reasons for denial shall be given, and any conditions under which it is given or denied, 
within thirty (30) days after the written request is received by County. CDA may request 
a copy of the material for review prior to approval of the request. This subsection is not 
intended to prohibit the Contractor from sharing identifying client information authorized 
by the participant or summary program information which is not client specific. 

 
f. As used in this Agreement, the term “subject data” means writings, sound recordings, 

pictorial reproductions, drawings, designs or graphic representations, procedural 
manuals, forms, diagrams, workflow charts, equipment descriptions, data files and data 
processing or computer programs, and works of any similar nature (whether or not 
copyrighted or copyrightable) which are first produced or developed under this 
Agreement. The term does not include financial reports, cost analyses and similar 
information incidental to contract administration, or the exchange of that information 
between AAAs to facilitate uniformity of contract and program administration on a 
statewide basis.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

72



 

28 
 

 
g. Subject only to other provisions of this Agreement, the State may use, duplicate, or 

disclose in any manner, and have or permit others to do so subject to State and federal 
law, all subject data delivered under this Agreement.  

 
h. The CDA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, 

publish or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for federal or state government 
purposes the following: 

 
1. The copyright/trademark in any work developed under a grant, sub grant or 

contract under a grant or sub grant. 
2. Any rights of copyright/trademark to which a AAA or subcontractor purchases 

ownership with grant funds. 
 

i. All press releases or any program advertisement utilizing the California Department of 
Aging (CDA) logo must be approved by the CDA Office of Communications prior to 
dissemination. Approval is also required for all use of CDA logo or mention of CDA in 
materials.   The Contractor should email the draft press release to the designated Kern 
County Aging and Adult Services (KCAASD) staff member representative at least 
twenty-eight (28) days in advance of the announcement or event. The KCAASD staff 
member will email the draft press release to communications@aging.ca.gov and copy 
the appropriate CDA Program team. 
 

j. The Contractor must coordinate media and kick-off events with KCAASD, who will 
coordinate with the CDA Office of Communications. 

 
k. If Agreement funds are used for outreach, including paid and earned advertising, all 

materials must receive preapproval from KCAASD before publication or production.  
KCAASD will request approval from the CDA Office of Communications. Any mention 
of the CDA name or organization in press or outreach materials requires prior 
approval. The appropriate KCAASD representative will coordinate this process with 
CDA. Materials will be submitted by KCAASD to the appropriate CDA program 
manager for the CDA Office of Communications for review. They will be assessed in 
batches on the first and fifteenth of each month, with a minimum twenty (20) business 
day approval period. 

 
20. LICENSES 
  

Contractor and its personnel shall obtain and maintain, during the term of this Agreement, all 
appropriate licenses, permits and certificates required by all applicable local, State, and/or 
federal laws, regulations, guidelines, and directives for the operation of its facility and for the 
provision of services hereunder. 
 

21. REPORTS, RECORDS AND AUDITS 
 

a. Reports: Contractor shall submit informational reports as required by CDA or AAA 
concerning program and fiscal activities. The reports will be submitted in a format 
(electronic and/or written), as required by the CDA or AAA. Periodic reports will be 
required identifying and tracking unmet needs for the nutrition program (congregate 
and home delivered) and projected costs associated in addressing these unmet needs. 

 
b. Program Records: Contractor shall maintain adequate program records of services 

provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services and accountability of 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

73



 

29 
 

expenditures. All program records shall be retained for a minimum of five years 
following expiration or termination of this Agreement, or until County, CDA, State and/or 
federal audit findings applicable to such services are fully resolved, whichever is later.  
All program records shall be retained by Contractor at its address as set forth herein 
and during such retention period shall be made available at reasonable times to 
authorized CDA, AAA, or other federal, State or local representatives for the purposes 
of project review and/or fiscal audit. In addition to requirements set forth under this 
paragraph, Contractor shall comply with any additional project report requirements of 
CDA or AAA. 

 
c. Financial Records: Contractor shall prepare and maintain complete financial records in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the procedures set out 
by the CDA.  Entries in all financial records shall identify and track the categorical 
sources of revenue and income for the purposes of which each is intended as identified 
in the Budget (Exhibits B and C).  Such records shall also identify all costs by each 
category of program activity by each line item identified on said budget.  All financial 
records must be readily traceable to applicable source documentation (e.g., employee 
timecards, remittance advises, vendor invoices, utilization records, subsidiary ledgers 
and journals, appointment logs, etc.).  Any apportionment of costs shall be made in 
accordance with the provisions of CDA's Title III/VII Program Manual and the Fiscal 
Management Manual for AAA Service Providers.  All financial records shall be retained 
for a minimum of five years following expiration or termination of this Agreement or until 
CDA and all other federal and State audit findings are fully resolved, whichever is later.  
All financial records shall be retained by Contractor at its address as set forth herein 
and during such retention period shall be made available at reasonable times to 
authorized CDA or other State or federal representatives for the purpose of inspection 
or audit. 

 
d. Preservation of Records:  Within forty-eight (48) hours after Contractor’s facility is 

closed or Contractor discontinues operations, Contractor shall notify AAA in writing and 
make arrangements for the preservation of the project and financial records in 
accordance with subsections b and c, above. 

 
e. Audit Reports: Contractor agrees to participate in the single audit required of the 

Contractor in accordance with Public Law 104-156, and Office of Management and 
Budget [2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F Audit Requirements] [formerly OMB Circular A-133] 
and all other federal and State requirements. The specific requirements for 
documentation may be obtained from AAA upon request. If Contractor obtains audits 
for their agencies, they shall provide AAA with two (2) copies of their audit. Copies of 
the completed audit shall be submitted within the earlier of thirty (30) days after receipt 
of the auditor’s report or nine months after the end of the audit period. Contractor shall 
permit CDA and County, access to all audit reports and work papers of independent 
auditors of Contractor and subcontractors.  CDA and County shall have the option to 
perform audits and/or additional work as needed. Audits to be performed shall be, 
minimally, financial and compliance audits and may include economy and efficiency 
and/or program results audits.       

 
For the purposes of reporting, the Contractor shall ensure that State-Funded 
expenditures are displayed discretely along with the related federal expenditures in the 
single audit report’s “Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards” (SEFA) under the 
appropriate Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number.  
For State contracts that do not have CFDA numbers, the Contractor shall ensure that 
the State-funded expenditures are discretely identified in the SEFA by the appropriate 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

74



 

30 
 

program name, identifying grant/contract number, and as passed through the California 
Department of Aging. 
 
The following closely related programs identified by CFDA number are to be considered 
as an “other cluster” for purposes of determining major programs or whether a program-
specific audit may be elected.  The Contractor shall identify the CFDA titles and 
numbers to the independent auditor conducting the organization’s single audit along 
with each of its subcontractors.  The funding source (Federal Grantor) for the following 
programs is the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for 
Community Living. 
 
93.041  Special Programs for the Aging-Title VII-A, Chapter 3 Programs  

for Prevention of Elder Abuse, Neglect, and Exploitation (Title VII-A, 
Chapter 3). 

 
93.042 Special Programs for the Aging-Title III B & VII-A, Chapter 2 Long Term 

Care Ombudsman Services for Older Individuals (Title III B & VII-A, 
Chapter 2).  

93.042 American Rescue Plan, 2021, Long Term Care Ombudsman Older 
Americans Act Title VII Ombudsman 

 
93.043  Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part D-Disease                             

 Prevention and Health Promotion Services (Title III D).    
93.043 American Rescue Plan, 2021, Preventative Health Older Americans Act 

Title III D 
 
93.044  Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part B-Grants for                         

 Supportive Services and Senior Centers (Title III B). 
93.044 American Rescue Plan, 2021, Supportive Services Older Americans Act 

Title III B 
 
93.045  Special Programs for the Aging-Title III, Part C-Nutrition                            

 Services (Title III C). 
93.045 American Rescue Plan, 2021, Congregate Meals Older Americans Act 

Title III C1 and Home Delivered Meals Title III C2 
 
93.052  National Family Caregiver Support Program-Title III, Part E 
93.052 American Rescue Plan, 2021, Family Caregivers Older Americans Act 

Title III E 
 
93.053  Nutrition Services Incentive Program. 
 
“Cluster of programs” means a grouping of closely related programs that share common 
compliance requirements. The types of clusters of programs are research and 
development, student financial aid, and other clusters. “Other clusters” are defined by 
the consolidated CFR in the Compliance Supplement or as designated by a State for 
federal awards provided to its subcontractors that meet the definition of “cluster of 
programs.”  When designating an “other cluster,” a state shall identify the federal 
awards included in the cluster and advise the subcontractors of compliance 
requirements applicable to the cluster.  A “cluster of programs” shall be considered as 
one program for determining major programs, as described in 45 CFR 75.525(a), 
whether a program-specific audit may be elected.  (Federal Office of Management and 
Budget, [45 CFR 75, Requirements], Audits of States, Local Governments, 45 CFR 75 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

75



 

31 
 

Appendix V to part 75 F. 1 and Non Profit Organizations 45 CFR 75 Appendix IV to part 
75 C. 2.a.). 

 
f. Financial Closeout Reports: Contractor shall provide AAA with two copies of an annual 

Closeout Report within fifteen (15) days following the fiscal year end.  Attached to each 
Closeout Report shall be a financial statement and a reconciliation of the Profit and 
Loss Statement to the Closeout report The Closeout Report shall be prepared in a form 
acceptable to AAA. 

 
g. Contractor shall maintain complete records (which shall include, but not be limited to, 

accounting records, employee salary and benefits records, contracts, agreements, 
letters of agreement, insurance documentation, Memoranda and/or Letters of 
Understanding and patient records, Financial Closeout Report to the audited financial 
statements, a summary worksheet of results from the audit resolutions performed for 
all subcontractors with support documentation, and electronic files) of its activities and 
expenditures hereunder and shall make all records pertaining to this Agreement 
available for inspection and audit by the AAA and the State or its duly authorized 
agents, at any time during normal business hours.  All such records must be maintained 
and made available by Contractor: (1) until an audit of the July 1, 2024 through June 
30, 2025 period of expenditures has occurred and an audit resolution has been issued 
or unless otherwise authorized in writing by the CDA’s Audit and Risk Management 
Branch, or (2) for such longer period, if any, as is required by applicable statute or by 
any other clause of this Agreement. 

 
h. If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the work 

terminated shall be preserved and made available for the same periods as specified 
earlier in this Agreement. 

 
i. In the event of any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit exception, or other action involving 

the records, all records relative to such action shall be maintained and made available 
until every action has been cleared to the satisfaction of AAA. 

 
j. Adequate source documentation of each transaction shall be maintained relative to the 

allowability of expenditures reimbursed by AAA/CDA under this Agreement. Source 
documentation includes, but is not limited to: vendor invoices, bank statements, 
cancelled checks, bank/credit card statements, contracts and agreements, employee 
time sheets, purchase orders, indirect cost allocation plans. If the allowability of 
expenditures cannot be determined because records or documentation of the 
Contractor are nonexistent or inadequate according to guidelines set forth in 2 CFR 
200.302 and 45 CFR 75.302, the expenditures will be questioned in the audit and may 
be disallowed by AAA/CDA during the audit resolution process. 

 
k. Contractor agrees that the CDA shall have the right to review, obtain, and copy all 

records pertaining to the administrative, fiscal and program performance under this 
Agreement.  Contractor agrees to provide CDA with any relevant information requested 
and shall permit CDA access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal 
business hours for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting and copying 
such books, records, accounts, and other material that may be relevant to a matter 
under investigation for the purpose of determining compliance with Government Code 
section 8546.7, et seq.  Contractor further agrees to maintain such records for a period 
of five (5) years after final payment under this Agreement. 

 
l. Any duly authorized representative of the federal or State government, which includes 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

76



 

32 
 

but is not limited to the State Auditor, CDA Staff, and any entity selected by State to 
perform inspections, shall have the right to monitor and audit Contractor and 
subcontractors under this Agreement through on-site inspections, audits, and other 
applicable means the State determines necessary. In the event that CDA is informed 
of an audit by an outside federal or State government entity affecting the Contractor, 
CDA will provide timely notice to AAA, who will provide notice to Contractor. Contractor 
shall make available all reasonable information necessary to substantiate that 
expenditures under this agreement are allowable and allocable, including, but not 
limited to accounting records, vendor invoices, bank statements, cancelled checks, 
bank/credit card statements, contracts and agreements, employee time sheets, 
purchase orders, indirect cost allocation plans. Contractor shall agree to make such 
information available to the federal government, the State, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, including representatives of the entity selected by State to 
perform inspections, for examination, copying, or mechanical reproduction, on or off the 
premises of the appropriate entity upon a reasonable request. 

 
m. Contractor shall submit informational reports as required by the California Department 

of Aging (CDA) or County concerning program and fiscal activities.  Reports shall be 
submitted in a format, (electronic and/or written) as required by the CDA or AAA. 
Contractor shall prepare and submit to the County by the 20th of the month a Claim for 
Payment, Revenue and Expense Report, and all back up pertaining to Revenue and 
Expenditures for the previous month’s activity.  By the 15th of each month all-previous 
month’s statistical information is to be submitted to the AAA in the required format. 

 
n. If during the term of this Agreement, the total funds awarded equal or exceed $10,000, 

Contractor agrees to be subject to the examination and audit by the Bureau of State 
Audits for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this Agreement. 

 
o. After the authorized period has expired, confidential records shall be destroyed by 

shredding and disposed of in a manner that will maintain confidentiality. 
 

p. UEI Number and Related Information 
 

1. The Unique Entity Identifier changed from the DUNS Number to the Unique 
Identity ID (generated by SAM.gov) on April 4, 2022. The UEI number must be 
provided to County prior to the execution of this Agreement. Business entities may 
register for a UEI number at https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei.  

 
2. The Contractor must register the UEI number and maintain an “Active” status 

within the federal system for Award Management available online at 
https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1. 

 
3. If County cannot access or verify “Active” status the Contractor’s UEI information, 

which is related to this Agreement on the Federal Funding Accountability and 
Transparency Act Sub Award Reporting System (SAM.gov) due to errors in the 
Contractor’s data entry for its UEI number, the Contractor must immediately 
update the information as required. 

 
22. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the State and County, their agents, 
officers and employees, volunteers and authorized representatives from and against all suits, 
claims, actions, proceedings, demands, liability, costs and charges, legal expenses and other 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

77



 

33 
 

costs in the form of damages or penalties levied against the County, or any of its agents, 
officers, directors and employees in any way caused by the Contractor, or any person acting 
for or on Contractor’s behalf, occasioned by the operations which are the subject of this 
Agreement. 

 
23. CHOICE OF LAW/VENUE 
 

The parties hereto agree that the provisions of this Agreement shall be construed pursuant to 
the laws of the State of California. This Agreement has been entered into and is to be 
performed in the County of Kern.  Accordingly, the parties agree that the venue of any action 
relating to this Agreement shall be in the County of Kern. 
 

24. REMEDIES 
 

The Contractor agrees that any remedy provided in this Agreement is in addition to and not in 
derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA as a result of breach of this 
Agreement by the Contractor, whether such breach occurs before or after completion of the 
project. 
 

25. TRANSITION PLAN 
 
a. The Contractor shall submit a transition plan to the County/AASD within fifteen (15) 

days of delivery of a written Notice of Termination (pursuant to Section 17 of this 
Agreement) for a service funded either by Title III or Title VII. The transition plan must 
be approved by the County/AASD and shall at a minimum include the following:  

 
1. A description of how clients will be notified about the change in their service 

provider.  
2. A plan to communicate with other organizations that can assist in locating 

alternative services.  
3. A plan to inform community referral sources of the pending termination of the 

service and what alternatives, if any, exist for future referrals.  
4. A plan to transfer any confidential medical and client records to the County.  
5. A plan to dispose of confidential records in accordance with applicable laws and 

regulations.  
6. A plan for adequate staff to provide continued care through the remaining term 

of the agreement.  
7. A full inventory and plan to dispose of, transfer, or return to the County all 

equipment purchased during the entire operation of the Agreement.  
8. Additional information as necessary to effect a safe transition of clients to other 

community service providers. 
 

b. The Contractor shall implement the transition plan as approved by the County. The 
County will monitor the Contractor’s progress in carrying out all elements of the 
transition plan.  

 
c. If the Contractor fails to provide and implement the transition plan as required under 

Section 17 of this Agreement, the Contractor will implement a transition plan submitted 
by County to the Contractor following the Notice of Termination.  

 
26. SEVERABILITY 
 

Should any part, term portion or provision of this Agreement be finally decided to be in conflict 
with any law or the United States or the State of California, or otherwise be unenforceable or 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

78



 

34 
 

ineffectual, the validity of the remaining parts, terms, portions, or provisions shall be deemed 
severable and shall not be affected thereby, provided such remaining portions or provisions 
can be construed in substance to constitute the agreement which the parties intended to enter 
into in the first instance. 
 

27. INSURANCE 
 

Contractor, in order to protect County and its board members, officials, agents, officers, and 
employees against all claims and liability for death, injury, loss and damage as a result of 
Contractor’s actions in connection with the performance of Contractor’s obligations, as required 
in this Agreement, shall secure and maintain insurance as described below. Contractor shall 
not perform any work under this Agreement until Contractor has obtained all insurance required 
under this section and the required certificates of insurance and all required endorsements 
have been filed with the Department’s Contract Coordinator.  Receipt of evidence of insurance 
that does not comply with all applicable insurance requirements shall not constitute a waiver 
of the insurance requirements set forth herein. The required documents must be signed by the 
authorized representative of the insurance company shown on the certificate.  Upon request, 
Contractor shall supply proof that such person is an authorized representative thereof and is 
authorized to bind the named underwriter(s) and their company to the coverage, limits and 
termination provisions shown thereon. The Contractor shall promptly deliver to the 
Department’s Contract Coordinator a certificate of insurance, and all required endorsements, 
with respect to each renewal policy, as necessary to demonstrate the maintenance of the 
required insurance coverage for the term specified herein.  Such certificates and endorsements 
shall be delivered to the Department’s Contract Coordinator not less than 30 days prior to the 
expiration date of any policy and bear a notation evidencing payment of the premium thereof if 
so requested. Contractor shall immediately pay any deductibles and self-insured retentions 
under all required insurance policies upon the submission of any claim by Contractor or County 
as an additional insured. 

 
a. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance Requirement in the event 

Contractor has employees who may perform any services pursuant to this Agreement, 
Contractor shall submit written proof that Contractor is insured against liability for 
workers’ compensation in accordance with the provisions of section 3700 of the 
California Labor Code. 

 
 Contractor shall require any sub-contractors to provide workers’ compensation for all 

of the subcontractors’ employees, unless the sub-contractors’ employees are covered 
by the insurance afforded by Contractor.  If any class of employees engaged in work or 
services performed under this Agreement is not covered by California Labor Code 
section 3700, Contractor shall provide and/or require each sub-contractor to provide 
adequate insurance for the coverage of employees not otherwise covered. 

 
 Contractor shall also maintain employer’s liability insurance with limits of one million 

dollars ($1,000,000) for bodily injury or disease. 
 
b. Liability Insurance Requirements: 

 
(1) Contractor shall maintain in full force and effect, at all times during the term of 

this Agreement, the following insurance: 
 

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance including, but not limited to, 
Contractual Liability Insurance (specifically concerning the indemnity 
provisions of this Agreement with the County), Products-Completed 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

79



 

35 
 

Operations Hazard, Personal Injury (including bodily injury and death), 
and Property Damage for liability arising out of Contractor’s performance 
of work under this Agreement. The Commercial General Liability 
insurance shall contain no exclusions or limitation for independent 
contractors working on the behalf of the named insured.  Contractor shall 
maintain the Products-Completed Operations Hazard coverage for the 
longest period allowed by law following termination of this Agreement.  
The amount of said insurance coverage required by this Agreement shall 
be the policy limits, which shall be at least one million dollars 
($1,000,000) each occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) 
aggregate. 

 
(b) Automobile Liability Insurance against claims of Personal Injury 

(including bodily injury and death) and Property Damage covering any 
vehicle and/or all owned, leased, hired and non-owned vehicles used in 
the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement with coverage 
equal to the policy limits, which shall be at least one million dollars 
($1,000,000) each occurrence. 
 

(c) Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance, for liability 
arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of all required 
services under this Agreement, with coverage equal to the policy limits, 
which shall not be less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.   

 
(2) The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance required 

in this sub-paragraph b. shall include an endorsement naming the County and 
County’s board members, officials, officers, agents and employees as additional 
insureds for liability arising out of this Agreement and any operations related 
thereto.  Said endorsement shall be provided using one of the following three 
options: (i) on ISO form CG 20 10 11 85; or (ii) on ISO form CG 20 37 10 01 
plus either ISO form CG 20 10 10 01 or CG 20 33 10 01; or (iii) on such other 
forms which provide coverage at least equal to or better than form CG 20 10 11 
85. 
 

(3) Any self-insured retentions in excess of $100,000 must be declared on the 
Certificate of Insurance or other documentation provided to County and must 
be approved by the County Risk Manager. 
 

(4) If any of the insurance coverages required under this Agreement is written on a 
claims-made basis, Contractor, at Contractor’s option, shall either (i) maintain 
said coverage for at least three (3) years following the termination of this 
Agreement with coverage extending back to the effective date of this 
Agreement; (ii) purchase an extended reporting period of not less than three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement; or (iii) acquire a full prior acts 
provision on any renewal or replacement policy.  

 
c. Cancellation of Insurance -- The above stated insurance coverages required to be 

maintained by Contractor shall be maintained until the completion of all of Contractor’s 
obligations under this Agreement except as otherwise indicated herein.  Each insurance 
policy supplied by the Contractor shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after ten (10) days written notice by Contractor in the 
case of non-payment of premiums, or thirty (30) days written notice in all other cases.  

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

80



 

36 
 

This notice requirement does not waive the insurance requirements stated herein.  
Contractor shall immediately obtain replacement coverage for any insurance policy that 
is terminated, canceled, non-renewed, or whose policy limits have been exhausted or 
upon insolvency of the insurer that issued the policy. 
 

d. All insurance shall be issued by a company, or companies admitted to do business in 
California and listed in the current “Best’s Key Rating Guide” publication with a 
minimum rating of A-; VII.  Any exception to these requirements must be approved by 
the County Risk Manager.  
 

e. If Contractor is, or becomes during the term of this Agreement, self-insured or a 
member of a self-insurance pool, Contractor shall provide coverage equivalent to the 
insurance coverages and endorsements required above. The County will not accept 
such coverage unless the County determines, in its sole discretion and by written 
acceptance, that the coverage proposed to be provided by Contractor is equivalent to 
the above-required coverages. 
 

f. All insurance afforded by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement shall be primary to and 
not contributing to all insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County. An 
endorsement shall be provided on all policies, except professional liability/errors and 
omissions, which shall waive any right of recovery (waiver of subrogation) against the 
County. A waiver of right of recovery (waiver of subrogation) is only required on 
Workers’ Compensation policies when a Contractor’s personnel deliver or perform 
services for the County while on County property.  
 

g. Insurance coverages in the minimum amounts set forth herein shall not be construed 
to relieve Contractor for any liability, whether within, outside, or in excess of such 
coverage, and regardless of solvency or insolvency of the insurer that issues the 
coverage; nor shall it preclude the County from taking such other actions as are 
available to it under any other provision of this Agreement or otherwise in law. 
 

h. Failure by Contractor to maintain all such insurance in effect at all times required by 
this Agreement shall be a material breach of this Agreement by Contractor. County, at 
its sole option, may terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Contractor 
resulting from said breach. Alternatively, County may purchase such required 
insurance coverage, and without further notice to Contractor, County shall deduct from 
sums due to Contractor any premiums and associated costs advanced or paid by 
County for such insurance. If the balance of monies obligated to Contractor pursuant 
to this Agreement are insufficient to reimburse County for the premiums and any 
associated costs, Contractor agrees to reimburse County for the premiums and pay for 
all costs associated with the purchase of said insurance. Any failure by County to take 
this alternative action shall not relieve Contractor of its obligation to obtain and maintain 
the insurance coverages required by this Agreement. 

 
28. FIDELITY BOND 
 

a. All of Contractor’s officers, employees and agents handling or having access to funds 
(other than petty cash) received or disbursed by Contractor pursuant to this agreement 
shall be covered by a blanket fidelity bond in an amount not less than $10,000 for each 
officer, employee and agent.  Contractor shall notify in writing County’s Aging and Adult 
Services Department if the bond is canceled or reduced, in which event the County may 
withhold further payment until proper coverage has been obtained. 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

81



 

37 
 

b. In instances where Contractor is a public agency and wishes to meet the Blanket fidelity 
Bond requirements by self-bonding or wishes to have the bond requirement waived by 
County, County shall be provided with detailed documentation of Contractor’s 
provisions for coverage or rationale for requesting a waiver. Decisions regarding the 
adequacy of self-bonding or whether to grant a waiver of this requirement shall be made 
by the Director of the Aging and Adult Services Department in consultation with 
County’s Risk Management Manager. 

 
29. INTEGRATION 
 

The body of this Agreement, together with the exhibits attached hereto, and specifically 
referenced materials, express the entire understanding of the parties with respect to this 
Agreement.  Amendments to this Agreement shall be formally approved and executed in writing 
by the parties hereto prior to becoming effective. 

 
30. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

The parties to this Agreement have read and are aware of the provisions of Section 1090, et 
seq., and Section 87100, et seq. of the Government code relating to conflict of interest of public 
officers and employees.  Contractor agrees that they are unaware of any financial or economic 
interest of any public officer or employee of the County relating to this Agreement.  It is further 
understood and agreed that if such a financial interest does exist at the inception of this 
Agreement, the County may immediately terminate this Agreement by giving written notice 
thereof.  Consultant shall comply with the requirements of Government Code section 87100, 
et seq. during the term of this Agreement. 

  
31. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 

 
a. The Contractor warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or 

retained to solicit this Agreement. There has been no agreement to make commission 
payments in order to obtain this Agreement.  

 
b. For breach or violation of this warranty, AAA shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement without liability or at its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or 
consideration, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, 
brokerage, or contingency fee. 

 
32. BUDGET REVISION 
 

Internal budget revisions (Revisions to Exhibits B and C), which reflect a change in funding 
between the programs funded with the Older Americans Act Grant, but not a change in the 
total amount of the Older Americans Act Grant as provided in paragraph 5.a. above, may only 
be made administratively by the written consent of the Director of the County’s AAA and the 
Contractor.  Such budget changes and revisions shall not be retroactive. 

 
33. AMENDMENTS 
 

a. No amendment or variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made 
in writing, signed, and approved by both parties. No oral understanding or agreement 
not incorporated in this Agreement is binding on any of the parties. 

b. Any provision of this Agreement or the Program Guide which conflicts with current or 
future applicable federal or state laws is hereby amended to conform to the provisions 
of those laws. Such amendment of this Agreement and/or the Program Guide shall be 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

82



 

38 
 

effective on the effective date of the laws necessitating it and shall be binding on the 
parties even though such amendment may not have been reduced to writing and 
formally agreed upon and executed by the parties. 
 

c. Failure by the AAA to take necessary actions required by amendments to this 
Agreement and/or the Program Guide shall constitute a material violation. 
 

d. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the Agreement to reflect any 
restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or the Legislature or as 
directed by the Executive Branch of State government. 

 
34. NOTICE 
 

All notices required or provided for in this Agreement shall be provided to the parties at the 
following addresses, by personal delivery or deposit in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, 
registered or certified mail, addressed as specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall 
be deemed received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received five 
(5) days after deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving 
notice as provided below. 

 
 
 TO COUNTY:  TO Contractor: 
 Jeremy Oliver, Director   Bret Haney, General Manager 
 Kern County    North of the River  
 Aging & Adult Services Department  Recreation and Park District   
 5357 Truxtun Avenue    3825 Riverlakes Drive 
 Bakersfield, CA 93309   Bakersfield, CA 93314 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank] 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

83



 

39 
 

IN WITNESS TO WHICH, each party to this Agreement has signed this Agreement upon the date 
indicated, and agrees, for itself, its employees, officers, partners, and successors, to be fully bound by 
all terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: COUNTY OF KERN 
Aging and Adult Services Department 
 
 
 
By:  By:  

Jeremy Oliver, Director Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

Date: ________________________________       Date: _______________________________ 
 

 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION 
Office of the County Counsel    AND PARK DISTRICT     
 
 
By:  By:  

Kathleen Rivera, Chief Deputy County Counsel Bret Haney, General Manager 
 

Date: ________________________________ Date: _______________________________    
 
“CONTRACTOR” 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

11/22/202411/22/2024

11/22/2024

84



EXHIBIT "A" 
Scope of Work 

JULY 1, 2024, THROUGH JUNE 30, 
2025 

TITLE III C NUTRITION SERVICES 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Congregate Meals (C-1) 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A 	meal 	provided 	to 	an 	eligible 	individual 	in 	a 

congregate 	group 	setting, 	that 	meets 	all 	the 
requirements 	of 	the 	Older 	Americans 	Act 	and 
State/Local laws and assures a minimum one-third of 
the Dietary Reference Intake and shall comply with 
Dietary Guidelines for Americans. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Registered- 	Unduplicated 	client 	counts 	by 

characteristic and service units. 
NUMBER OF UNDUPLICATED 
CLIENTS TO BE SERVED THIS 
PERIOD: 

114 

UNITS OF SERVICE TO BE 
PROVIDED THIS PERIOD: 28,400 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Congregate Meals (C-1)- Non-Registered 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible volunteer or the spouse 

of an eligible client in a congregate group setting that 
meets all the requirements of the Older Americans Act 
and State/Local laws. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Non-registered- Estimated unduplicated client counts 

and service units. 
ESTIMATED NUMBER OF 
UNDUPLICATED CLIENTS TO 
BE SERVED THIS PERIOD: 

27 

ESTIMATED UNITS OF SERVICE 
TO BE PROVIDED THIS 
PERIOD: 

6,750 

A-1  A-1 

EXHIBIT “A”  
Scope of Work 

JULY 1, 2024, THROUGH JUNE 30, 
2025 

TITLE III C NUTRITION SERVICES 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Congregate Meals (C-1) 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible individual in a 

congregate group setting, that meets all the 
requirements of the Older Americans Act and 
State/Local laws and assures a minimum one-third of 
the Dietary Reference Intake and shall comply with 
Dietary Guidelines for Americans. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Registered- Unduplicated client counts by 

characteristic and service units. 
NUMBER OF UNDUPLICATED 
CLIENTS TO BE SERVED THIS 
PERIOD: 

114 

UNITS OF SERVICE TO BE 
PROVIDED THIS PERIOD: 28,400 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Congregate Meals (C-1)- Non-Registered 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible volunteer or the spouse 

of an eligible client in a congregate group setting that 
meets all the requirements of the Older Americans Act 
and State/Local laws. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Non-registered- Estimated unduplicated client counts 

and service units. 
ESTIMATED NUMBER OF 
UNDUPLICATED CLIENTS TO 
BE SERVED THIS PERIOD: 

27 

ESTIMATED UNITS OF SERVICE 
TO BE PROVIDED THIS 
PERIOD: 

6,750 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

85



SERVICE CATEGORY: Home-Delivered Meals (C-2) 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible individual in their place 

of residence, that meets all of the requirements of the 
Older Americans Act and State/Local laws, assures a 
minimum one-third of the current Dietary Reference 
Intake, and shall comply with Dietary Guidelines for 
Americans. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Registered- 	Unduplicated 	client 	counts 	by 

characteristic and service units. 
NUMBER OF UNDUPLICATED 
CLIENTS TO BE SERVED THIS 
PERIOD: 

380 

UNITS OF SERVICE TO BE 
PROVIDED THIS PERIOD: 94,620 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Home-Delivered Meals (C-2)- Non-Registered 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible volunteer or the spouse 

of an eligible client in their place of residence that 
meets all the requirements of the Older Americans Act 
and State/Local laws. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Non-registered- Estimated unduplicated client counts 

and service units. 
ESTIMATED NUMBER OF 
UNDUPLICATED CLIENTS TO 
BE SERVED THIS PERIOD: 

5 

ESTIMATED UNITS OF SERVICE 
TO BE PROVIDED THIS 
PERIOD: 

1,240 

A-2  A-2 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Home-Delivered Meals (C-2) 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible individual in their place 

of residence, that meets all of the requirements of the 
Older Americans Act and State/Local laws, assures a 
minimum one-third of the current Dietary Reference 
Intake, and shall comply with Dietary Guidelines for 
Americans. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Registered- Unduplicated client counts by 

characteristic and service units. 
NUMBER OF UNDUPLICATED 
CLIENTS TO BE SERVED THIS 
PERIOD: 

380 

UNITS OF SERVICE TO BE 
PROVIDED THIS PERIOD: 94,620 

SERVICE CATEGORY: Home-Delivered Meals (C-2)- Non-Registered 
CDA SERVICE DESCRIPTION: A meal provided to an eligible volunteer or the spouse 

of an eligible client in their place of residence that 
meets all the requirements of the Older Americans Act 
and State/Local laws. 

UNIT MEASURE: 1 Meal 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS: Non-registered- Estimated unduplicated client counts 

and service units. 
ESTIMATED NUMBER OF 
UNDUPLICATED CLIENTS TO 
BE SERVED THIS PERIOD: 

5 

ESTIMATED UNITS OF SERVICE 
TO BE PROVIDED THIS 
PERIOD: 

1,240 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

86



TYPE OF SERVICE: Title Ill C Senior Nutrition Program 

PROVIDER: North of the River Recreation and Park District (NOR) 

Congregate Meals (C-1) Services are provided in a group setting and consist of the 
procurement, preparation, transportation and serving of meals, as well as nutrition education 
and counseling. 

Home-Delivered Meals (C-2) Services are provided to seniors who are homebound due to 
illness, disability, or who are otherwise isolated. Services consist of the procurement, preparation, 
and delivery of meals, as well as nutrition education and counseling. 

MANAGEMENT/STAFFING SUMMARY 

The Senior Services Manager is the point of contact for any administrative issues the funding 
agency might have with the District. The Manager oversees staff responsible for implementing 
the primary functions of the nutrition programs. These staff are directly involved in ensuring that 
compliance and quality assurance issues are being addressed. 

The title and functions of these supervisors include: 

Head Cook/Kitchen Manager: Assures that the program is following all grant requirements 
related to food, safety, and sanitation issues. The Head Cook works closely with a Registered 
Dietician contracted by the District. 

Recreation Specialist: Assures that proper 100X Registration of new participants takes place 
daily in a customer friendly manner. 

Registered Dietician: A Registered Dietician contracted by the District provides nutrition 
education and staff in-service training on a quarterly basis. 	The Registered Dietician will 
approve monthly menus, perform quarterly kitchen assessments, and visit congregate sites. 
Nutrition counseling is provided based on requests from individual participants. 

Nutrition Education for Home Delivered Meal participants is achieved by delivering flyers with 
nutrition related information on a quarterly basis. For Congregate participants, nutrition 
education is provided quarterly through public speakers and providing educational material. 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE DELIVERY 

The kitchen staff does batch cooking when preparing meals to assure that the quality and 
nutritional value of the food is not compromised by being cooked too early and held too long. 

The District's Congregate Nutrition program is based on a reservation system. A participant 
wanting to have lunch on any given day must have a reservation for lunch on that day. 
Reservations can be made one day in advance. Once the kitchen receives the meal count, 
they prepare enough food based on that count. 

The suggested donation for congregate meals is $2.00. A fee of $5 will be charged for 
individuals under 60. 

A-3  A-3 

TYPE OF SERVICE:  Title III C Senior Nutrition Program  

PROVIDER:   North of the River Recreation and Park District (NOR) 

Congregate Meals (C-1)  Services are provided in a group setting and consist of the 
procurement, preparation, transportation and serving of meals, as well as nutrition education 
and counseling.  

Home-Delivered Meals (C-2)  Services are provided to seniors who are homebound due to 
illness, disability, or who are otherwise isolated. Services consist of the procurement, preparation, 
and delivery of meals, as well as nutrition education and counseling.  

MANAGEMENT/STAFFING SUMMARY 

The Senior Services Manager is the point of contact for any administrative issues the funding 
agency might have with the District.  The Manager oversees staff responsible for implementing 
the primary functions of the nutrition programs.  These staff are directly involved in ensuring that 
compliance and quality assurance issues are being addressed. 

The title and functions of these supervisors include: 

Head Cook/Kitchen Manager:  Assures that the program is following all grant requirements 
related to food, safety, and sanitation issues.  The Head Cook works closely with a Registered 
Dietician contracted by the District.   

Recreation Specialist:  Assures that proper 100X Registration of new participants takes place 
daily in a customer friendly manner.   

Registered Dietician:  A Registered Dietician contracted by the District provides nutrition 
education and staff in-service training on a quarterly basis.   The Registered Dietician will 
approve monthly menus, perform quarterly kitchen assessments, and visit congregate sites. 
Nutrition counseling is provided based on requests from individual participants. 

Nutrition Education for Home Delivered Meal participants is achieved by delivering flyers with 
nutrition related information on a quarterly basis.  For Congregate participants, nutrition 
education is provided quarterly through public speakers and providing educational material.   

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE DELIVERY 

The kitchen staff does batch cooking when preparing meals to assure that the quality and 
nutritional value of the food is not compromised by being cooked too early and held too long. 

The District’s Congregate Nutrition program is based on a reservation system.  A participant 
wanting to have lunch on any given day must have a reservation for lunch on that day. 
Reservations can be made one day in advance.  Once the kitchen receives the meal count, 
they prepare enough food based on that count.   

The suggested donation for congregate meals is $2.00.  A fee of $5 will be charged for 
individuals under 60. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

87



Home Delivery Meals Nutrition Program 

The Home Delivered Meals intake procedure, to determine eligibility for the program, begins by 
using the mandated 100X intake form. Participants in this program must be 60 years of age or 
older, frail, and homebound by reason of illness, disability, or who are otherwise isolated. A 
doctor's note is requested for any potential Home Delivered Meal client between the ages of 
60 and 80 years. The note must state for what purpose the individual needs to be on home 
delivered meals. 

Each month clients of the Home Delivered Meal program receive a friendly donation reminder 
in the mail. The letter notes how many meals the client received during the month and suggests 
a $2.00 donation for each meal received. This is the only time the client hears from NOR 
regarding a suggested donation. There are no follow-up calls or additional letters sent. 

A case file is established for each home delivery meal client. The client file is updated 
whenever contact with the client occurs. This will include quarterly assessments, phone calls, 
home delivery concerns/issues or observations from home delivery drivers. 

SERVICE AVAILABILITY 
Congregate meals are provided in a group setting five days a week, except for County 
Holidays. The District provides Congregate Meals at the following site. 

Rasmussen Senior Center 
115 E. Roberts Lane 
Bakersfield, CA 

Home delivered meals are provided five days a week, except for County Holidays. If the NOR 
agency Holiday schedule differs from the County Holiday schedule, shelf stable meals are 
delivered the day prior to the NOR agency Holiday. 

LOCATION OF FACILITY 
All meals for the Congregate and Home Delivered Meal programs are prepared at the central 
kitchen located at: 

Rasmussen Senior Center 
115 E. Roberts Lane 
Bakersfield, CA 93308 

A-4  A-4 

Home Delivery Meals Nutrition Program 

The Home Delivered Meals intake procedure, to determine eligibility for the program, begins by 
using the mandated 100X intake form.  Participants in this program must be 60 years of age or 
older, frail, and homebound by reason of illness, disability, or who are otherwise isolated.  A 
doctor’s note is requested for any potential Home Delivered Meal client between the ages of 
60 and 80 years.  The note must state for what purpose the individual needs to be on home 
delivered meals. 

Each month clients of the Home Delivered Meal program receive a friendly donation reminder 
in the mail.  The letter notes how many meals the client received during the month and suggests 
a $2.00 donation for each meal received. This is the only time the client hears from NOR 
regarding a suggested donation.  There are no follow-up calls or additional letters sent. 

A case file is established for each home delivery meal client.  The client file is updated 
whenever contact with the client occurs.  This will include quarterly assessments, phone calls, 
home delivery concerns/issues or observations from home delivery drivers.   

SERVICE AVAILABILITY 
Congregate meals are provided in a group setting five days a week, except for County 
Holidays.  The District provides Congregate Meals at the following site.   

Rasmussen Senior Center 
115 E. Roberts Lane 
Bakersfield, CA 

Home delivered meals are provided five days a week, except for County Holidays.  If the NOR 
agency Holiday schedule differs from the County Holiday schedule, shelf stable meals are 
delivered the day prior to the NOR agency Holiday.   

LOCATION OF FACILITY 
All meals for the Congregate and Home Delivered Meal programs are prepared at the central 
kitchen located at:  

Rasmussen Senior Center 
115 E. Roberts Lane 
Bakersfield, CA 93308 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

88



4:03PM 

EXHIBIT B 
,�vis�d: 0512021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 1 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES 

SERVICE PROVIDER· 1+.1hol 1ho> lr�r ""'••••IOn•n.1 p.,, llt.lJ'1<t 

ADl>RESS: lll5 111..-rl•►n o,,....., Ba�r,held, (A Ultl -----=-----[ PROJECT PERIOD; FY 202◄/25 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE - -- ------------- - ·--- ---------
MEALS ADMNISTRA TIOII DCLIVERY 

COST CATAGORY 

PERSONNEL 

TRAVEL 
f----- -
TRAINING ---
EQUIPMENT 

c:::, 
.... -

□ 

FOOD COSTS -�� �---
CONSULTANTS 

OTHER COSTS 

NUTRITIOH EDUCATION 
INDIRECT EXPENSES I 10% M, , l _ 

TOTAL IJIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL ALL COSTS c:, 

UtlllSOF SERVICE r:::��� 
COST PER UNIT +-:, -

-

8UOGET --
316,453 

0 
-

350 

0 

�,600 

5,430 

38,336 

1,000 

0 

448,169 

448,169 
28,500 
15,73 

CASH 

171,702 

0 

350 - -
0 

86,600 

5,430 

15,800 

1,000 

0 

280,882 

280,882 

9 86 

IN-�IIID c,-sH 11◄ KIND CASH IN-KIND - -
54,500 90,251 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 
C"" 

0 0 0 0 0 
, . - - - - --

0 0 0 0 0 
0 

0 0 0 0 0 

◄,380 0 1,056 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

58,880 90,251 1,056 0 0 

58.880 90,251 1,056 0 0 

2.0;, 3.17 0.04 0.00 0.00 

OTHER COSTS OIIE-TIME 
CASH IN-KIHO ONLY (cash) 

r-
0 0 0 

0 0 0 -�-
0 0 0 

r- - - -
0 0 0 

0 

0 0 0 

0 17,100 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 17,100 0 

0 17,100 0 

0 00 0.60 0.00 

[RULES - OUT OF BALANCE BY o] II II II II II al al o] o]
SUMMARY OF RESOURCES 

MEAl5 ADMINISTRATION 
RESOURCE CATAGORY BUDGET CASH I IN-KIND CASH Ill KltlD 

DELIVERY 
CASH I ltl �IHD 

OTHERCDSTS 
CASH ltl-KIND 

ONE-TIM[ 
ONLY (ta,h) 

TOTAL 8UDGETED 
CASH IN-KIND 

- -
261,953 54,500 

0 0 

350 0 

0 0 

86,600 0 

5,430 0 

15,800 22,536 

1,000 0 

0 0 

371,133 77,0]6 

371,133 77,036 

u.02 2.70 

ol £] 

TOTAL BUDGE'TED 
CASH I IN-KIND 

TOTALALLR!SOURCES � 448,169 280,882 58,880 90,251 1,056 0 0 0 17,100 0 371,133 77,0� 
PROJECT INCOME CURRENT !-J-l!i 34,485 34� >- _ 34,485 0 
HSIP FUNDS I.:] ii 25,503 25,503 D\ 25,503 O 
HON-MATCH J nJ U . 114,968 90,519 4,380 19,013 �f056 \., 0 0 I 0 0 109,532 5,436 
MATCH _ 71,600 0 54,500 0 0 0 0 i:" 0 17,100 0 71,600 
COUNTY GRANT AWARD - U • 0 0 0 0 0 

STATE GRANT AWARD 39,572 39,572 39,572 0 

SPECIAL NUTRITION FUNDS O O O O 0 

FEDERAL GRANT AWARD 162,041 90,803 71,238 162,041 0 

TOTAL GRANT AWARD J 227. 116 
- _________.-----

4UT� L� /12 3/l-!7L-
Mpe fr/ (!,/Z-f)u;, drt'c/4� t?f &a nee
,. NT t [ AHO Tin[ 

{ 
om 

.,_,__,_ 7 

:.. ·1 

ibth.0.1.'f 

,.... 

Budget C1_2024-2025 xlsx-Page 1 

!TOTAL MEALS 28,500 

!SENIOR MEALS 28,500 

AVE, OONATION/MEAL SI 21 

!TOTAL DONATIOIIS 5)4,485 

.. :� 

9/24/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

89



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 2

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
ALLOCATION OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO PROGRAM ACTIVITIES

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

NON-MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS

SOURCE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND

VOLUNTEERS (IN-KIND) 0

Building 5,436 4,380 1,056

General Fund 109,532 90,519 19,013

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL 114,968 90,519 4,380 19,013 1,056 0 0 0 0

MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS

SOURCE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND

VOLUNTEERS (IN-KIND) 54,500 54,500

Utilities 17,100 17,100

Sponsorships 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL 71,600 0 54,500 0 0 0 0 0 17,100

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 2 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

90



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 3

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES

BUDGET III C-1 MANAGEMENT INFORMATION DATA

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

ELIGIBLE MEALS PERCENT BY RESOURCES COST PER SENIOR MEAL

NUMBER OF SERVING DAYS 250 PROJECT INCOME 7.7% BY COST CATEGORY COST PER MEAL

NUMBER OF SENIOR MEALS 28500 NSIP FUNDS 5.7% PERSONNEL, PAID $9.191

SENIOR MEALS 7/1 -9/30 NON-MATCH 25.7% PERSONNEL, IN-KIND $1.912

SENIOR MEALS 10/1 - 6/30 MATCH 16.0% TRAVEL AND TRAINING $0.000

COUNTY GRANT AWARD 0.0% EQUIPMENT $0.000

STATE GRANT AWARD 8.8% FOOD $3.039

FEDERAL GRANT AWARD 36.2% CONSULTANTS $0.191

MISCELLANEOUS DATA TOTAL RESOURCES 100.0% OTHER COSTS $1.345

NUMBER OF SITES 1 ACTIVITY COSTS AS PERCENT OF TOTAL TOTAL COSTS $15.678

NUMBER OF PAID PERSONNEL 9 MEALS COST 75.8%

NUMBER OF IN-KIND PERSONNEL 18 PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COSTS 20.4% PROGRAM ACTIVITY COST COST PER MEAL

NO. OF MEAL PREPARATION SITES 1 DELIVERY 0.0% MEAL COST $11.921

OTHER COSTS 3.8% ADMINISTRATION $3.204

ONE-TIME-ONLY COSTS 0.0% DELIVERY $0.000

TOTAL COSTS 100.0% OTHER COSTS $0.600

ONE-TIME-ONLY COSTS $0.000

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS $15.725

GRANT SHARE OF COSTS $7.969

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 3 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

91



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 4

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
PAID PERSONNEL (SCHEDULE 1A)

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

SALARIES, BENEFITS, ETC. BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS OTO

JOB TITLES BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH

Head Cook/Kitchen Manager 35,692 35,692
Cook FT 23,883 23,883
Cook FT 19,660 19,660
Cook 16,643 16,643
Kitchen Aid 16,818 16,818
Kitchen Aid - Sub 6,400 6,400
Recreation Manager 32,261 32,261
Senior Services Coordinator 16,008 16,008
Office Technician 17,185 17,185

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

TOTAL PAID SALARIES 184,550 119,096 65,454 0 0 0

PAYROLL TAXES 14,119 9,111 5,008

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 63,284 43,495 19,789

SALARIES & BENEFITS 261,953 171,702 90,251 0 0 0

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 4 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

92



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 5

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
IN-KIND PERSONNEL (SCHEDULE 1B)

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

WAGE EQUIVALENT BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS OTO

JOB TITLES BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH

Volunteers 54,500 54,500
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

TOTAL IN-KIND PERSONNEL 54,500 54,500 0 0 0

TOTAL BROUGHT FORWARD PG 4 261,953 171,702 0 90,251 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL SALARIES & BENEFITS 316,453 171,702 54,500 90,251 0 0 0 0 0 0

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 5 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

93



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 6

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
TRAVEL, TRAINING AND EQUIPMENT

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME

TRAVEL AND TRAINING BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)

STAFF TRAVEL
MILEAGE 0
COMMERCIAL TRAVEL 0
MEALS 0
LODGING 0
TRAVEL 0
OTHER 0

TOTAL TRAVEL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
STAFF TRAINING
ServSafe Certification 350 350

0
0
0

TOTAL TRAINING 350 350 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME
EQUIPMENT BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)
EXPENDABLE   DO NOT ENTER SUPPLIES

0
0
0

NON-EXPENDABLE
0
0
0
0

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 6 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

94



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 7

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
FOOD, CONSULTANTS AND OTHER EXPENSES

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME

RAW FOOD COSTS BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)

RAW FOOD 86,600 86,600
0
0

TOTAL RAW FOOD 86,600 86,600 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME
CONSULTANTS BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)

Nutritionist 5,430 5,430
0
0

TOTAL CONSULTANTS SERVICES 5,430 5,430 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OTHER SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME

SPACE BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)

Dining SAC & GA$200/Month; Kitchen $156 4,380 4,380
Office Space SAC 1,056 1,056

0
TOTAL SPACE COSTS 5,436 0 4,380 0 1,056 0 0 0 0 0

TELEPHONE 0
UTILITIES 17,100 17,100
FOOD SERVICE SUPPLIES 14,800 14,800
OFFICE SUPPLIES 0
OTHER SUPPLIES 0
PRINTING SUPPLIES 0

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 7 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

95



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 8

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
OTHER EXPENSES

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME

OTHER EXPENSES BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 0

USE ALLOWANCE

0
0

TOTAL USE ALLOWANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

REPAIR & MAINT. - SPACE 0
REPAIR & MAINT - VEHICLE 0
REPAIR & MAINT - OTHER 1,000 1,000
VEHICLE OPERATION 0
MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 0
OUTSIDE SERVICES

0
0

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ACCOUNTING SERVICES 0

AUDIT COSTS 
 PRIVATE AUDIT FIRM 0
 OTHER 0

TOTAL AUDIT COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 8 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

96



EXHIBIT B
Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) PAGE 9

BUDGET FOR TITLE III C-1 CONGREGATE NUTRITION SERVICES
OTHER EXPENSES

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA  93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME

OTHER EXPENSES BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash)

VOLUNTEER EXPENDITURES
          MILEAGE 0
          MEALS 0

     OTHER 0
TOTAL VOLUNTEER EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

INSURANCE
P.L. & P.D. 0

     VEHICLE 0
     OTHER 0

TOTAL INSURANCE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ALLOCATED OVERHEAD 0
TAXES & LICENSES 0
ADVERTISING 0
LEGAL SERVICES 0

OTHER COSTS
0
0
0

TOTAL OTHER COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 38,336 15,800 4,380 0 1,056 0 0 0 17,100 0

INDIRECT EXPENSES (10% Max) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NUTRITION EDUCATION 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL NUTRITION EDUCATION COSTS 23,536 1,000 4,380 0 1,056 0 0 0 17,100 0

TOTAL BUDGETED COSTS 448,169 280,882 58,880 90,251 1,056 0 0 0 17,100 0

4:03 PM Budget C1_2024-2025.xlsx-Page 9 9/24/2024

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

97



1:55PM 

EXHIBIT C 
-,�,S<d: os12021 1vc(;,.,., 1 41 PAGE 1 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 

SERVICE PROVIDER • North of u,� �ivff RKIMhOn ....S P•r� 111',trict 

ADDRESS: '�15 Rrttra�n Dnve, hl<A!f>lleld, CA 9JJ12 ____________ I PROJECT PERIOD FY 202◄/25 

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE 

lcOST CA TAGORY t-, I! R 

PERSOtlNEL 

TRAVEL 

TRAINING 

EQUIPMENT 

FOOD COSTS 

COHSULTANTS 

OTHER COSTS 

tlUTRITION EDUCATION 

1 
INDRECT EXPENSES 

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS (10" Max) 

TOTAL ALL COSTS 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 
BUDGET CASH IN•KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND - ,-
525,984 185,387 17,900 178,967 0 143,730 0 

14,200 0 0 0 0 14,200 0 

2,200 1,100 0 �,_100 0 0 0 

OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

TOTAL BUDGETED 
CASH 

508,084 

14,200 

2.,200 

It! KIND CASH 

r

N·KltlD ONLY (cash) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -1 0 

17,900 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

141,300 141, 300 0 I l ■ 0 
_ 

141,300 

0 Q 0 I 
0 0 0 0 

85,980 39,800 4,380 

1,000 1,000 
I 

o 

o I o 0 

0 0 13,000 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

no,664 L 321.1s1 

no.664 I 368,587 

11.900 J 1so.061 

22,280 I 180,061 

�7,930 

o I 110,930 

0 
0 

0 0 0 0 

0 28,800 0 52,800 

O O O 1,000 

0 0 0 0 

33,180 

0 

0 

o o o 665,784 I 11,900 

o I za,aoo 0 719,5841 51,080 I 
UNITS Of SERVICE ---J-�-� .. :!:-·�-+----r----:-:-'.'"l---:-=-r-----:--::-::,r---:-::-:-,---::-;:;:i---;:-;:::-T"--��--;;-;;::;-f""---:�,--,� )COST PER UNfT -r---

94,275 
8.17 3.91 0.24 I 1. 91 o.oo I 1.a1 0.00 o.oo I o.31 0.00 7.63 0.54 

(RULES - OUT OF BALANCE BY 

SUMMARY OF RESOURCES 

RESOURCE CATAGORY ---, e:-,-- -

'TOTAL ALL RESOURCES 

PROJECT INCOME CURRENT 

NSIP AJNDS 

HOH·MATCH 

NATCH 

COIINTY GRANT AWARD 

ST ATE GRANT AWARO 

SPECIAL NUTRITION FUNDS 

FEDERAL GRANT AWARD 

TOTAL GRANT AWARD 

�---,;,.......,, 

o I " o I :::IT ·ca o I o I o I o I :§1 ::]] rI J] 

MEALS ADMltllSTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS OtlE·TIME 
IN-KIND I CASH IN-KIND CASH ltl KIND ONLY [cash) CASH IN-KIND 

TOTAL BUDGETED 
BUDGET CASH I IN·KIND CASH 

770
!.

664 . 368,587 

66,000 64,500 

16,678 16,678 

435,273 81,396 

22,2so I _1 ao.061 o I 1 10,930 0 0 

1,500 

0 

28,800 0 719,584 51,080 

o I I 

66,000 0 

16,678 0 

430,893 4,380 

46,800 100 

4,380 

I
,so.067 LJ 169,430 

17,900 o o o I - I
0 

0 28,800 o I --·--- I I 100 46,700 

0 
0 I I 

100,314 

0 

105,599 

222,591 

100.31
: 

I I 
105,599 

fµ7/; 'I
D•TE 

TOTAL MEALS 

SEtHOR MEALS . -- -
AVE DONATION/MEAL 

TOTAL DONATIONS 

94,275 

94,275 

S0.68 

SM.107 

0 0 

100,314 0 

0 0 

105,599 0 

�£� ... :n'.:mfTYI n-,:- •kfcrc. ''-"--_<7{ � f'ff<l'Tc-,c;... - - -

Budget C2 2D24-2025,xlsx-Page 1 8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

98



1:55 PM 

Revl�d. 05/2021 (Version 1.4) 

EXHIBIT C 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 

ALLOCATION OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO PROGRAM ACTIVITIES 

SERVICE PROVIDER: North of the River Recreation and Park District 

;� 

PAGE 2 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25 

NON-MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS �I 
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS 

SOURCE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BUDGET CASH IN·KIND CASH lN·KlND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND 

VOLUNTEERS (IN-KIND) - 0 -- -·- - --�� 

Kitchen Office Space 4,380 4,380 

G"'1f.'<al fund 430,893 81,396 180,067 169,430 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
� cf' '"' 

::1 a 435,273 81,396 4,380 180,067 0 169,430 0 
-

0 r. 0TOTAL 
-n -

L H 

MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS . - -· . 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS 

SOURCE OF CONTRIBUTIONS BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND 

VOLUNTEERS (IN-KIND) 17,900 . - -' . 17,900 . .. 

UUlties 28,800 28,800 

�II» 100 100 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

TOTAL w�□
� 

� 46,800 100 17,900 h. 0 l � 0 J 0 
rs_ 

0 I 0 28,800 

Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 2 8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

99



EXHIBIT C 

Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.41 PAGE 3 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25 

ELIGIBLE MEALS PERCENT BY RESOURCES COST PER SENIOR MEAL 

NUMBER OF SERVING DAYS 250 PROJECT INCOME 8.6% BY COST CATEGORY COST PER MEAL 

--, 
NUMBER OF SENIOR MEALS ; 

94275 NSIP FUNDS 2.2% PERSONNEL, PAID $5.389 

SENIOR MEALS 7/1 -9/30 NON-MATCH 56.5% PERSONNEL, IN-KIND $0.190 
-

SENIOR MEALS 10/1 • 6/30 MATCH 6.1% TRAVEL AND TRAINING $0.151 

- -
COUNTY GRANT AWARD 0.0% EQUIPMENT $0.000 

D w 
-

STATE GRANT AWARD 13.0% FOOD $1.499 -�
-

[) FEDERAL GRANT AWARD 13.7% CONSULTANTS $0.000 

I D 

= 
MISCELLANEOUS DATA TOT AL RESOURCES 100.0% OTHER COSTS $0.912 

NUMBER OF SITES 1 ACTIVITY COSTS AS PERCENT OF TOTAL TOTAL COSTS 
::::i== = $8.141 

� :i �=-,.__: - -

NUMBER OF PAID PERSONNEL 20 MEALS COST C C 50.7%

NUMBER OF IN-KIND PERSONNEL 12 PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COSTS 23.4% PROGRAM ACTIVITY COST COST PER MEAL 

NO. OF MEAL PREPARATION SITES 1 DELIVERY 22.2% MEAL COST $4.146 

OTHER COSTS 3.7% ADMINISTRATION $1.910 
-

ONE-TIME-ONLY COSTS 0.0% DELIVERY $1.813 

TOTAL COSTS 100.0% OTHER COSTS $0.305 
- - � ONE-TIME-ONLY COSTS $0.000 

TOT AL PROJECT COSTS $8.175 

GRANT SHARE OF COSTS $2.361 

,........_ _,,__________ _,......,,__r,.....!L.....,__�.._ _,._---.....J�-�-
� � 

C, 
- .n,,......__,..........,.__,........ - � __.. -

1:55 PM Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 3 8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

100



Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1.4) 

EXHIBIT G 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 
PAID PERSONNEL (SCHEDULE 1A) 

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 

SALARIES, BENEFITS, ETC. BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 

PAGE 4 

PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25 

OTHER COSTS 
JOB TITLES BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND 

Head Cook/Kitchen Supervisor 40,249 40,249 
Cook FT 26,932 26,932 
Cook FT 22,169 22,169 
Cook 17,974 17,974 
Kitchen Aide 18, 163 18,163 .. -

32,261 
-

32,261 Recreation Mana11er 

Senior Servfces Coordfnator 48,630 48,630 
Semor Services Coordinator 22,863 22,863 □ 

Senior Services Coordinator - PT 26,315 26,315 

Office Technician 5,728 5,728 - " - - " 

13, 120 
. 

13,120 Hourly Driver . -

Hourly Driver 13,120 
.. 

13,120 . II 

Hourly Driver 13,120 � � 13,120 � .... 
Hourly Dnver 13,120 13,120 - -

Hourly Driver 13,120 - 13,120 

Hourly Omer 13,120 
. - - � � 13,120 

13,120 
.. 

13,120 Hourly Driver . 

13,120 c::, 
. 

13,120 Hourly Driver 
-

Hourly Dr,ver 13,120 13,120 
Hourly Driver 13, 120 13,120 

TOT AL PAID SALARIES ·. 392,484 125,487 135,797 131,200 -=--.: 0 

PAYROLL TAXES 30,027 9,599 10,388 10,040 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 85,573 50,301 32,782 2,490 

SALARIES &. BENEFITS 
�□ ... � ... 508,084 185,387 178,967 143,730 

'.5 

L 0 

1:55 PM Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 4 

OTO 
CASH 

0 

0 

8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

101



Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1 .-4) 

EXHIBIT·c 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 
IN-KIND PERSONNEL (SCHEDULE 1 B) 

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 

WAGE EQUIVALENT BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE . 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 

PAGE 5 

PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25 

OTHER COSTS 

JOB TITLES BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND 
- -

Volunteers 

TOT AL IN-KIND PERSONNEL 

TOTAL BROUGHT FORWARD PG 4 

TOT AL SALARIES & BENEFITS 

1:55 PM 

17,900 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

I] 0

0

0

0

0

0

0 

0 

0 

17,900 

508,084 

525,98-4 

- . ..

185,387 

185,387 

17,900 

, 
-

-
. 

-

I 

� 

.. 

i.::::l:_ 
. 

= 

17,900 0 

0 178,967 0 
��-

17,900 178,967 0 

Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 5 

-

- - -

-
. 

-:. 
, . 

[l.., 

-

-

-� =...:= 
� ' 

. 

� 

0 0 

143,730 0 0 0 
�. - - --

143,730 0 0 
• ..1: 

0 
----

OTO 

CASH 

- ·-- -·

- .

-

--

.. 

-

=-=-

� 

� . -

0 
---

-C"">-C-
0 

8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

102



Revised. 05/2021 {Version 1.4) 

EXHIBIT C 

BUDGET FOR TITLE 111 C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 
TRAVEL, TRAINING AND EQUIPMENT 

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES 

TRAVEL AND TRAINING 

STAFF TRAVEL

MILEAGE 

COMMERCIAL TRAVEL 

MEALS 

LODGING 
r, 

TRAVEL 

OTHER 

TOTAL TRAVEL 

STAFF TRAINING 

Tra1mn11 

TOTAL TRAINING 

'. 

il 
EQUIPMENT 

-
I 

___i:,_;::a_ 

'1n n

\ ._.n11. 
� 

U' 

EXPENDABLE (DO NOT ENTER SUPPLIES) 

NON-EXPENDABLE el ::., �� 

TOTAL EQUIPMENT COSTS � 

1:55PM 

BUDGET 

14,200 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

14,200 

2,200 

0 

0 

0 

2,200 

BUDGET 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 

CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND

14,200 

� u . � 
0 0 0 0 14,200 

1,100 1,100 

1,100 • L 0 1,100 
-... 

0 0 JL I 

: -
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 

CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND

C D 

:, 
D 

0 0 0 0 0 L :J 

Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 6 

0 

0 

0 

PAGE6 

PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25 

OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 

CASH I IN-KIND ONLY (cash) 

0 _,,_ 0 0 

l 0
..... 

0 0 -.. 

OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 

CASH I IN-KIND ONLY (cash) 

-
·c:

I 
0 0 0 - � . 

8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

103



EXHIBIT C 

Revised: 05/2021 (Versioo 1.4) PAGE 7 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 
FOOD, CONSULTANTS AND OTHER EXPENSES 

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District 

ADDRESS: 3825 Rivertakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 
RAW FOOD COSTS BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash) 
RAW FOOD 11 141,300 141,300 

0 

0 

TOTAL RAW FOOD rrp 141,300 141,300 
. 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
: - -

-

71� :- � 
MEALS : ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 

CONSULTANTS __.....n_,.,_,--.....0 - BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash) 
0 

0 

0-
TOTAL CONSULTANTS SERVICES 0 =-7( 0 lt:;" 0 0 0 0 0 

-
0 s 0 CT 0::J , 

a.,· 
OTHER SERVICES AND SUPPLIES - -� ·-

' 
MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 

SPACE = SI .
L 

I c:::, 
BUDGET CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND CASH IN-KIND '· CASH IN-KIND ONLY (cash) ◄ �- ' 

Kitchen 4,380 4,380 

u 0

0

TOT AL SPACE COSTS :....-�y�- 4,380 0 4,380 r: 0 0 11 0 0 ---i.1 0 7 0 :...=- 0 
C: - '

TELEPHONE 0 

UTILITIES ,., 28,800 28,800 

FOOD SERVICE SUPPLIES 39,600 39,200 400 

OFFICE SUPPLIES �� 0 

OTHER SUPPLIES 0 

PRINTING SUPPLIES 
:-i__..lL 

0 

1:55 PM Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 7 8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

104



Revised: 05/2021 (Version 1 .4) 

EXHIBIT C 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 

OTHER EXPENSES 

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 
OTHER EXPENSES BUDGET CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND I CASH I IN-KIND 
EQUIPMENT RENTAL 0 

USE ALLOWANCE r, 

0 
0 

TOT AL USE ALLOWANCE 0 0 0 =:, 0 0 -� 0 :::, 0 = �= - _c::;: :::, .;i � 

REPAIR & MAINT. - SPACE 0 
REPAIR & MAINT - VEHICLE 900 900 

REPAIR & MAINT • OTHER 600 600 

VEHICLE OPERATION 6,900 6,900 

MEMBERSHIPS &. SUBSCRIPTIONS u 

OUTSIDE SERVICES 
0 

0 

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES ' ci.: 0 � 0 :::,wr- 0 � 0 � 0 � 0 � 0:::: � 
ACCOUNTING SERVICES 0 

-------:: 
AUDIT COSTS 

PRIVATE AUDIT FIRM 0 
- OTHER 0 

TOTAL AUDIT COSTS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1:55 PM Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 8 

PAGE 8 

PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25

OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 
CASH I IN-KIND ONLY (cash) 

:;;;:it 0 � 0 .:;,_,_ 0 ......... 

- 0 - 0 """"'C 0- - :i-:: 

0 J � 0 l 0

8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

105



Rev,sed 05/2021 (Version 1.4) 

EXHIBIT C 

BUDGET FOR TITLE Ill C-2 HOME-DELIVERED NUTRITION SERVICES 
OTHER EXPENSES 

SERVICE PROVIDER : North of the River Recreation and Park District 

ADDRESS: 3825 Riverlakes Drive, Bakersfield, CA 93312 

ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES BY SERVICE ACTIVITY AND RESOURCE 

MEALS ADMINISTRATION DELIVERY 
OTHER EXPENSES BUDGET CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND CASH I IN-KIND 
VOLUNTEER EXPENDITURES 

MILEAGE 4,800 4,800 
MEALS 0 

OTHER 0 

TOTAL VOLUNTEER EXPENSES 4,800 0 0 0 0 4,800 0 

INSURANCE 
P.L. ft P.O. 0 

VEHICLE 0 

OTHER 0 

TOTAL INSURANCE 0 "2 ·o C, 0 5" 0 0 ::::, 0 n..: 0-

ALLOCATED OVERHEAD 0-
TAXES & LICENSES � 0 

ADVERTISING I
r 

0 
LEGAL SERVICES 

.... .------... 
0 

u 
OTHER COSTS � � 

0 
0-

TOTAL OTHER COSTS ,.., 0
. 

0 _...... 0 C 0 0 0 = 0 - I C 

TOT Al OTHER EXPENSES
:. :::, 

85,980 39,800 4,380 0 0 13,000 0 

NUTRITION EDUCATION 1,000 1,000 
TOTAL NUTRITION EDUCATION COSTS 1,000 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 

INDIKtCT EXPENSES (1u~,1, Max) 0 

TOTAL INDIRECT EXPENSES 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

-
TOT AL BUDGETED COSTS 770,664 368,587 22,280 180,067 0 170,930 0 

1:55 PM Budget C2 2024-2025.xlsx-Page 9 

PAGE 9 

PROJECT PERIOD: FY 2024/25 

OTHER COSTS ONE-TIME 
CASH I IN-KIND ONLY (cashl 

,. 
0 

-
0 J�- 0 

� 0 !:i l 0 'il. 0 

,-::: 0 � 0 ::r 0

� 0 28,800 0 

0 0 

0 0 

� 0 28,800 0 

8/27/2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

106



EXHIBIT “D” 
 

COMMUNITY FOCAL POINTS LIST  
 
 
 
Arvin Senior Center 
800 Walnut Drive   
Arvin, CA  93203 

East Niles Senior Center 
6601 East Niles Street 
Bakersfield, CA  93306 

Bakersfield Community House 
2020 “R” Street 
Bakersfield, CA  93301 

Greenacres Community Center 
2014 Calloway Drive 
Bakersfield, CA  93312 

Bakersfield Senior Center 
530 Fourth Street 
Bakersfield, CA  93304 

Ben Austin Senior Center 
1751 McKee Road 
Bakersfield, CA  93307 

California City Senior Center 
10221 Heather Avenue 
California City, CA  93505 

Inyokern Senior Center 
1247 Broadway 
Inyokern, CA 93527 

Delano Community Senior Center 
436 Jefferson Street 
Delano, CA  93215 

Kern River Valley Senior Center 
6409 Lake Isabella Blvd 
Lake Isabella, CA  93240 

Lamont Community Center 
10300 San Diego Street 
Lamont, CA  93241 

Hummel Hall Senior Center 
2500 West 20th Street 
Rosamond, CA  93560 

McFarland Senior Center 
100 S. Second Street 
McFarland, CA  93250 

W. C. Walker Senior Center 
505 Sunset Avenue 
Shafter, CA  93263 

Rasmussen Senior Center 
115 East Roberts Lane 
Bakersfield, CA 93308 

Taft Senior Center 
500 Cascade Avenue 
Taft, CA   93268 

Richard Prado Senior Center 
2101 Ridge Road 
Bakersfield, CA  93305 

Tehachapi Senior Center 
500 East “F” Street 
Tehachapi, CA  93561 

Ridgecrest Senior Center 
125 South Warner 
Ridgecrest, CA  93555 

Wasco Senior Center 
1280 Poplar Street 
Wasco, CA  93280 

Kern County Aging and Adult Service 
5357 Truxtun Avenue 
Bakersfield, CA 93309 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

107



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM 
 

This Business Associate Addendum ("Addendum") supplements and is made a part of 
the contract ("Contract") to which it is attached by and between County of Kern, by and 
through the Department of Aging and Adult Services (“Department”) and NORTH OF 
THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT  ("BA").   This Addendum is 
effective as of the effective date of the Contract. 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. Department wishes to disclose certain information, some of which may 

constitute Protected Health Information ("PHI") (defined below), to BA pursuant 
to the terms of the Contract. 

 
B.  Department and BA intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of 

PHI disclosed to BA pursuant to the Contract in compliance with the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191 
("HIPAA"), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
Act, Public Law 111-005 ("the HITECH Act"), and regulations promulgated 
thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the "HIPAA 
Regulations") and other applicable laws. 

 
C.  As part of the HIPAA Regulations, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule 

(defined below) require Department to enter into a contract containing specific 
requirements with BA prior to the disclosure of PHI, as set forth in, but not limited 
to, Title 45, Sections 164.314(a), 164.502(e) and 164.504(e) of the Code of 
Federal Regulations ("C.F.R.") and contained in this Addendum.  

 
In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information 
pursuant to this Addendum, the parties agree as follows: 
 
1.  Definitions 

Catch-all definition: 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those 
terms in the HIPAA Rules: Breach, Data Aggregation, Designated Record Set, 
Disclosure, Health Care Operations, Individual, Minimum Necessary, Notice of Privacy 
Practices, Protected Health Information, Required by Law, Secretary, Security 
Incident, Subcontractor, Unsecured Protected Health Information, and Use. 

Specific definitions: 

(a)  Business Associate. “Business Associate” shall generally have the 
same meaning as the term “business associate” at 45 CFR 160.103, 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

108



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

and in reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean            
NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 

(b) Covered Entity. “Covered Entity” of “CE” shall generally have the same 
meaning as the term “covered entity” at 45 CFR 160.103, and in 
reference to the party to this agreement, shall mean the Kern County 
Department of Aging and Adult Services. 

(c) HIPAA Rules. “HIPAA Rules” shall mean the Privacy, Security, Breach 
Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164. 

(d)   Electronic Health Record shall have the meaning given to such term 
in the HITECT Act, including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 
17921. 

 
(e)  Privacy Rule shall mean the HIPAA Regulation that is codified at 45 

C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (Subparts A and E). 
 

2.  Obligations and Activities of Business Associate 

Business Associate agrees to:  

(a)  Not use or disclose protected health information other than as permitted 
or required by the Agreement or as required by law; 

(b) Use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 
164 with respect to electronic protected health information, to prevent 
use or disclosure of protected health information other than as provided 
for by the Agreement; 

(c)  Report to covered entity any use or disclosure of protected health 
information not provided for by the Agreement of which it becomes 
aware, including breaches of unsecured protected health information as 
required at 45 CFR 164.410, and any security incident of which it 
becomes aware; 

(d) In accordance with 45 CFR 164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if 
applicable, ensure that any subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, 
or transmit protected health information on behalf of the business 
associate agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements 
that apply to the business associate with respect to such information; 

(e)  Make available protected health information in a designated record set 
to the “covered entity” as necessary to satisfy covered entity’s obligations 
under 45 CFR 164.524;  

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

109



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

(f)  Make any amendment(s) to protected health information in a designated 
record set as directed or agreed to by the covered entity pursuant to 45 
CFR 164.526, or take other measures as necessary to satisfy covered 
entity’s obligations under 45 CFR 164.526; 

(g)  Maintain and make available the information required to provide an 
accounting of disclosures to the “covered entity” as necessary to satisfy 
covered entity’s obligations under 45 CFR 164.528; 

(h)  To the extent the business associate is to carry out one or more of 
covered entity's obligation(s) under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, 
comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the covered 
entity in the performance of such obligation(s); and 

(i)  Make its internal practices, books, and records available to the 
Secretary for purposes of determining compliance with the HIPAA 
Rules. 

Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate 

(a)  Business associate may only use or disclose protected health 
information as necessary to perform the services set forth in the attached 
Agreement 

(b) Business associate may use or disclose protected health information as 
required by law. 

(c)  Business associate agrees to make uses and disclosures and requests 
for protected health information consistent with covered entity’s 
minimum necessary policies and procedures. 

(d)  Business associate may not use or disclose protected health information 
in a manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164 if done by 
covered entity except for the specific uses and disclosures set forth 
below. 

(e) Business associate may use protected health information for the proper 
management and administration of the business associate or to carry 
out the legal responsibilities of the business associate. 

(f)  Business associate may disclose protected health information for the 
proper management and administration of business associate or to carry 
out the legal responsibilities of the business associate, provided the 
disclosures are required by law, or business associate obtains 
reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is 
disclosed that the information will remain confidential and used or further 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

110



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for which it was 
disclosed to the person, and the person notifies business associate of 
any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the 
information has been breached. 

(g) Business associate may provide data aggregation services relating to the 
health care operations of the covered entity. 

Provisions for Covered Entity to Inform Business Associate of Privacy 
Practices and Restrictions 

(a) Covered entity shall notify business associate of any limitation(s) in the 
notice of privacy practices of covered entity under 45 CFR 164.520, to 
the extent that such limitation may affect business associate’s use or 
disclosure of protected health information. 

(b)  Covered entity shall notify business associate of any changes in, or 
revocation of, the permission by an individual to use or disclose his or 
her protected health information, to the extent that such changes may 
affect business associate’s use or disclosure of protected health 
information. 

(c)   Covered entity shall notify business associate of any restriction on the 
use or disclosure of protected health information that covered entity has 
agreed to or is required to abide by under 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent 
that such restriction may affect business associate’s use or disclosure of 
protected health information. 

(d)   Reporting of Improper Access, Use or Disclosure. BA shall report to 
Department in writing of any access, use or disclosure of Protected 
Information not permitted by the Contract and Addendum, and any 
Breach of Unsecured PHI of which it becomes aware without 
unreasonable delay and in no case later than 10 calendar days after 
discovery [42 U.S.C. Section 17921; 45 C.F.R. Section 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(C); 45 C.F.R. Section 164.308(b)]. 

 
(e)   Business Associate's Agents. BA shall ensure that any agents, 

including subcontractors, to whom it provides Protected Information, 
agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to BA 
with respect to such PHI  and implement the safeguards required by 
paragraph (c) above with respect to Electronic PHI [45 C.F.R. § 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(D); 45 C.F.R. § 164.308(b)]. BA shall implement and 
maintain sanctions against agents and subcontractors that violate such 
restrictions and conditions and shall mitigate the effects of any such 
violation (see 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.530(f) and 164.530(e)(1)). 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

111



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

(f)   Amendment of PHI. If applicable within ten (10) days of receipt of a 
request from Department for an amendment of Protected Information or 
a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, BA 
or its agents or subcontractors shall make such Protected Information 
available to Department for amendment and incorporate any such 
amendment to enable Department to fulfill its obligations under the 
Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.526. If 
any individual requests an amendment of Protected Information directly 
from BA or its agents or subcontractors. BA must notify Department in 
writing within five (5) days of the request. Any approval or denial of 
amendment of Protected Information maintained by BA or its agents or 
subcontractors shall be the responsibility of Department [45 C.F.R. 
Section 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(F)]. 

 
(g)  Accounting Rights. Within ten (10) days of notice by Department of a 

request for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Information BA and 
its agents or subcontractors shall make available to Department the 
information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable 
Department to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy Rule, including, but 
not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.528, and the HITECH Act, including 
but not limited to 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(c), as determined by 
Department. BA agrees to implement a process that allows for an 
accounting to be collected and maintained by BA and its agents or 
subcontractors for at least six (6) years prior to the request. However, 
accounting of disclosures from an Electronic Health Record for 
treatment, payment or health care operations purposes are required to 
be collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to the request, 
and only to the extent that BA maintains an electronic health record and 
is subject to this requirement. At a minimum, the information collected 
and maintained shall include: (i) the date of disclosure; (ii) the name of 
the entity or person who received Protected Information and, if known, 
the address of the entity or person; (iii) a brief description of Protected 
Information disclosed; and (iv) a brief statement of purpose of the 
disclosure that reasonably informs the individual of the basis for the 
disclosure, or a copy of the individual's authorization, or a copy of the 
written request for disclosure. In the event that the request for an 
accounting is delivered directly to BA or its agents or subcontractors, BA 
shall within five (5) days of a request forward it to Department in writing. 
It shall be Department s responsibility to prepare and deliver any such 
accounting requested BA shall not disclose any Protected Information 
except as set forth in Sections 2.b. of this Addendum [45 C.F.R. Sections 
164.504(e)(2)(ii)(G) and 165.528]. The provisions of this subparagraph 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  

 
 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

112



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

(h)   Governmental Access to Records. BA shall make its internal practices, 
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected 
Information available to Department and to the Secretary of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services (the "Secretary") for 
purposes of determining BA's compliance with the Privacy Rule [45 
C.F.R. Section 164.504(e)(2)(ii)(H)]. BA shall provide to Department a 
copy of any Protected Information that BA provides to the Secretary 
concurrently with providing such Protected Information to the Secretary.  

 
(i)   Data Ownership. BA acknowledges that BA has no ownership rights 

with respect to the Protected Information.  
 
(j)   Notification of Breach. During the term of the Contract, BA shall notify 

Department within twenty-four (24) hours of any suspected or actual 
breach of security, intrusion or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI of 
which BA becomes aware and/or any actual or suspected use or 
disclosure of data in violation of any applicable federal or state laws or 
regulations. BA shall take (i) prompt corrective action to cure any such 
deficiencies and (ii) any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure 
required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations.  

 
(k)   Breach Pattern or Practice by Covered Entity. Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 

Section 17934(b), if the BA knows of a pattern of activity or practice of 
the Department that constitutes a material breach or violation of the 
Department's obligations under the Contract or Addendum or other 
arrangement, the BA must take reasonable steps to cure the breach or 
end the violation. If the steps are unsuccessful, the BA must terminate 
the Contract or other arrangement if feasible, or if termination is not 
feasible, report the problem to the Secretary of DHHS. BA shall provide 
written notice to Department of any pattern of activity or practice of the 
Department that BA believes constitutes a material breach or violation of 
the Department’s obligations under the Contract or Addendum or other 
arrangement within five (5) days of discovery and shall meet with 
Department to discuss and shall attempt to resolve the problem as one 
of the reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation.  

 
(l)   Audits, Inspection and Enforcement. Within ten (10) days of a written 

request by Department, BA and its agents or subcontractors shall allow 
Department to conduct a reasonable inspection of the facilities, systems, 
books, records, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use 
or disclosure of Protected Information pursuant to this Addendum for the 
purpose of determining whether BA has complied with this Addendum; 
provided, however, that (i) BA and Department shall mutually agree in 
advance upon the scope, timing and location of such an inspection. (ii) 
Department shall protect the confidentiality of all confidential and 
proprietary information of BA to which Department has access during the 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

113



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

course of such inspection; and (iii) Department shall execute a 
nondisclosure agreement, upon terms mutually agreed upon by the 
parties. If requested by BA. The fact that Department inspects, or fails to 
inspect, or has the right to inspect, BA’s facilities, systems, books, 
records, agreements. policies and procedures does not relieve BA of its 
responsibility to comply with this Addendum, nor does Department’s (i) 
failure to detect or (ii) detection, but failure to notify BA or require BA’s 
remediation of any unsatisfactory practices, constitute acceptance of 
such practice or a waiver of County’s enforcement rights under the 
Contract or Addendum, BA shall notify Department within ten (10) days 
of learning that BA has become the subject of an audit, compliance 
review, or complaint investigation by the Office for Civil Rights. 

 
3. Termination 
 

(a)  Material Breach. A breach by BA of any provision of this Addendum, as 
determined by Department, shall constitute a material breach of the 
Contract and shall provide grounds for immediate termination of the 
Contract, any provision in the Contract to the contrary notwithstanding. 
[45 C.F.R. Section 164.504(e)(2)(iii)].  

 
(b)  Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. Department may terminate 

the Contract, effective immediately, if (i) BA is named as a defendant in 
a criminal proceeding for a violation of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the 
HIPAA Regulations or other security or privacy laws or (ii) a finding or 
stipulation that the BA has violated any standard or requirement of 
HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA Regulations or other security or 
privacy laws is made in any administrative or civil proceeding in which 
the party has been joined. 

(c)  Obligations of Business Associate Upon Termination. 

Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, business associate, 
with respect to protected health information received from covered entity, 
or created, maintained, or received by business associate on behalf of 
covered entity, shall: 

1. Retain only that protected health information which is necessary for 
business associate to continue its proper management and 
administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities; 

2. Return to covered entity the remaining protected health information that 
the business associate still maintains in any form; 

3. Continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply with Subpart C of 
45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health information 
to prevent use or disclosure of the protected health information, other 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

114



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

than as provided for in this Section, for as long as business associate 
retains the protected health information; 

4. Not use or disclose the protected health information retained by 
business associate other than for the purposes for which such 
protected health information was retained and subject to the same 
conditions set out in this Agreement above which applied prior to 
termination; and 

5. Return to covered entity or, if agreed to by covered entity, destroy the 
protected health information retained by business associate when it is 
no longer needed by business associate for its proper management and 
administration or to carry out its legal responsibilities. 

4.  Indemnification 
 

BA agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Department and 
Department’s agents, board members, elected and appointed officials and 
officers, employees, volunteers and authorized representatives from any and all 
losses, liabilities, charges, damages, claims, liens, causes of action, awards, 
judgments, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees of County Counsel and counsel retained by Department, expert 
fees, costs of staff time, and investigation costs) of whatever kind or nature, 
which arise out of or are in any way connected with any negligent act or 
omission of BA or BA’s officers, agents, employees, independent BAs, sub-
contractor of any tier, or authorized representatives.  Without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, the same shall include injury or death to any person 
or persons; damage to any property, regardless of where located, including the 
property of Department; and any workers’ compensation claim or suit arising 
from or connected with any services performed pursuant to this Agreement on 
behalf of BA by any person or entity. 

 
5.  Disclaimer 
 

Department makes no warranty or representation that compliance by BA with 
this Addendum, HIPAA, the HITECH Act, or the HIPAA Regulations will be 
adequate or satisfactory for BA’s own purposes. BA is solely responsible for all 
decisions made by BA regarding the safeguarding of PHI. 

 
6.  Certification 
 

To the extent that Department determines that such examination is necessary 
to comply with Department’s legal obligations pursuant to HIPAA relating to 
certification of its security practices, Department or its authorized agents or 
contractors, may, at Department’s expense, examine BA’s facilities, systems, 
procedures and records as may be necessary for such agents or contractors 
to certify to Department the extent to which BA’s security safeguards comply 
with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the HIPAA Regulations or this Addendum. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

115



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

7.  Amendment 
 

a.  Amendment to Comply with Law. The parties acknowledge that state 
and federal laws relating to data security and privacy are rapidly evolving and 
that amendment of the Contract or Addendum may be required to provide for 
procedures to ensure compliance with such developments. The parties 
specifically agree to take such action as is necessary to implement the 
standards and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule, the 
Security Rule and other applicable laws relating to the security or confidentiality 
of PHI. The parties understand and agree that Department must receive 
satisfactory written assurance from BA that BA will adequately safeguard all 
Protected Information. Upon the request of either party, the other party agrees 
to promptly enter into negotiations concerning the terms of an amendment to 
this Addendum embodying written assurances consistent with the standards 
and requirements of HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule, the Security 
Rule or other applicable laws. Department may terminate the Contract upon 
thirty (30) days written notice in the event (i) BA does not promptly enter into 
negotiations to amend the Contract or Addendum when requested by 
Department pursuant to this Section or (ii) BA does not enter into an amendment 
to the Contract or Addendum providing assurances regarding the safeguarding 
of PHI that Department. in its sole discretion, deems sufficient to satisfy the 
standards and requirements of applicable laws. 
 

8.  Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings 
 

BA shall make itself, and any subcontractors, employees or agents assisting BA 
in the performance of its obligations under the Contract or Addendum, available 
to Department. at no cost to County, to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, in the 
event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced against 
County, its directors, officers or employees based upon a claimed violation of 
HIPAA, the HITECH Act, The Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, or other laws 
relating to security and privacy, except where BA or its subcontractor, employee 
or agent is a named adverse party.  

 
9.  No Third-Party Beneficiaries 

 
Nothing express or implied in the Contract or Addendum is intended to confer, 
nor shall anything herein confer, upon any person other than County, BA and 
their respective successors or assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations or 
liabilities whatsoever. 

 
10.  Effect on Contract  
 

Except as specifically required to implement the purposes of this Addendum, or 
to the extent inconsistent with this Addendum, all other terms of the Contract 
shall remain in force and effect. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

116



EXHIBIT “E” 

BAA-5/2020  
 

11.  Interpretation 
 

The provisions of this Addendum shall prevail over any provisions in the 
Contract that may conflict or appear inconsistent with any provision in this 
Addendum. This Addendum and the Contract shall be interpreted as broadly as 
necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy 
Rule and the Security Rule. The parties agree that any ambiguity in this 
Addendum shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that complies and is 
consistent with HIPAA, the HITECH Act, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule. 

 
 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

117



FUNDING TYPE FEDERAL STATE COUNTY
TOTAL

FUNDING

TITLE III C1 FUNDING

FY 2024-2025
$187,544 $39,572 $0 $227,116

TITLE III C2 FUNDING

FY 2024-2025
$122,277 $100,314 $0 $222,591

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDING

FY 2024-2025
$309,821 $139,886 $0 $449,707

III C SENIOR NUTRITION SERVICES

EXHIBIT 'F' - FUNDING SCHEDULE

JULY 1, 2024 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025

NORTH OF THE RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

118



Federal NSIP

Combined 

Federal + NSIP

162041 25503 187544

105599 16678 122277

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

119



 

ADMINISTRATIVE BULLETIN NO. 19 
 
 

Issued:  January 23, 2024 
 
SUBJECT:  FREE SPEECH POLICY 
 

    Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Free Speech Policy is to inform all employees, employment applicants, and 
contractors of their constitutional rights to free speech, to petition the government for redress of 
grievances, to instruct representatives, and to freely associate and assemble. Unlawful discrimination 
based on the exercise of these rights is unacceptable and incompatible with the County's standards, as 
well as being a violation of the law. This Free Speech Policy also establishes the complaint and 
investigation procedure for alleged violations of these rights. 
 
First Amendment Rights 
 
Every County employee, employment applicant, and contractor has a constitutional right to free 
speech, to petition the government for redress of grievances, to instruct representatives, and to freely 
associate and assemble. 1 For simplicity, this policy shall refer to such rights as "First Amendment 
Rights." 
 
Every County employee, employment applicant, and contractor shall be free from any unlawful 
discrimination or retaliation by the County of Kern for exercising their First Amendment Rights 
while employed, while seeking employment, or while doing or seeking to do business for or with the 
County. 
 
Free Speech Policy 
 
The County of Kem remains committed to creating a professional environment in which the First 
Amendment Rights of all County employees, employment applicants, and contractors are protected. 
 
It is a violation of the Constitutions of the United States and California for the County to unlawfully 
discriminate against County employees, employment applicants, or contractors because they 
exercised their First Amendment Rights. 
 
Every County employee, and other person acting on behalf of the County, including members of the 
Board of Supervisors, is prohibited from unlawfully discriminating against, harassing, or retaliating 
against an employee, employment applicant, or contractor because the employee, employment 
applicant, or contractor exercised their First Amendment Rights, or because they filed a complaint or 
participated in an investigation under this Free Speech Policy. 
 
All County employees and other persons acting on behalf of the County, including members of the 
Board of Supervisors, shall uphold and abide by this Free Speech Policy by cooperating fully in any 
investigation of a complaint of unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation under this Free 
Speech Policy. 
 
 

1 California Constitution, article I, sections 2(a) and 3(a); U.S. Constitution, amend. I. 

EXHIBIT “D”
Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

120



 

Persons in positions of authority, including managers and supervisors, shall act immediately on 
potential violations of this Free Speech Policy. They are responsible for knowing and enforcing this 
Policy and creating and maintaining a workplace free of discrimination, harassment, and retaliation, 
and should address potential problems before they become serious. 
 
This Free Speech Policy applies at every level of the County and to every aspect of the workplace 
environment, including but not limited to, County events that occur outside of the physical 
workplace. 
 
This Free Speech Policy shall be posted on the Kem County websites and in designated physical 
locations, and shall be attached to all County-issued Requests for Proposals (RFPs) and other 
solicitations for contract or grant proposals, County contracting forms and templates, and relevant 
notices to employees, employment applicants, and contractors. 
 
Examples of unlawful discrimination: 
 

• A department head recommends that a contract not be renewed because the contractor is 
politically active, regardless of their political position. 

 
• A supervisor declines to recommend a supervisee for a promotion, or assigns a supervisee 

to less favorable job duties or to a less favorable location, because of the supervisee's 
union activity. 

 
• A manager gives a supervisee poor job evaluations because the manager does not agree 

with their supervisee's political views. 
 

• A county decision-maker declines to award a contract to provide social services to a 
particular community based organization because that organization actively campaigns for 
a particular bill or social movement. 

 
• A county decision maker stops communicating with a potential contractor about a contract 

because the contractor has threatened to file lawsuit against the County in an unrelated 
case. 

 
The California and U.S. Constitutions also provide specific First Amendment protection for County 
elected officials and other persons acting on behalf of the County, including volunteers and interns. 
This policy does not address such persons' rights. 
 
Complaint and Investigation Procedure 
 
Each employee, employment applicant, or contractor who believes that they have experienced 
unlawful discrimination or harassment described in this Policy may file a written complaint setting 
forth the specific facts and evidence supporting the complaint with the County Complaint 
Coordinator (see below). Such complaints shall be promptly forwarded to the Free Speech Retained 
Expert (see below). The complainant shall provide all documentary evidence, names of potential 
witnesses, and any other information believed by the complainant to be relevant to the complaint.

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

121



 

 
The County Complaint Coordinator shall initiate a formal investigation of the allegations in the 
complaint, interview all witnesses to the incident giving rise to the complaint (including the 
complainant and the person(s) against whom the complaint is directed), and issue written findings as 
to the merits of the complaint and the remedies that should be implemented to resolve the complaint 
under existing County ordinances, policies, and procedures. The County Complaint Coordinator shall 
have a period of not more than 75 business days from receipt of the complaint to conduct the 
investigation and to issue appropriate draft findings and recommended remedies. The 75-day time 
period may be extended due to the unavailability of a material witness, or with the written agreement 
of the complainant. 
 
The County Complaint Coordinator shall provide the draft findings and recommended remedies to 
the Free Speech Retained Expert for review and approval. The County Complaint Coordinator shall 
also provide the Free Speech Retained Expert with a copy of the complaint, all information and 
documentary evidence provided by the complainant, all witness interview materials and documents 
provided by witnesses, and all information and documentary evidence developed by the County 
Complaint Coordinator in conducting the investigation. 
 
In the event that the Free Speech Retained Expert does not approve the County Complaint 
Coordinator's draft findings and recommended remedies, the Free Speech Retained Expert shall 
prepare a written explanation of the reasons for non-approval. The Free Speech Retained Expert and 
County Complaint Coordinator shall meet and confer to resolve any disagreement or deficiencies, 
and both parties shall state their positions in writing. The County Complaint Coordinator shall then 
take all necessary steps to correct any deficiencies and re-submit the draft findings and recommended 
remedies to the Free Speech Retained Expert for review and approval. 
In the case of any complaints in which there is an appearance of bias, conflict of interest, or 
insufficient independence with regard to the handling of the complaint by the County Complaint 
Coordinator, the Backup Complaint Coordinator (see below) shall conduct the investigation, and the 
Free Speech Retained Expert shall review and approve in the same manner as any investigation 
conducted by the County Complaint Coordinator. 
 
The Free Speech Retained Expert shall conduct the investigation if both the Complaint Coordinator 
and the Backup Complaint Coordinator are conflicted. The County shall implement the Free Speech 
Retained Expert's findings and remedies. 
 
Department heads shall be responsible for ensuring that all new employees and contract staff in their 
department receive a copy of this policy and sign an acknowledgment which shall be retained in the 
employee's personnel file (or a similar file for contract staff). In addition, department heads shall 
ensure that, on an annual basis, each employee in their department receives a copy of this policy and 
that an acknowledgment of receipt is contained in each employee's personnel file. 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

122



 

Department heads may establish departmental policies and internal complaint procedures provided 
that those policies and procedures are consistent with this Policy. 
 
Nothing in this Policy shall abrogate any legal evidentiary standards in a court of law. 
 
Complaints Within the Scope of Civil Service Commission Rule 1810.00, et seq. 
 
The Kem County Rules of the Civil Service Commission ("Civil Service Rules") provide a voluntary 
complaint procedure for some complaints that fall within the scope of this Policy. These Civil Service 
Rules apply to civil service employees or applicants for civil service employment complaining of 
unlawful discrimination, harassment, or retaliation based on religious, union, or political affiliation, or 
due to their participation in a government investigation. 
 
A complainant whose complaint falls within the scope of both the Civil Service Rules and this Policy 
may choose to file their complaint using the procedure described in the Civil Service Rules, 
commencing at section 1820.00, or using the procedure otherwise described in this Policy, but not 
both. If a complainant invokes both procedures for the same complaint, the complainant shall be 
required to make a written election of which procedure they wish to have apply. 
 
The Free Speech Retained Expert will review all such complaints consistent with the time limitations, 
procedure, and appellate rights set forth in Civil Service Rule 1820.00. The Free Speech Retained 
Expert will review and approve findings of fact and recommended remedies issued by the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Officer. 
 
Under Civil Service Rule 1830.00-1830.02, either the complainant or the County may request a 
hearing before the Civil Service Commission. The Free Speech Retained Expert does not review the 
Civil Service Commission's decision for approval but will provide a report to the County and 
complainant regarding any comments, concerns, or recommendations related to the Commission's 
final decision, within 60-120 days of that decision. 
 
County Complaint Coordinator:  Sarah Gutierrez, Director of Diversity, Equity and Inclusion; 
(661) 868-3919; gutierrezsa@kerncounty.com 
 
Backup County Complaint Coordinator:  Mercedes Perez, Senior Human Resources Specialist;  
(661) 868-3915; perezmer@kerncounty.com 
 
Free Speech Retained Expert: 
Barry McDonald, (310) 506-4668; barry.mcdonald@pepperdine.edu 
 
 
 

    Apm/AB/AB-19_01-23-2024 

Docusign Envelope ID: 1362F1D1-3C80-4091-B035-30181FD7E68D

123



 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors                                                                  SUBJECT:  Election of Officer 
 
FROM:  General Manager                                                                 DATE:  December 10, 2024  
 
AGENDA ITEM 8.A.                         BOARD OF DIRECTORS                     DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
 
TITLE:  Election of Officers for Calendar Year 2025 
 

1.  Chairperson 
2.  Vice-Chairperson 

 
 

124



 
 
TO:         Board of Directors                                          SUBJECT:   Bid Award—Polo Bark Park and 

              Landscape Improvements  
 
FROM:   General Manager                                                                      DATE:   December 12, 2024 
                Director of Finance 
                Director of Planning and Construction 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8.B.                             BOARD OF DIRECTORS                         DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
 
TITLE:  Award of Bid for the Polo Community Park Bark Park and Landscape Improvements 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board of Directors approves Resolution #41-24 authorizing 
the construction of the dog park and landscape improvements at Polo Community Park. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The project will cost approximately $586,549.03. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:  Approval of the FY 2023-2024 Capital Improvements Budget. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The District finds the current state of Polo Community Park has been 
significantly impacted by incidents of vandalism, which not only disrupt the enjoyment of 
park amenities but also increase maintenance costs. In response, staff has had to allocate 
additional resources to repairs and maintenance. Additionally, there is a growing demand for 
more drop in, free recreational spaces that are both accessible and inclusive of all members 
of our community, particularly pet owners who frequently let their dogs run off leash at Polo 
Community Park and many of our other parks sites against District ordinance. There has 
been a clear request from local residents for additional dog parks, or “bark parks”, which 
allows District constituents to permissibly allow off-leash activities in a designated area . A 
dog park would not only provide a dedicated, safe environment for dogs, but also encourage 
responsible pet ownership and enhance the overall park experience for families, seniors, and 
other residents. The creation of a bark park in Polo Community Park will address both 
concerns, offering a new, well-defined space for residents and their pets to enjoy safely 
while also helping to mitigate vandalism and undesirable dog activities in high traffic areas of 
the park. 
 

125



The Polo Community Park Bark Park and Landscape Improvements project information was 
posted to the NOR website and a Notice to Bidders advertisement was published in the 
Bakersfield Californian. Four (4) invitations to bid were sent by email to various contractors 
who have previously worked with the District or expressed interest in working with the 
District.  Eight (8) contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting held onsite October 
23, 2024.  Five (5) bids were received by 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, November 12, 2024.  The 
lowest responsive, responsible bidder is KYA Services, LLC. 
 
Resolution #41-24 will award the bid to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, KYA 
Services, LLC for the construction of Polo Community Park Bark Park and the associated 
Landscape Improvements. 

126



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 

IN THE MATTER OF:  
 
AWARD OF BID FOR THE POLO COMMUNITY PARK  
BARK PARK AND LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
_________________________________________ 
 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director _________________ and seconded 
by Director ________________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors 
at an official meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to 
wit: 
 
     AYES: 
 
     NOES: 
 
     ABSENT: 
 
     ABSTAIN: 
 
                                                                                             ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors of the 
North of the River Recreation and 
Park District 

 
 

RESOLUTION #41-24 
 

WHEREAS, North of the River Recreation and Park District recognizes a growing 
demand for more free, drop in recreational amenities such as off-leash dog areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, North of the River Recreation and Park District has approved 

construct a dog park and associated landscape improvements as part of the 2024-2025 
Capital Improvement Projects plan; and 
 

127



WHEREAS, the Polo Community Park Bark Park and Landscape Improvements 
project was advertised in the Bakersfield Californian, on the NOR website and 
information sent directly to four (4) contractors; and  

 
WHEREAS, five (5) bids were received for the Polo Community Park Bark Park 

and Landscape Improvements with the lowest responsive, responsible bid provided by 
KYA Services, LLC in the amount of $586,549.03. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors accepts the bid 

from KYA Services, LLC in the amount of $586,549.03; and  
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to sign all contract 

related documents; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff is authorized to handle day to day 

responsibilities to complete the project; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that staff be authorized to make payment to the vendor 

upon satisfactory completion of the project. 
 

128



 
 
 
TO:         Board of Directors                                         SUBJECT:   Purchase of Irrigation Controller  
                                         Polo Bark Park 
 
FROM:   General Manager                                                                       DATE:   December 12, 2024 
                Director of Finance 
    Director of Planning and Construction 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8.C.                               BOARD OF DIRECTORS                       DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
 
TITLE:  Approval of Purchase of Irrigation Controller for Polo Community Park Bark Park 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board of Directors approves Resolution #42-24 authorizing 
the purchase of a new irrigation controller. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The irrigation controller will cost $33,011.91. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:  Approval of Capital Improvement Project Budget for FY 2024-
2025. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The existing irrigation controller for Polo Community Park is at maximum 
capacity of valve stations for the improved 40-acre park site. It is also obsolete, unable to be 
upgraded. With the addition of the Bark Park and the conversion of turf areas to planter 
areas, a supplementary controller is required to accommodate the irrigation valves. The 
District has previously migrated some existing controllers and specified new irrigation 
controllers to WeatherTRAK weather-based remote irrigation management system as the 
new standard. This system has proven to significantly reduce water waste, optimizes the 
watering window to cut water usage and automates maintenance operations. The new 
irrigation management system will communicate between two controller locations, allowing 
the old wiring and valve system to remain in place while efficiently adding fifteen new 
irrigation valves. 
 
Resolution #42-24 authorizes the purchase of the irrigation controller for Polo Community 
Park Bark Park. 

129



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 

IN THE MATTER OF:  
 
IRRIGATION CONTROLLER FOR POLO COMMUNITY PARK 
BARK PARK AND LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
_________________________________________ 
 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director _________________ and seconded 
by Director ________________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors 
at an official meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to 
wit: 
 
     AYES: 
 
     NOES: 
 
     ABSENT: 
 
     ABSTAIN: 
 
                                                                                             ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors of the 
North of the River Recreation and 
Park District 

 
 

RESOLUTION #42-24 
 

WHEREAS, North of the River Recreation and Park District plans to construct a 
dog park; and 

 
WHEREAS, Construction of the Bark Park and associated landscape 

improvements require the modification of and additions to the irrigation system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the existing irrigation controller is obsolete and cannot accommodate 

the additional irrigation valves needed; and 

130



WHEREAS, the District has standardized irrigation controllers for operations and 
maintenance asset management and staff efficiency to WeatherTRAK irrigation 
controllers; and 

 
WHEREAS, SiteOne is the licensed vendor to carry this system; and  
 
WHEREAS, SiteOne provided a quote for purchase of the new irrigation 

controller management system in the amount of $33,011.91. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors accepts the 

proposal from SiteOne in the amount of $33,011.91; and  
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to sign all contract 

related documents; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff is authorized to handle day to day 

responsibilities to complete the project; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that staff be authorized to make payment to the vendor 

upon satisfactory completion of the project. 
 

131



 
 
 
TO:         Board of Directors                                           SUBJECT:   Approve Purchase of Bark   

                   Park Site Features and Amenities 
 
FROM:   General Manager                                                              DATE:   December 12, 2024 
   Director of Finance 
               Director of Planning and Construction 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8.D.                        BOARD OF DIRECTORS                      DECEMBER 16, 2024 
 
TITLE:  Approval of “Piggyback” Bid/Proposal Omina Partners Contract #4001513 for the 
Purchase of Site Features and Amenities for Polo Community Park Bark Park.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That the Board of Directors approves Resolution #43-24 for the 
purchase of site features and amenities for the Polo Bark Park project.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The cost of all site features and amenities for this project is 
$66,959.20. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION:  This project was approved under the Capital Improvement 
Project Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 
     
BACKGROUND:  Polo Community Park Bark Park has site features and amenities 
specified to District standards in such that NOR is providing all items to be installed by 
the awarded contractor. Purchases of amenities and such is standard practice by the 
District to optimize project budgets and streamline construction timelines. “Piggyback” 
purchasing allows the District to purchase materials via a pre-existing, government bid 
contract, consolidating lead times for materials and ensuring District standards are 
consistent. Procurement is via Omnia Partners, in which the District is a member, 
Contract #5180231 for “piggyback” contracting. Items to be purchased include drinking 
fountains, picnic tables, trash receptacles, benches and obstacle features for dogs. 
 
Resolution #43-24 will approve the cooperative purchasing agreement with Omnia 
Partners, via Great Western Recreation, for the purchase of the site features and 
amenities for the Bark Park at Polo Community Park. 
 

132



THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

OF THE 
 

NORTH OF THE RIVER RECREATION AND PARK DISTRICT 
 

IN THE MATTER OF:  
 
SITE FEATURES AND AMENITIES FOR POLO COMMUNITY PARK 
BARK PARK AND LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
_________________________________________ 
 
 

I, Janett Miller, Clerk of the Board of Directors of the North of the River 
Recreation and Park District, of the County of Kern, State of California, do hereby certify 
that the following resolution proposed by Director _________________ and seconded 
by Director ________________ was duly passed and adopted by said Board of Directors 
at an official meeting thereof this 16th day of December 2024 by the following vote to 
wit: 
 
     AYES: 
 
     NOES: 
 
     ABSENT: 
 
     ABSTAIN: 
 
                                                                                             ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors of the 
North of the River Recreation and 
Park District 

 
 

RESOLUTION #43-24 
 

WHEREAS, North of the River Recreation and Park District owns operates and 
maintains Polo Community Park; and 

 
WHEREAS, the addition of a dog “bark” park is approved as a Capital 

Improvement Project for Fiscal Year 2024-2025; and  
 

133



WHEREAS, Proposed site features and amenities are part of the Polo Community 
Park Bark Park and Landscaping Improvements project, to be purchased by the District 
and installed by the awarded contractor; and 

 
WHEREAS, North of the River Recreation and Park District is a member of Omina 

Partners, a cooperative purchasing affiliation, as Contract #5180231; and 
 
WHEREAS, Great Western Recreation represents UltraSite, Most Dependable 

Fountains and Victor Stanley via Omnia Partners Contract #4001513; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Omnia Partners “piggyback” contract provides for a turn-key 

project that has been competitively bid via another public entity contract, therefore 
saving District time and resources. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors approves the 

contract with Great Western Recreation in the amount of $66,959.20 for the purchase 
of site amenities for Polo Community Bark Park; and  

 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that the General Manager is authorized to sign all contract 

related documents; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that staff is authorized to handle day to day 

responsibilities to complete the project; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that staff be authorized to make payment to the vendor 

upon satisfactory completion of the project. 
 

134



Project Projected Cost
Projected 
Start Year

Applicable
Funding 
Source(s) Land Acquisition

Site Surveys, 
Geotechnical Study, 

Community Mtgs.

Preliminary Design, 
Site Dev. Plan, Grant 

Application

Environmental, Site 
Plan Review, City/Co. 

Applications

Construction 
Document 

Preparation (In House 
 

Buidling Permits, 
Fees, Project Bid & 

Award

Construction, Post 
Const., Grant Final, 

Notice of Completion
Estimated Time
to Completion

6(f)(3) Conversion Paperwork In Kind 2018 7 - - - - - - - 4-6 months
Kern Parks Project In Kind 2021 7 - - - - - - - 1-2 years, 2024
Master Plan 2020-2030 $250,000 2020 7 - - - - - - - 1-2 years
NOR Maintenance Facility $500,000 2024 10 -
NOR Pool Mitigation & Planning Pending Env. 2020 1,3, 6, 7,9 - - - - - - -
Polo Community Park Dog Park $250,000 2022 B - - 8-10 mo. - 6-8 mo. 5 mo. 6-8 mo. 2.5+/ yrs, 2024
Standard Park Irrigation & Renovation $2.56 M 2024 1,3,6 - - 12-14 mo. - 6 mo. 5 mo. 12-18 mo 3+/- years, 2025
Stockdale River Ranch Master Park Planning & Design $17,000 2019 7, 12 - - 8-12 mo. - 6-12 mo. - 12-18 mo. 3 +/- years, '23-24

Funding Source Key

1 = Grants-LWCF  7  = In Kind A = In Lieu/Quimby

2 = Grants, Federal  8  = Public-Private Partnership B = Development Fee

3 = Grants-CDBG  9  = Insurance

4 = Prop. 218 Maint. Fund, NM 10 = Financing

5 = Prop. 218 Maint. Fund, NOR 11 = Not Used

6 = Unfunded 12 = Developer Contributions

North of the River Recreation and Park District
Capital Improvement Plan Fiscal Year 2024-2025

135



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff Reports 
Capital Improvement Projects 

  

136



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: NOR POOL MITIGATION AND PLANNING 

Budgeted Amount: $50,000                    Date Budget Approved: July 15, 2024                          Budget Spent to Date: $0 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
The NOR Pool was shut down in February 2020 due to, at the time, unknown debris entering the pool. Upon further investigation through 
May 2020, the unidentified substance was tested and found to be asbestos, at which time the District mitigated the pool and surrounding 
area to abate and/or contain the contaminant. Since May 2020, staff has been working with insurance and an environmental consultant to 
find the best approach for a long term, holistic solution at the pool. 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                              Date: December 11, 2024 
 

Pipe investigation commenced on June 29-30, 2021 with insurance adjuster, Exponent and contractors onsite. Communication ongoing 
between NOR staff, environmental consultant and insurance team. Exponent report received mid-October; staff is reviewing and staff ‘s 
opinion of approach differs. January meeting provided update from insurance; staff responded to comments and investigated information 
provided. Ongoing discussions with CAPRI, staff review and other contractors/experts lends itself to another investigation at the pool to 
provide more information. Letter of counterstatement submitted back to CAPRI, agreed to a third-party review via meeting in early 
October.  Forensic engineer has been retained by CAPRI for third party investigation and completed site visit on June 13, 2023. Final report 
has been received and reviewed with CAPRI. Exponent has provided response to report; staff is working with CAPRI to provide comment 
and next steps of claim completion/mediation, as of June 12, 2024.  As of September 8, 2023, the entire NOR Park site has been fenced due 
to areas of concern with an unknown substance. A semi-permanent fence has been placed as of early October 2023. Subsurface 
investigation of the site started the week of January 29th and was completed February 27, 2024. Data processing has commenced and 
further subsurface investigation is needed to collect detailed data. The next phase of investigation commenced June 10th, 2024 and was 
completed August 1, 2024 with data and review continuing over the next 8 weeks. Recent discussions have turned to future mitigation of 
impacted areas, concurrent with the District’s future plans of the site. 

 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

PLANNING/CONCEPTUAL DESIGN CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Site Survey     
Geotechnical Survey  10/2023   
Preliminary Design     
Community Input     
Final Site Development Plan     
Grant Application     
Environmental Determination     
Site Plan Review     

 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 

Site Construction Plans     
Grading and Drainage Plans     
Irrigation Plans     
Landscape Plans     
Structural Engineering Plans     
Architectural Plans     
Electrical/Lighting Plans     
Site Furnishings and Details     
Building Permits     

137



Page 2 
 

Specification and Record Package     

 
 

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Project Advertising     
Prebid Conference     
Bids Received     
Bid Award     
Project Construction     
Notice of Completion     
Record Notice of Completion     
Commence Maintenance Period     
Grant Final Document     
Finalize Financial Records     
O&M-NOR turnover     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

138



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: POLO COMMUNITY DOG PARK & LANDSCAPING 

Budgeted Amount: $250,000                    Date Budget Approved: July 15, 2024                Budget Spent to Date: $13,280 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Construction of dog park at Polo Community Park. Initial project meeting held internally with park and planning staff. Discussion also 
wrapped in the resolution of ongoing damage to open turf areas and the destruction of the outfields of the NW and SW youth softball 
fields. Planter areas and increased plant material will help deter these actions and can also resolve irrigation concerns and runoff. Location 
of the dog park to be at former reserved water well site, at the southwest corner of the property. 
 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                             Date: December 11, 2024  
 

Contracted w/ landscape architectural consultant to produce specification drawings; walked site March/April, initial site review with 
planning and maintenance staff. Second conceptual plan received, reviewed in-house with maintenance for operational viewpoints. 
Design development meeting mid-October 2022, working toward final plan with cost estimate. Revised concept received, pending internal 
review. January 2023’s CIP presentation showed working concept moving forward. Walked site w/ landscape architect mid-July 2023 to 
finalize plant palette, tree placement and irrigation layout. Project bid in October/November 2024; pending review and confirmation of bid 
documents received. Bid received currently in excess of budgeted amount. Staff completed due diligence on received bids in November 
2024 and award of bid for contractor is before the Board December 2024. Concurrent with the contract award, the purchase of the 
irrigation management system and site amenities are before the Board in December. 
 

 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

PLANNING/CONCEPTUAL DESIGN CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Site Survey     
Geotechnical Survey     
Preliminary Design N/A 10/2020 07/2023 Complete. 
Community Input     
Final Site Development Plan     
Grant Application     
Environmental Determination     
Site Plan Review     

 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 

Site Construction Plans $17,000 03/2022 09/2024 Complete. 
Grading and Drainage Plans     
Irrigation Plans  07/2023 09/2024 Complete. 
Landscape Plans  07/2023 09/2024 Complete. 
Structural Engineering Plans     
Architectural Plans     
Electrical/Lighting Plans     
Site Furnishings and Details     
Building Permits     139



Page 2 
 

Specification and Record Package     

 
PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 

Project Advertising  10/2024  Advertise 10/18/2024 
Prebid Conference  10/2024  Bid closes 11/8/2024; revised to 11/12/24 
Bids Received  11/2024 11/2024 Total of five (5) bids; three (3) qualified bids. 
Bid Award  11/2024 12/2024 Request award of bid to KYA Services, LLC. 
Project Construction     
Notice of Completion     
Record Notice of Completion     
Commence Maintenance Period     
Grant Final Document     
Finalize Financial Records     
O&M-NOR turnover     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

140



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 
 

PROJECT: STANDARD PARK IRRIGATION RENOVATION 

Budgeted Amount: $2,560,000   Date Budget Approved: July 15, 2024            Budget Spent to Date: $0 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Standard Park is due for a major renovation because of age and irrigation inefficiency. Renovation shall include a new irrigation system, 
state model water efficient landscape ordinance compliance, turf renovation, the addition of compliant planter areas and upgraded 
amenities as budget allows. 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                   Date: December 11, 2024 
 

The Statewide Park Program Grant (Prop. 68) application was submitted March 12, 2021 and is pending grant review. Grant awards 
expected to be announced 4th quarter 2021. State requested further information regarding the grant application June 2021 and conducted 
a site visit on July 7, 2021. Award letter was received June 8, 2022. 
 
Project awarded at $1,280,475; 50/50 match as a Land and Water Conservation Fund federal grant, administered by the California Office of 
Grants and Local Services (OGALS). Native American Consultation initial review complete. Proceeding with Section 106 (Historic 
Preservation) and NEPA documents for National Park Service (NPS); these documents have been completed and turned into the state as of 
March 1, 2024.  Further review from the state required more clarification to the State Office of Historic Preservation, submitted May 6, 2024. 
OGALS revised the budget narrative forms and map requirements May 2024; met w/ OGALS LWCF staff via web conference June 5, 2024 to 
go over revisions and requirements. Provided new forms/updates to OGALS June 6, 2024 for final approval by NPS. Contract fully executed 
November 2024. Staff met internally December 2024 to set a pre-project walk in January 2025 to commence design development to 
construction documents. 

 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

PLANNING/CONCEPTUAL DESIGN CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Site Survey     
Section 106/NAHC Survey  7/2022  Sect. 106 archeological complete, initial tribe 

consultation complete. Waiting on response 
from individual tribes. 

Preliminary Design  5/2019 6/2019 Complete.  
Community Input  1/2019 3/2021 Complete. 
Final Site Development Plan     
Grant Application $2.56 M w/ 50% 

match 
1/2022  LWCF awarded at $1,280,475 

Pending Sect. 106 & NEPA forms. 
Environmental Determination  5/2022 

8/2022 
5/2022 CEQA as Categorical Exemption through State 

Clearinghouse, A&R NEPA form reviewed by 
state, making finite revisions to send to NPS 

Site Plan Review     

 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 

Site Construction Plans     
Grading and Drainage Plans     
Irrigation Plans     
Landscape Plans     
Structural Engineering Plans     
Architectural Plans     141



Page 2 
 

Electrical/Lighting Plans     
Site Furnishings and Details     
Building Permits     
Specification and Record Package     

  
 

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Project Advertising     
Prebid Conference     
Bids Received     
Bid Award     
Project Construction     
Notice of Completion     
Record Notice of Completion     
Commence Maintenance Period     
Grant Final Document     
Finalize Financial Records     
O&M-NOR turnover     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

142



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: STOCKDALE RIVER RANCH PARK 

Budgeted Amount: $17,000    Date Budget Approved: July 15, 2024                        Budget Spent to Date: $0 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

As of August 2015, Bolthouse Properties and the District entered into a legal agreement for the development of Stockdale River Ranch 
Park. The phased development of Stockdale River Ranch (SRR) will provide the District with an approximately 22-acre community park and 
associated amenities as defined by the District’s Master Plan.  
 

STATUS SUMMARY                   Date: December 11, 2024 
 

Zone change has been processed and legal documentation has moved forward within the city. Address has been assigned and Site Plan 
Review has been approved by the City of Bakersfield. Met w/ Bolthouse December 2021, determined plan schedule and contracting 
deadline, surveying commenced March 2022. Applied for a CPRS/Gametime Playground Grant in July 2022; awarded September 2022. Civil 
engineering completed grading and underground infrastructure plans submitted to City October 2022 with final review and permit April 
2023. March-April 2023: Construction documents underway; staff currently working on irrigation and site construction. Playground 
finalized; working on restroom, electrical, site furnishings and picnic shelters. Construction documents are at approximately 70% 
completion. Official groundbreaking was held June 1st; construction documents are pending budgets and the restroom structure 
placement. Finalizing construction documents; review plan set was sent to Bolthouse end of September 2023. Plans were bid out for 
preliminary budget numbers; currently finalizing landscape construction and architectural details. Weekly/bi-weekly meetings with 
Bolthouse are occurring beginning January 2024 to hone budget, schedule and fine details. PG & E application is being processed. Onsite 
work completed includes completion of post tension slab for sports courts, curb and gutter for parking lot, and staking/placement of light 
standards. Finalizing site amenities and landscape plans; picnic shelter plans are approved. Onsite, restroom is up, 90% completion on 
sports courts, parking lot is complete, site concrete being poured. Bolts and footings for the shelters were delivered December 2024.  
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

PLANNING/CONCEPTUAL DESIGN CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Site Survey By Bolthouse 12/2021 01/2022  
Geotechnical Survey By Bolthouse 10/2021 12/2021 Complete; filed report. 
Preliminary Design In Lieu-NOR 8/2015 1/2021 Final renderings being produced. 
Final Site Development Plan Bolthouse/NOR 2/2021 11/2021 Approved. 
Grant Application Pending 7/2022  CPRS/Gametime Healthy Play Initiative Grant 

awarded. Pending receipt of documents. 
Environmental Determination     
Site Plan Review By Bolthouse 09/2021 01/2022 Approved w/ minor comment by COB. 

 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 

Site Construction Plans  02/2023  In progress. 
Grading and Drainage Plans  02/2022 04/2023 Surveying complete; civil cut/fill balance before 

setting final grades. Grading plan in for final 
permit. 

Irrigation Plans  03/2023  In progress 
Landscape Plans  12/2021 04/2023 Planting plan 100% complete; pending 

electrical changes. 
Structural Engineering Plans     
Architectural Plans  03/2023  In progress 
Electrical/Lighting Plans  03/2023 03/2024 90% complete 
Site Furnishings and Details  02/2023  In progress. 

143



Page 2 
 

Building Permits     
Specification and Record Package     

 
 
NOTES 

 

144



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: MASTER PLAN 2025-2035 

Budgeted Amount: $250,000   Date Budget Approved: July 15, 2024                             Budget Spent to Date: $0 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

NOR’s Master Plan has been consistently updated approximately every 10 years or so. The Master Plan is the guiding document for land 
acquisition, planning and capital improvements, as well as reviewing recreation trends, program needs, major maintenance projects and 
future projections.  
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                   Date: December 11, 2024 
 

District ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan with DAC, Inc (ON HOLD). This plan will drive portions of the Major Maintenance plan and 
also evaluate existing park sites for better design accessibility, useful information for future park planning. Preliminary work slated to begin 
early September. Also working with Kern County Planning, Kern County RPDs and CSDs to procure a nexus study for the review of impact 
fees as well as update the county General Plan. As of Oct. 14th 2021 meeting, nexus study is moving forward with 10 agencies; staff is the 
lead on the project (ON HOLD). DAC is complete with data collection in the field; entering into DACtrac for tracking. Working on 
community input portion of contract; this part is on hold pending response from DAC. City of Bakersfield is also doing their master plan for 
parks, staff is participating in workshops and meetings since so much of the information can be cross referenced between the two 
agencies. Phone call regarding the Bakersfield Parks Master Plan was held in July 2024 with City Council receiving reports and 
recommendations. NOR is reviewing RFPs for NOR Master Plan; project is scheduled internally calendar Q3-Q4 pending staff availability. No 
updates for December. 

 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 

DAC/ ADA Transition Plan $83,680.00 09/2021  Data collected, working w/ staff for community 
involvement 

ADA Public Input  03/2022  Finalizing community documents 
Bids Received     
Bid Award     
Project Construction     
Notice of Completion     
Record Notice of Completion     
Commence Maintenance Period     
Grant Final Document     
Finalize Financial Records     
O&M-NOR turnover     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT  

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

145



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff Reports 
Major Maintenance Projects 

 
 
 

146



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: EMERALD COVE PARK  

Budgeted Amount: $250,000.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024,  Budget Spent to Date: $0.00 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Emerald Cove has one project: Parking lot rehab. 
 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12/12/2024 
 

 
 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
     
     

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

147



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: MAJOR MAINTENANCE PARK FIXTURES / DISTRICT TREE TRIMMING 

Budgeted Amount: $178,000.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024, Budget Spent to Date: $3005.59 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
Site Furnishing Replacement: Second phase is to replace all the wooden picnic tables throughout the district to aluminum picknick tables 
bringing them up to the district standard. The wood picnic tables are a maintenance issue due to vandalism and their age/condition. The 
parks included in this project include Riverview, Rasmussen, Sears, McCray, North Highland, Beardsley, Fruitvale Norris, Greenacres, Liberty, 
Olive East, Olive West, Emerald Cove, Westdale. District Tree Trimming Project: This project will cover three to four of the Districts larger 
parks with older and mature trees that are in need of maintenance to insure the integrity and safety of these trees. 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12/12/2024 
// 

 
 
 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Liberty Light Upgrade $3005.59 11/4/24 11/26/24 Completed 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

148



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: GREENACRES COMMUITY CENTER 

Budgeted Amount: $78,000.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024, Budget Spent to Date: $5,564.24 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Greenacres Community Center has multiple projects budgeted this year. These projects include Senior Center Roof replacement, Gym 
Floor Recoat, Architectural Signage for the center and pool, Pool ADA lift, Lane Lines, and Chlorine Injector “scheduled 2nd Quarter”. The 
Greenacres Community Center Roof has reached its life expectancy and maintenance patches/repairs are no longer sufficient “Scheduled 
for May”. 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12/12/2024 
 

 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
ADA Lift $6,243.99   Delivered 12/7/24  
Lane Lines $3,064.80   Ordered swept  
Clorine Injector $4,060.69   Ordered 
Gym Floor Resurface $4.220.00 01/02/25  Scheduled for 01/02/25 
Office Project $5,564.24 11/22/24  In house 
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
   

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

149



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: NORTH HIGHLAND PARK 

Budgeted Amount: $288,000.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024,  Budget Spent to Date: $0.00 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

North Highland Park has multiple projects: They include shelter replacement, playground replacement, and restroom/concessions building 
rehab that will include a roof and facia repair/replacement, exterior/interior paint and restroom fixtures and partition refresh “Scheduled 
for March” 
 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12/12/2024 
 

 
 
 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Playground    In Design 
Shelter    In Design 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

150



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: NORTH ROSEDALE  

Budgeted Amount: $30,000.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024,  Budget Spent to Date: $13,784.04 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Bathroom/Concessions Building rehab: Replace damaged roof and facia, paint building exterior, replace bathroom partitions and paint 
women’s restroom interior “Scheduled for November”. 
 
 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12/12/2024 

 
 
 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Restroom Concession Stand 
Roof/Paint Project 

$9,55.68 10/28 11/15 In House 

Women’s Bathroom Partitions  $4,728.36 11/08  Delivered awaiting Installation – In house 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

151



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: RIVERLAKES COMMUITY CENTER 

Budgeted Amount: $12,000   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024,  Budget Spent to Date: $0.00 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Riverlakes Community Center has one project budgeted this year.  Gym floors recoat. 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12.12/2024   

 

 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
Gym Floor Resurface $8,565.00 12/19  Scheduled for 12/19/24 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

152



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: RIVERVIEW COMMUNITY CENTER 

Budgeted Amount: $82,500.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024, Budget Spent to Date:  $0.00 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
Riverview Community Center has multiple projects budgeted this year. These projects include Gym floor repair and resurface, Paint gym 
interior, Community Center window replacement, and Architectural signage “Scheduled for January & February”. 
 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 11/16/2024 

 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

153



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: RASMUSSEN SENIOR CENTER 

Budgeted Amount: $60,000.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024,  Budget Spent to Date: $0.00 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

SAC has multiple projects this year. They include Rental Catering area upgrade “Scheduled for February”, outdoor recreation area “to be 
Scheduled”, Repair parapet roof “Scheduled for April”, and Architectural signage. 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 11/16/2024 
 

 
 
 
 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
     
     

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

154



MAJOR MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

 FISCAL YEAR 2024-2025 
 

PROJECT: SEARS PARK  

Budgeted Amount: $35,00.00   Date Budget Approved: July 15th, 2024,  Budget Spent to Date: $0.00 
 

PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

Interior Retrofit for programing: Floors lighting, paint interior/exterior, window, miscellaneous repairs. 
 
 

STATUS SUMMARY                        Date: 12/12/2024 
 

 
 
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 

 
 

PROJECT  CONTRACTED AMT. START DATE END DATE NOTES/STATUS 
     
     

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

 
PROJECT CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT DESCRIPTION 

   
   
   

 
NOTES 

 

155



 

  
  
  

 

FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
 
 

NOVEMBER 2024 BUDGET REPORTS 
 

Attached are the preliminary November 2024 monthly computer budget 
reports summarizing revenues and expenditures by major fund.  
 
All monthly computer budget reports and balance sheet reports will be 
available for review at Board meetings including: 
 
  Budget Reports 
  Business Type Reports 
  Balance Sheet 
   
 
 
 

156



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 1 of 1

07:24:49                                Statement of Expenditure - Budget vs. Actual Report                Report ID: B100F

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                            Committed        Committed         Original         Current        Available        % (

  Fund                                    Current Month         YTD          Appropriation    Appropriation    Appropriation   Comm.

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  10 General Fund                            1,120,997.90      6,102,986.76    16,901,877.00    16,901,877.00     10,798,890.24  36%

  31 North Meadows                              32,023.33        161,682.34       550,346.00       550,346.00        388,663.66  29%

  41 Capital                                   125,918.75        489,050.04     4,212,526.00     4,212,526.00      3,723,475.96  12%

  90 N. Bak. Recreation Foundation                  25.00         25,170.00        29,900.00        29,900.00          4,730.00  84%

                        Grand Total:         1,278,964.98      6,778,889.14    21,694,649.00    21,694,649.00     14,915,759.86  31%

157



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 1 of 1

07:25:47                                       Statement of Revenue Budget vs Actuals                      Report ID: B110F

                                               For the Accounting Period:    11 / 24

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

                                                         Received                                               Revenue     % ( 42)

          Fund                                         Current Month     Received YTD     Estimated Revenue  To Be Received Received

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  10 General Fund                                          1,131,831.56      3,273,005.98     16,716,676.00     13,443,670.02  20 %

  31 North Meadows                                            15,356.84         19,166.38        430,509.00        411,342.62   4 %

  35 NOR Park                                                 27,556.43         34,947.87        652,007.00        617,059.13   5 %

  41 Capital                                                       0.00              0.00      3,912,950.00      3,912,950.00   0 %

  90 N. Bak. Recreation Foundation                                 0.00         25,500.00         29,900.00          4,400.00  85 %

                       Grand Total:                        1,174,744.83      3,352,620.23     21,742,042.00     18,389,421.77  15 %

158



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 1 of 5

07:23:10                                            Income Statements Summarized                           Report ID: LB170AS

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

  10 General Fund

                                                                        --------------------- Current Year -----------------------

                                                                          Current

                                                                          Month         Current YTD     Budget         Variance

                                                                         ------------   ------------  -------------  -------------

         REVENUES

           410000 Property Taxes                                            401,174.20   1,580,676.96   9,705,637.00  -8,124,960.04

           420000 Interest                                                   24,972.49      29,194.90      82,000.00     -52,805.10

           430000 Grants                                                     58,562.03      83,562.03     712,122.00    -628,559.97

           440000 Fees                                                       47,959.05     174,344.88   1,178,213.00  -1,003,868.12

           450000 Donations/Sponsorships                                      6,256.00      38,112.00     592,667.00    -554,555.00

           460000 Rentals                                                    63,954.25     374,604.60     925,650.00    -551,045.40

           470000 Other Financing Sources                                                                 936,500.00    -936,500.00

           480000 Miscellaneous                                             528,953.54     992,510.61   2,583,887.00  -1,591,376.39

                            Total REVENUES                                1,131,831.56   3,273,005.98

         EXPENDITURES

           510000 Salaries/Wages                                            439,991.51   2,151,669.33   7,634,770.00   5,483,100.67

           519000 Program Salaries/Wages                                    157,051.88     698,251.30     415,205.00    -283,046.30

           520000 Employee Benefits                                         152,757.75   1,090,341.75   2,684,479.00   1,594,137.25

           529000 Program Employee Benefits                                  23,891.69     104,291.00     101,955.00      -2,336.00

           530000 Contractual Services                                       59,738.26     224,656.00     939,743.00     715,087.00

           539000 Program Contractual Services                                2,970.14      59,735.97     161,185.00     101,449.03

           540000 Outside Services                                          135,514.69   1,061,011.70   2,177,252.00   1,116,240.30

           549000 Program Outside Services                                                     329.00      16,259.00      15,930.00

           550000 Materials And Supplies                                     83,421.63     393,253.92     985,208.00     591,954.08

           559000 Program Materials And Supplies                              6,985.44      39,731.29     148,718.00     108,986.71

           560000 Travel, Dues And Licenses                                  22,230.19      76,769.55     219,391.00     142,621.45

           569000 Program Travel/Dues/Lic                                       700.16       1,514.66      17,281.00      15,766.34

           570000 Leases And Rentals                                         17,931.71      88,053.04     210,266.00     122,212.96

           579000 Program Leases/Rentals                                                                    2,500.00       2,500.00

           580000 Capital Purchases                                                         90,479.94     174,165.00      83,685.06

           589000 Capital Outlay                                             17,812.85      22,898.31   1,013,500.00     990,601.69

                            Total EXPENDITURES                            1,120,997.90   6,102,986.76

                                               Net Income (Loss)             10,833.66  -2,829,980.78

159



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 2 of 5

07:23:10                                            Income Statements Summarized                           Report ID: LB170AS

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

  31 North Meadows

                                                                        --------------------- Current Year -----------------------

                                                                          Current

                                                                          Month         Current YTD     Budget         Variance

                                                                         ------------   ------------  -------------  -------------

         REVENUES

           420000 Interest                                                      829.05         552.99       7,800.00      -7,247.01

           470000 Other Financing Sources                                    14,527.79      18,613.39     422,709.00    -404,095.61

                            Total REVENUES                                   15,356.84      19,166.38

         EXPENDITURES

           510000 Salaries/Wages                                             14,545.28      73,071.06     226,848.00     153,776.94

           520000 Employee Benefits                                           5,816.18      29,265.43     129,648.00     100,382.57

           530000 Contractual Services                                        4,721.15      33,354.47     116,500.00      83,145.53

           540000 Outside Services                                            3,896.12      18,249.04      44,150.00      25,900.96

           550000 Materials And Supplies                                      2,672.58       6,527.82      33,200.00      26,672.18

           570000 Leases And Rentals                                            372.02       1,214.52                     -1,214.52

                            Total EXPENDITURES                               32,023.33     161,682.34

                                               Net Income (Loss)            -16,666.49    -142,515.96

160



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 3 of 5

07:23:10                                            Income Statements Summarized                           Report ID: LB170AS

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

  35 NOR Park

                                                                        --------------------- Current Year -----------------------

                                                                          Current

                                                                          Month         Current YTD     Budget         Variance

                                                                         ------------   ------------  -------------  -------------

         REVENUES

           420000 Interest                                                   10,002.36      10,448.99      59,500.00     -49,051.01

           470000 Other Financing Sources                                    17,554.07      24,498.88     592,507.00    -568,008.12

                            Total REVENUES                                   27,556.43      34,947.87

                                               Net Income (Loss)             27,556.43      34,947.87

161



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 4 of 5

07:23:10                                            Income Statements Summarized                           Report ID: LB170AS

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

  41 Capital

                                                                        --------------------- Current Year -----------------------

                                                                          Current

                                                                          Month         Current YTD     Budget         Variance

                                                                         ------------   ------------  -------------  -------------

         REVENUES

           420000 Interest                                                                                180,000.00    -180,000.00

           430000 Grants                                                                                1,280,475.00  -1,280,475.00

           470000 Other Financing Sources                                                               2,352,475.00  -2,352,475.00

           480000 Miscellaneous                                                                           100,000.00    -100,000.00

                            Total REVENUES

         EXPENDITURES

           510000 Salaries/Wages                                             11,433.69      57,601.22     194,036.00     136,434.78

           520000 Employee Benefits                                           1,827.68      13,049.15      59,054.00      46,004.85

           530000 Contractual Services                                       11,900.00      11,939.96      22,550.00      10,610.04

           550000 Materials And Supplies                                                                      300.00         300.00

           560000 Travel, Dues And Licenses                                     809.55       2,549.73       3,636.00       1,086.27

           570000 Leases And Rentals                                         99,743.89      99,743.89     200,000.00     100,256.11

           589000 Capital Outlay                                                203.94     304,166.09   3,732,950.00   3,428,783.91

                            Total EXPENDITURES                              125,918.75     489,050.04

                                               Net Income (Loss)           -125,918.75    -489,050.04

162



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 5 of 5

07:23:10                                            Income Statements Summarized                           Report ID: LB170AS

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

  90 N. Bak. Recreation Foundation

                                                                        --------------------- Current Year -----------------------

                                                                          Current

                                                                          Month         Current YTD     Budget         Variance

                                                                         ------------   ------------  -------------  -------------

         REVENUES

           430000 Grants                                                                                   25,000.00     -25,000.00

           450000 Donations/Sponsorships                                                    25,500.00       4,900.00      20,600.00

                            Total REVENUES                                                  25,500.00

         EXPENDITURES

           530000 Contractual Services                                                      25,145.00      28,900.00       3,755.00

           560000 Travel, Dues And Licenses                                      25.00          25.00       1,000.00         975.00

                            Total EXPENDITURES                                   25.00      25,170.00

                                               Net Income (Loss)                -25.00         330.00

163



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 1 of 3

07:20:45                                                   Balance Sheet                                   Report ID: L150

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

     Combined Funds

                                  Assets

  Cash

        Cash On Deposit Co. Treasurer                              5,993,780.35

        Cash NOR Park Maintenance                                  3,296,986.93

        Cash in AP Account                                           336,214.84

        Cash In Payroll Account                                      350,369.02

        Cash In Bank Transfer Account                                885,609.94

        Cash In Flex Benefit Account                                   8,682.65

        Imprest Cash                                                   1,400.00

        Change Fund                                                    2,251.00

        Cash (County Quimby)                                         513,727.48

        Cash (City Quimby)                                           418,909.18

        N Meadows Landscape Maintenance                              161,581.35

        Cash (City Park Development)                               4,304,010.42

        Cash - County Park Development                             2,454,132.03

        Cash - N Bak Rec Foundation                                  223,987.58

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Cash                                                            18,951,642.77

  Prepayments and Receivables

        Revenue Clearing Acct                                (       36,678.83)

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Prepayments and Receivables                                (       36,678.83)

  Inventory

        Raw Food Inventory                                            15,909.41

        Food Serv. Supplies Inventory                                  4,076.96

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Inventory                                                           19,986.37

  Fixed Assets

        Land                                                       5,737,143.73

        Building                                                  15,264,139.90

        Accumulated Depreciaton - Bldg                       (    7,691,349.48)

        Furniture, Fixtures & Equipmnt                             3,332,231.51

        Accumulated Depreciation-Equip                       (    2,242,098.29)

        Improvements, Other Than Bldgs  3                         33,585,420.89

        Accum Deprec - Improvements     1                    (   27,754,926.05)

        CIP                                                          152,209.60

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Fixed Assets                                                    20,382,771.81

164



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 2 of 3

07:20:45                                                   Balance Sheet                                   Report ID: L150

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

     Combined Funds

                                                                                ------------------

                                                    Total Assets                       39,317,722.12

                          Liabilities and Equity

  Accounts Payable

        Vouchers Payable                                                  99.00

        Checks Payable                                               307,815.44

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Accounts Payable                                                   307,914.44

  Payroll/Benefits Payable

        Federal Taxes Payable                                (           12.37)

        Employee FICA Tax Payable                            (           88.68)

        Dental/Vision Payable                                              0.00

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Payroll/Benefits Payable                                   (          101.05)

  Other Accounts Payable

        RV Deposits Payable                                            7,482.50

        GA Deposits Payable                                           12,441.50

        Riverlakes Deposits Payable                                   24,548.50

        SAC Deposits Payable                                           7,537.50

        Capital Deposits Payable                                       4,157.14

        CIP Deposits Payable                                           2,400.00

        Youth Sports Deposits Payable                                 14,415.00

        CAPK Deposit Payable                                           5,000.00

        Refund Clearing Acct                                          13,343.48

        Credit Card Payable                                              980.39

        Deposits Payable (Co. Quimby)                                513,727.48

        Security/Insurance Deposits                                      275.00

        Deposits Payable (City Quimby)                               454,149.20

        Deposits Payable-City Park Dev                             3,754,127.96

        Dep. Pay.- County Park Devel.                              3,004,014.49

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Other Accounts Payable                                           7,818,600.14

  Other Payroll/Benefits Payable

        Worker's Compensation Payable                                     22.33

        CALPERS 7.0                                                    2,130.65

        CALPERS PEPRA                                                  3,163.94

        CALPERS Member                                                     7.35

        Disability                                           (       28,531.89)

        Kaiser Health Insurance                              (       70,724.51)

165



12/09/24                                           NORTH OF THE RIVER REC & PARK                                Page: 3 of 3

07:20:45                                                   Balance Sheet                                   Report ID: L150

                                             For the Accounting Period:   11 / 24

     Combined Funds

        Life                                                             402.11

        United Way                                                         8.00

        Voluntary Life                                       (          882.66)

        Aflac Coverage                                       (        1,423.87)

        Gym Membership                                       (          269.85)

        Cafeteria Plan                                                 8,567.23

        Garnishments Payable                                 (          410.00)

        CA St Disbursement Unit                                           52.61

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Other Payroll/Benefits Payable                             (       87,888.56)

                                                                                  ------------------

                                    Total Liabilities                                   8,038,524.97

  Fund Equity

        Fund Balance-Restricted Cash                                 866,020.95

        Fund Bal-Res. For Prepaid Exp.                                 6,040.40

        Fund Bal-Reserve For Inventory                                14,276.19

        Fund Bal-Reserve For Tax Alloc                             2,000,000.00

        Fund Bal-Reserv Cap Maint Proj                               750,000.00

        Fund Bal-Designated Nbr Fdn.                                 151,924.72

        Fund Balance-Reserve For Encum                               318,193.91

        Investment-From Bond Proceeds                                135,000.00

        Investment-Donated Assets                                  2,531,440.66

        Investment-Gen. Fund Sources    4                         55,404,704.98

        Investment Depreciation         1                    (   37,688,373.83)

        Interfund Transfer                                                 0.00

        Unreserved Fund Balance                                   10,216,238.08

        CURRENT YEAR INCOME/(LOSS)                           (    3,426,268.91)

                                                               ----------------

                 Total Fund Equity                                                     31,279,197.15

                                                                                ------------------

                                      Total Liabilities & Equity                       39,317,722.12

166



 
MONTHLY PERSONNEL REPORT 

DECEMBER 2024 
 

Number of Employees   NOVEMBER 2024   
 Part-time 154 
 Regular Salaried 81 
 Total 235 

 

Additions    NOVEMBER 2024   
 Part-time 13 
 Regular Salaried 0 

 

Separations    NOVEMBER 2024   
 Part-time 2 
 Regular Salaried 1 

 

Average # of employees paid   NOVEMBER 2024 223 

NOVEMBER 2024– EMPLOYMENT APPLICATIONS 
  
Coach 6 
Instructor 2 
Park Area Supervisor 5 
Program Leaders 5 
Ranger - Sub 3 
Recreation Leader 2 
Santa/Santa’s Helper 6 
  

TOTAL APPLICATION 29 

CURRENT JOB OPENINGS 

Manager – Expanded Learning Program – deadline, 01/06/2025 
Park Maintenance Worker I (full-time) – open until filled 
Program Leaders –Standard School District – on going 
Ranger – Substitutes – open until filled 
Recreation Leader – Afterschool Junior Theatre – open until filled 
Instructors, Athletic and Leisure programs – on going 
 

167



 

 

 

 

 

 

To:   Board of Directors     Subject:   December Staff Report 

From:   Lauren Cronk      Date:   December 16, 2024 
Director of Recreation 
 

 
Staff Report 
 

• Concluded Programs: 
o Adult Softball concluded its fall season. 
o The Santa Breakfast welcomed over 140 participants. 
o The Standard School District Explore program, in partnership with NOR, 

received the Golden Bell Award for the 2023-2024 school year from the 
California School Board Association. 

o The 51st Annual NOR Christmas Parade featured over 50 entries, involving a 
total of 2,300 participants. 

• Current Programs: 
o The Santa Letter Express has received over 600 letters, with the last day for 

submissions being Monday, December 16th. 
o The Jr. Theatre program is currently serving its third school, Rosedale North 

Elementary School. 
• Upcoming Programs: 

o The Greenacres Community Center will host its annual Winter Camp from 
December 23rd to January 3rd. 

o The Mixed Pickles Tournament (Pickleball) will be held on Saturday, January 
25th, at the Greenacres PicklePlex.  

o Contingent upon Board approval, NOR will partner with the Norris School 
District to offer two 7-week Jr. Theatre programs, held one day per week. 

168



 
 

TRAINING REPORT 
December/January  

 
 

DATE TRAINING LOCATION ATTENDEES 
 
Ongoing 

 
NEOGOV – Perform/Onboard 

 
Online 

 
Grijalva, Miller 

 
Ongoing 

 
First 5 Trainings 

 
Online 

 
Neighborhood Staff 

 
Ongoing 

 
On-Line Training Specific to Departments 

 
Assigned by HR 

 
All Departments 

 
Ongoing 

 
Pesticide On-Line Training 

 
Online 

 
Certified Parks Staff 
 

    

    
    
    
    

 

169



LENNAR. 
 
 

8080 N. Palm • Suite 110 • Fresno, CA 93711 • Lennar.com 

 

Lennar Homes of California, LLC 

Mission Lakes - Tentative Tract Nos. 7461, 7462, 7463 and 7464 

City of Shafter 

 

 

Dear Members of the Board of the North of the River Recreation and Park District, 

 

Lennar Homes of California, LLC (“Lennar”) is a nationwide residential builder that is in the process of 

developing a total of 1,989 homesites within the Mission Lakes community, including Tentative Tract Nos. 

7461 (281 lots), 7462 (836 lots), 7463 (548 lots) and 7464 (324 lots) located in the City of Shafter (“City”).  

As part of the development process, Lennar has designed several upscale neighborhood parks within each 

subdivision listed above, and is preparing for construction of these parks, which consist of a total of 

approximately seventy-nine (79) acres (collectively, “Park” or “Parks”) approved through the Mission 

Lakes Specific Plan.  Attached for convenient reference is a conceptual rendition of above-referenced 

Tentative Tracts and placement of neighborhood Parks.  

More specifically, Tract No. 7461 will include a 2.69-acre neighborhood public park, known as Lot A of 

Tentative Tract No 7461.  Tract No. 7462 will include two parks: Lot B neighborhood public park on 

approximately 1.98-acres, and an additional neighborhood park on Lot C consisting of approximately 2.40-

acres.  Tract No. 7463 will include three parks: Lot A neighborhood public park on approximately 1.71 

acres, Lot B neighborhood public park on approximately 1.61 acres, and Lot AA community park on 

approximately 43.32 acres.   Tract 7464 will include two parks: Lot A neighborhood park on approximately 

3.51 acres, and a larger park/recreation park located on Lot E of approximately 21.19 acres.    

According to conditions of approval for development, prior to construction, Lennar is required to submit 

Park plans for review and approval by both the City and North of the River Recreation and Park District 

(“NOR”), and upon completion and the City’s acceptance of all improvements, to deed the Park to NOR, 

at which time NOR would assume all maintenance and repair obligations.   

For the reasons herein, Lennar respectfully requests that Park plans be reviewed and approved by the City, 

and following construction, the Parks be deeded to the City and thereafter maintained by a Community 

Facilities District (“CFD”) that has been formed by Lennar for the specific purpose of funding, maintaining 

and improving the Parks. 

Lennar has invested (and will continue to invest) a significant amount of time, money and other resources 

toward forming the CFD, completing all of the Park engineering and development plans (which consist of 

very lush and upscale designs) and preparing for preliminary improvements on Park sites.  By way of 

example, attached hereto as Attachment 2 is the conceptual drawing and corresponding legend for the 

community park on 43.32 acres in Tract No. 7463, which illustrates the lush landscape and upscale features 

and amenities of this Park. 

If required to submit plans for review and approval to NOR, Lennar will unnecessarily incur significant 

delays and costly design changes, as NOR has its own development schedules/deadlines that will delay the 

process, as well as development standards that will significantly decrease the quality of the Parks by 

incorporating substandard materials, labor and/or processes for development.  

For instance, Lennar has developed several lavish parks in other communities, including the Gossamer 

Grove community, which is currently maintained by a Community Facilities District, and which involves 

Docusign Envelope ID: 21781BAB-4577-484C-8832-091741B4FA3D

170



LENNAR. 
 
 

8080 N. Palm • Suite 110 • Fresno, CA 93711 • Lennar.com 

 

a level of service that we, as developers, expect to be consistent to the amenity level that corresponds with 

Lennar’s branding. 

Attached hereto as Attachment 3 is the design for one of the parks constructed by Lennar in the Gossamer 

Grove community.  As with Gossamer Grove, the Parks constructed in the Mission Lakes community will 

include numerous upscale features and amenities, and will require the same or greater level of repair and 

maintenance following construction. 

Lennar is known nationwide for its unique craftsmanship in building communities for nearly every lifestyle 

and has considerable experience in developing public parks and common areas associated with these 

communities.  In addition to avoiding costly delays and downgraded design changes, the CFD is in the best 

position to ensure that the Parks are constructed, maintained and repaired in a timely manner with the same 

high-quality standards that distinguish Lennar on a national level. 

We are available to discuss the foregoing in further detail at your convenience, and very much appreciate 

your attention to this letter.   

Sincerely, 

 

Mike Miller 

Vice-President 

Lennar Homes of California, LLC 

 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 21781BAB-4577-484C-8832-091741B4FA3D

171



LENNAR. 
 
 

8080 N. Palm • Suite 110 • Fresno, CA 93711 • Lennar.com 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 – MISSION LAKES – TTM’s 7461, 7462, 7463 & 7464 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 21781BAB-4577-484C-8832-091741B4FA3D

172



LENNAR. 
 
 

8080 N. Palm • Suite 110 • Fresno, CA 93711 • Lennar.com 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 – MISSION LAKES – 43.32 Acre Park 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

Docusign Envelope ID: 21781BAB-4577-484C-8832-091741B4FA3D

173



LENNAR. 
 
 

8080 N. Palm • Suite 110 • Fresno, CA 93711 • Lennar.com 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 – GOSSAMER GROVE – Forrest Park 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 21781BAB-4577-484C-8832-091741B4FA3D

174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196


	December 16, 2024, Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	7A- Posting of Agenda
	7B- November Minutes
	7C- Financial
	7D- Bills Exceeding Policy Limit
	7E- Afterschool Jr. Theatre Program
	Resolution #37-24
	Agreement

	7F- Kern High School 
	Resolution #38-24
	Agreement

	7G- 2025 Board Meeting Schedule
	Schedule

	7H- Board Attendance Policy
	7I- Updated Employee Benefits Holiday Policy- Resolution #40-24
	7J- Title III C Congregate and Home Delivered Nutrition Services 
	Resolution #44-24
	Agreement


	Board Business
	8A- Election of Officer
	8B- Bid Award- Polo Bark Park & Landscape Improvements
	Resolution #41-24

	8C- Purchase of Irrigation Controller 
	Resolution #42-24

	8D- Purchase of Bark Park Site Features & Amenities
	Resolution #43-24


	Staff Reports
	9B- CIP
	9C- Financial
	9D- Personnel
	9E-Recreation
	9H- Training

	Correspondence
	Lennar Homes of California, LLC

	List of Bills

	Text1: December 16, 2024
	Text2: 


